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A SELECT
FEW MILESTONES
1985 - DATE

2000
China joins the Bank
and begins highway
construction

2009
The Democratic
Republic of Congo
joins the Bank as
the 18th Member
State

1981

The PTA is established
as a regional economic
community

1995

PTA Infrastructure
Projects gain
momentum
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2014
The Bank finances
RwandaAir’s fleet
expansion

2015
TDB’s Non-performing
loans drop to 2.8%; ROC
& ROA = 12% and 2.5%

2016

eSwatini joins the
Bank as the 20th
Member State

2017

South Sudan joins
the Bank as the 22nd
Member State

2019
TDB’s President &
CEO wins the African
Banker of the Year
Award at the African
Banker Awards 2019
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ABOUT TDB
Established in 1985, the Eastern and Southern African Trade and Development Bank
(TDB), formerly the PTA Bank, is a multilateral, treaty-based development financial
institution, with assets of over US$ 5.6 billion. The Bank’s mandate is to finance and foster
trade, regional economic integration and sustainable development, through trade finance,
project and infrastructure finance, asset management and business advisory services.

OUR

OUR

CORE

MISSION

VISION

VALUES

To be a world class
African financial
institution advancing
the economic
development,
intergration and
prosperity of the
region.

To be at the forefront of
extending reliable financial
& non-financial services to
advance trade, development
and regional economic
integration through customerfocused and innovative
instruments.

Client orientation
Integrity
Innovation
Teamwork
Adaptability

STRATEGIC

GOAL
A sound financial
institution intermediary
for global & regional capital
into the region
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LETTER
OF TRANSMITTAL
The Chairman,
Board of Governors
Eastern and Southern African
Trade & Development Bank
Dear Mr. Chairman,
In accordance with Article 35(2) of the Bank’s
Charter, I have the honor, on behalf of the Board of
Directors, to transmit to the Board of Governors the
Annual Report of the Bank for the financial period
from 1 January to 31 December 2018.
The report covers the Bank’s activities for the year and
includes audited financial statements for the period.
Mr. Chairman, please accept the assurances of my
highest consideration.

Gerard Bussier
Chairman, Board of Directors
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
Bank Performance Highlights
Corporate Governance
Acknowledgements

On behalf of the Board of Directors, it is my pleasure to present

The Bank continues to position itself as a world-class African

the Bank’s Annual Report and Financial Statements for the year

financial institution. In January 2018, it launched a coverage-

ended 31 December 2018. This Annual Report covers the

product model to advance the Bank’s diversification strategy

first year of TDB’s Sixth Five-Year Corporate Plan 2018-2022

and to bring business development and origination teams

(Corporate Plan). The report evidences continued strong

closer to Member States through regionally-focused coverage

performance, with 16% growth in profitability and a balance

teams, built on the sub-regional office network and dual-

sheet growth of 6%. The President’s statement provides more

domicilium.

details on these and other performance highlights for the year.

Bank Performance Highlights
During the year 2018, the Bank continued its upward growth
trajectory with a strong start to its Corporate Plan. In step with
the growth strategy articulated in its corporate plan, loan assets
grew by 9% to USD 4.27 billion in 2018, while total assets
rose to USD 5.56 billion, in line with the target of USD 5.51
billion set in the Corporate Plan. The Bank’s equity capital
grew by 17% to USD 1.19 billion in 2018, from USD 1.02 in
the previous year, exceeding the corporate plan target of USD
1.13 billion by 5%. This strong growth in equity resulted from
strong profitability and new equity subscriptions.
Overall loan asset quality continued to improve steadily, with
the non-performing loans ratio edging down to 2.35% from
2.39% in 2017. The Bank posted net profit of USD 129.33
million, exceeding by 9% the USD 119.13 million targeted for
the same period under the Bank’s Corporate Plan.
These results are evidence of the remarkable trend of growth,
performance, quality and resource mobilization, attesting to the
Bank’s ability to execute its strategic roadmap as encapsulated
in its Corporate Plan. On the strength of improved profitability,
the Board has recommended to the Board of Governors a
dividend distribution to all its shareholders as was done in
recent years.

As part of the growing stable of related institutions developing
around the Bank, we launched the TDB Academy, a strategic
initiative with the overarching objective of developing and
delivering professional training to support the Bank and its
partners, as well as to address strategic and policy issues
of relevance to the Bank. This adds to the emerging special
purpose funds and other institutional initiatives developing
around the bank.
During the year 2018, the Bank continued to expand its
markets by reaching out to new members through a proactive
membership campaign. The Bank has engaged a number of
regional and non-regional countries and institutional investors
whose membership should fortify the Bank’s capital and reflect
positively on the Bank’s credit rating and advance TDB’s status
as an international institution.

Corporate Governance
As a multilateral development institution, the Bank complies
with good corporate governance principles and high ethical
standards grounded in the Bank’s Charter. The corporate
governance principles and ethical standards adopted by
the Bank were developed with close reference to guidelines
adopted by other highly rated international development
finance institutions.
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In line with the Bank’s continuous effort to align its governance

I further extend the Board’s appreciation to all shareholders

policies with international best practices, in 2018, the Board

without whose support the Bank’s achievements would not

of Governors carried out a comprehensive review of its rules

have been possible. It is gratifying to note that virtually all

of procedures. The review was driven by the need to adhere

shareholders are up-to-date with their capital subscriptions

to best practices in corporate governance, to further align

despite the many challenges that some of the member countries

the rules with the Bank’s Charter and internal practices, and

are facing. Much appreciation to the Board of Governors for

to address the structural changes to the Bank’s shareholding

their unwavering commitment to the Bank.

which occurred in the last few years.
In conclusion, I especially express my sincere thanks and
In further recognition of its efforts in promoting good corporate

appreciation to my fellow Directors on the Board for their

governance and risk management practices, the Bank

selfless contribution and support in steering the Bank’s affairs

achieved an overall score of 96% and a notation of AA

in the right direction. I also wish to take this opportunity, on

(Excellent) as part of the 8th Peer Review process conducted

behalf of the Board of Directors, to commend the President,

by the Association of African Development Finance Institutions

Mr. Admassu Tadesse, for his able stewardship and passionate

(AADFI) under the Prudential Standards, Guidelines and Rating

leadership, and the Management team and staff for responsibly

System for African Development Banks and Finance Institutions

continuing to grow and manage the Bank professionally while

(PSGRS).

delivering yet another year of sterling results.

In 2018, the Bank formally welcomed three new members to

2018 ended on a high note, with all indicators pointing to

its Board of Governors: the Republic of Madagascar, the Arab

a Bank that is on a sound growth trajectory. We remain

Bank for Economic Development in Africa (BADEA), and the

optimistic that given its track record and the passion, vigour

Development Bank of Belarus, which replaced Paritetbank as

and professionalism of the management team and staff, the

the representative of the Republic of Belarus.

Bank will continue to perform well and serve the region’s needs
with strong results. We therefore look forward to yet another

At the Board of Directors, a new standing committee, the

good year in 2019.

Finance and Capital Committee (FINCO), was created to
further support the work of the Board of Directors in guiding
and providing oversight for financial, treasury, and capital
raising matters.

GERARD BUSSIER
Acknowledgements
On behalf of the Board of Directors, I wish to acknowledge
and appreciate all the Bank’s stakeholders who continue
to contribute to the Bank’s sustained growth and financial
performance. I extend my gratitude and special recognition
to our clients for their business support and commitment to the
Bank as well as to our esteemed lenders and other financial
partners for continuing to avail competitively priced funds that
enable us to conduct our business efficiently and effectively.
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Statement of the
Chairperson, Board of
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PRESIDENT’S
STATEMENT
Strategic Overview
Lending Operations
Leveraging International and Private Capital
Asset Management
Resource Mobilisation
Customer and Partner Satisfaction Survey
Financial Performance
Risk Management
International Credit Ratings
Human Resources and Administration
Conclusion

Strategic Overview
The year 2018 ushered in the commencement of the Bank’s Sixth
Five-Year Corporate Plan 2018 2022 (FYCP-VI or Corporate Plan),
which aims to consolidate and broaden the success of the Fifth FiveYear Corporate Plan 2013 2017 (FYCP-V). It is in this context that
I review, and report on, the strategic, financial, and operational
performance of the Bank for the year ended 31 December 2018.
TBD continues to pursue its vision to be a world class African financial
institution intermediating global and regional capital into the region it
serves. The Bank has continued to successfully achieve key milestones
in its journey to be a preferred specialized regional intermediary and
financial service provider to its clients while delivering on its mandate
to promote economic and social development in its Member States
and doing so profitably. In pursuit of its vision and goals, the Bank
formulated five key strategic objectives as part of the FYCP-VI. Our
annual performance against these initiatives is summarized below.
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STRATEGIC OBJECTIVE
Ensure managed growth
and balanced sustainable
development impact

KEY ACHIEVEMENTS
The balance sheet of the Bank rose to USD 5.56 billion from USD 5.26 billion, in line with the
Corporate Plan, with loan assets growing by 9% from USD 3.91 billion in 2017 to USD 4.27
billion in 2018. The Bank registered a net profit of USD 129 million, resulting in a return on equity
of 11.57%. The Bank’s profitability remains strong, and among the highest in the industry. The
quality of its assets has also remained robust, as the non-performing loans ratio reduced slightly
from 2.39% (2017) to 2.35% (2018).
The Bank increased its efforts to finance more environmentally and socially friendly products within
its projects and infrastructure portfolio, by enhancing the process of identifying and managing
environmental risks. Because of these efforts, 69% of the Bank’s exposure in the energy sector
now relates to zero carbon sources.
The Bank increased its efforts to finance more environmentally and socially friendly products within
its projects and infrastructure portfolio, by enhancing the process of identifying and managing
environmental risks. Because of these efforts, 69% of the Bank’s exposure in the energy sector
now relates to zero carbon sources.

Mobilize equity and debt
resources cost-efficiently, while
optimally diversifying sources
of funding

Further develop the Bank’s
human and institutional capital to
achieve high levels of operational
excellence

As a sign of the confidence that the Bank continues to inspire, it received in 2018 additional and
new capital contributions of USD 38 million, of which USD 14.86 million was received from
Class B shareholders.
As part of the drive to diversify sources of funding, the Bank issued a Global Syndicated Loan of
USD 460 million and an initial Samurai syndicated loan of USD 150 million.
The Trade and Development Bank Academy (TDB Academy) was launched in July 2018 to develop
and enhance the Bank’s human capital, in the first phase, prior to reaching out to partners in the
region to promote human resource development beyond the bank.
The Bank introduced the coverage-product operating model by establishing regional offices within
segmented geographical locations across the Member States to improve service delivery and
enhance business generation capabilities. The regions have been segmented into North-Africa,
East Africa, Southern Africa, and Francophone and Lusophone Africa.
Other organisational development highlights include continued investments in information
technology and systems development to support continuous improvements of the Bank’s processes,
operations, and risk management framework.
Client service and customer satisfaction remain key priorities for the Bank, and that was confirmed
by the Bank’s customer satisfaction survey score of 4.47 out 5, which is an improvement from the
2017 score of 4.2. To achieve this improved score, the Bank implemented various Lean Six Sigma
projects relating to its operations and procedures.

Build focused partnerships
and collaborations

The Bank continued to grow its international partnerships by signing export credit facility agreements
with European agencies for an aggregate value of USD 260 million and lines of credit with Japan
agencies valued at USD 750 million.
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STRATEGIC OBJECTIVE

KEY ACHIEVEMENTS
TDB has emerged as a leading player in the African Syndicated Loans League Tables, closing 2018
as one of the top ranked Bookrunners (Ranked no. 8) and Agents (ranked no.13), in the Bloomberg
Global Syndicated Loans League Tables (Sub-Saharan Africa Borrower Loans Category).
The Bank continued to fortify its risk management practices by implementing the Credit Risk Appetite

Be an investment grade rated and

Statement and Country Risk Limit Framework, both of which are aimed at effective portfolio

risk-intelligent organization with high

management and resource mobilization. A new Loan Origination System was implemented to

quality assets.

enhance management of the credit life cycle from onboarding to disbursement. Our continued
emphasis on effective risk management resulted in an improvement in the non-performing loan
ratio from 2.39% (2017) to 2.35% (2018).
Because of the Bank’s efforts to improve its risk management, asset quality, and earnings, Fitch
upgraded the Bank’s long-term issuer rating from BB (positive) to BB+ (stable) while Moody’s
re-affirmed the Bank’s long-term issuer rating of Baa3 (stable).

These notable achievements were attained on the back of a general improvement in the economic landscape in which the Bank operates. Oil
and metal prices recovered in 2018 due to increased demand, while prices of food commodities and raw materials increased on the back of
reduced supplies. The average inflation rates in our regional blocs decreased year-over-year, spurred by improved commodity prices and a
good rainy season reducing the cost of power and basic supplies. Fiscal pressure remains in most Member States as exchange rate volatility
and widening budget deficits continue to pose a challenge to economic growth.

Lending Operations
In 2018, the Bank continued to execute its lending strategy throughout the Bank’s entire geographic footprint. This is in line with the Corporate
Plan where the Bank adopted diversification by geographies, sectors, and products as a key strategic thrust. The sectoral scope of the Bank’s
lending activities covers priority sectors such as infrastructure, agribusiness, manufacturing, and energy. With respcet to geographies, greater
focus was placed markets where the Bank had low exposure,such as Mozambique, Djibouti, Madagascar, Swaziland, and DRC. In 2018,
the Bank made significant progress in diversifying its lending activities along those three dimensions.
Trade Finance continues to be the primary short-term lending window of the Bank, financing transactions with a tenor of up to 3 years, while
Project and Infrastructure Finance remains the long-term lending window, financing transactions with a tenor of up to 15 years. On a consolidated
basis, the Bank’s lending activities generated total revenues of USD 134 million in 2018, down from USD 154 million in 2017 (represented
by income from operations less other income and interest income on placements). The shortfall was primarily attributable to reduced letters
of credit (LC) volumes as customers shifted to using more open account transactions and governments liberalised sectors that traditionally
used LCs to import strategic commodities and replaced LCs with with open account trading. It was also due to a shift toward lower exposure
countries where the Bank has been promoting other trade finance, advisory and asset management products.

Leveraging International and Private Capital
Under the new Corporate Plan, the Bank set out to become a strong co-financier and leading arranger of syndicated loans in Africa, in line
with the strategy to leverage African and global capital to support trade and economic development in Member States.
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Operationally, the Bank has adopted the “Originate to Distribute or OTD” asset origination, booking, and risk distribution model, to optimise
the Bank’s capital and liquidity resources. This OTD platform is supported by best-in-class global market standards, systems, and procedures.

Statement of
the President

Over the last two years, the Bank has arranged US$2.6 billion in syndicated loans for sovereign and corporate clients in Member States.
By leveraging an expanded network of investors and partners comprised of global and regional commercial banks, development finance
partners, insurance companies, and mutual funds, the Bank mobilized USD 1.2 billion from the syndicate market, representing a leverage ratio
of 2 to 1 (two US dollars for every dollar the Bank invested in syndicated loans it arranged during the two-year period).
As a result, the Bank has emerged as a leading player in the African Syndicated Loans League Tables, closing 2018 as one of the top ranked
Bookrunners (Ranked no. 8) and Agent (ranked no.13), in the Bloomberg Global Syndicated Loans League Tables (Sub-Saharan Africa
Borrower Loans Category).
Additionally, through the sovereign lending strategy initiated in 2017, the Bank continues to be a key strategic partner to Member States by
mobilizing capital through syndicated loans to support infrastructure investments and strategic importations. Over the period 2017-2018, the
Bank successfully arranged syndicated loans for the Governments of Kenya, Zambia, and Uganda. The Bank will explore opportunities to
extend this program to other Member States during 2019.

Asset Management
As part of the Corporate Plan, the Bank has reaffirmed its commitment to asset management by establishing a department dedicated to
the function. The Asset Management function will help diversify the Bank’s income streams by generating more fee income and provide an
avenue for reaching new markets and clients. The year 2018 was the first full year during which the Asset Management Department was fully
operational. The year’s activities were focused on strengthening human resources to support the asset management function and refining the
implementation plan around the aim of matching impact investment capital with TDB’s expertise and networks in the region. They resulted in
the launch of three key initiatives:
• the SME programme;
• key partnerships in blended finance; and
• commencing the process of accreditation with specialized global funds
The Mauritian-domiciled Eastern and Southern African Trade Fund (ESATF) is expected to be launched by the Bank in the third quarter of 2019.
Eastern and Southern African Trade Advisors Limited (ESATAL), which is the fund management company in respect of ESATF, is domiciled in
Mauritius. It was established as a joint venture between the Bank (50 per cent. + 1 share) and GML Capital (50 per cent. - 1 share).

Resource Mobilisation
In 2018, the Bank achieved strong levels of capital and liquidity, a reflection of the Bank’s success in carrying out a funding strategy that
addresses immediate as well as long-term funding requirements. The Bank’s resource mobilisation strategy focused on raising medium to
long-term funding on the debt capital markets, growing and strengthening existing bilateral relationships, and attracting new relationships to
further diversify the funding mix.
Notable funding transactions closed in 2018 include a global syndicated loan facility in the amount of USD 460 million, a debut Samurai
syndicated loan of USD 150 million and a JPY 4 billion tranche equivalent to USD 36 million (JPY 4 billion), as well as loans from various
multi-lateral institutions in the aggregate amount of USD 106 million, specifically from Industrial Development Corporation (IDC) of South
Africa and Arab Bank for Economic Development in Africa (BADEA). In addition, the Bank successfully structured and executed ECA-backed
transactions of about USD 260 million to support European content imports to the region served by the Bank. The transactions were executed
with the support of highly regarded financial institutions.
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To achieve greater operational efficiency and strengthening controls and risk management across the Bank’s treasury operations, the Bank has
implemented a world class Treasury Management System. The system allows the Bank’s Treasury function to transact in various products and have
a clear view of performance and execution.
The Bank intends to tap the Eurobond and global syndicated loan markets in 2019 to raise new funding for balance sheet growth and to
refinance existing debt, with a view of extending tenors. To respond to local market needs and enhance capital markets growth, the Bank
will also explore opportunities to issue local currency bonds in Member States and private placements with institutional investors, such as
sovereign wealth funds and central banks.

Customer and Partner Satisfaction Survey
Based on the results of the 2018 Customer and Partner Satisfaction Survey commissioned by the Bank from a third-party research organization,
customers and partners indicated an increased level of satisfaction with the Bank’s products and services, resulting in an overall score of 4.47
out of 5, as compared to the score of 4.2 achieved in 2017. As part of the survey, customers and partners were asked to rate the Bank based
on several factors, including financing capacity, loan processing turn-around time, and level of engagement.

Financial Performance
The Bank grew its net loan assets by 9%, due to a 6% increase in net Trade Finance loans from USD 2.57 billion to USD 2.73 billion and a 16%
increase in net Project and Infrastructure loans from USD 1.24 billion to USD 1.43 billion. Total assets increased by 6% from USD 5.26 billion
in 2017 to USD 5.56 billion, marginally exceeding the USD 5.51 billion level planned for 2018 in the FYCP-VI. The growth in total assets was
mainly driven by total gross disbursements for the year amounted to USD 1.27 billion.
Shareholders’ funds grew by 17% to USD 1.19 billion from USD 1.02 billion in 2017, representing an increase of USD 171 million comprised of
USD 102 million in profit net of USD 27 million dividend payment, USD 38 million increase in paid in capital, and USD 31 million in reserves
arising from the adoption of IFRS 9. Shareholders’ funds were 5% above the level of USD 1.13 billion planned for 2018 under the Corporate Plan.
Operating expenditures totaled USD 40.71 million, which was 2% below the planned 2018 level of USD 41.37 million and resulted in a
cost-to-income ratio of 15.45%, a slight decrease from 16.24% in 2017 and below the planned level for 2018 of 18%.
Net interest income grew by 24% to USD 156.40 million from USD 125.64 million. The growth is largely attributable to the 16% growth in
Project and Infrastructure loans and a sharp increase in investment income to USD 31.84 million earned on high yielding secured assets
placed on fixed term deposits during the year.
Total borrowing costs increased by 36% from USD 150.38 million in 2017 to USD 205.19 million in 2018. Interest expense on long-term
borrowings rose by 58% from USD 75.87 million in 2017 to USD 112.46 million due to a 4% increase in total long-term borrowings to USD
1.78 billion from USD 1.71 billion in 2017 and an increase in the 3-month LIBOR from an annual average of 1.69% in 2017 to [an annual
average of 2.81%. Interest expense on short-term borrowings rose by 27% from USD 67.98 million in 2017 to USD 86.00 million due to a 3%
increase in total short-term borrowings from USD 2.31 billion to USD 2.38 billion and an increase in the 3-month LIBOR.

Risk Management
During the year under review, the Bank continued to base its risk management framework on a well-established governance process, with
the three-lines-of-defence model, which relies on individual responsibility and collective oversight, supported by a comprehensive reporting
and escalation process.
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The first line of defence, line management, is responsible for risk management, being the closest to the risk. The Risk Management function

Statement of
the President

represents the second line of defence, tasked with establishing risk policy frameworks and providing risk oversight and independent reporting
of risks. The third line of defence consists of internal auditors; they provide an independent assessment of the adequacy and effectiveness of
the control environment and risk management practices, reporting independently to the Board Audit Committee.
In 2018, the Bank continued to enhance capabilities of the Risk Management function, to support the business strategy aimed at delivering
shareholders’ value within the defined risk appetite statement of the Bank. In this regard, the Bank implemented a revised Credit Risk Appetite
Statement and Country Risk Limit Framework so as to achieve an effective portfolio management and optimal resource utilisation. Additionally,
the Bank implemented a new rating tool to enhance and differentiate the obligor and facility risk ratings. A new Loan Origination System
(LOS) was also implemented to enhance integration, efficiency, and effectiveness in the credit life cycle from onboarding to disbursement.
Active risk management led to improved diversification of exposure concentrations at country, sector, and obligor levels, within set risk appetite
parameters. This was reflected in the quality of the portfolio assets, with non-performing loans (NPLs) at 2.35% (compared to 2.39% in 2017),
well within the 5% risk appetite level. The portfolio was also well-cushioned for expected losses, with specific provisions for the NPL portfolio
improving to 100% (compared to 77% in 2017), above the recommended minimum policy threshold of 70%. Overall provision coverage,
including performing loan provisions, was at 108%, versus 115% in 2017, against a minimum policy threshold of 100%.
The Bank also continued to record substantial progress in the management of operational risk, with tools in the Operational Risk Management
System (ORM); enhancing the implementation of Risk Control Self Assessments (RCSAs); operational risk assessment; control design; audit
findings tracking and closure; and monitoring and reporting. The Bank managed compliance risk through proactive measures premised on
nationally and internationally accepted principles of risk management. This was further facilitated by an upgrade in the Bank’s AML/CFT and
Sanctions automated screening solution.
The focus for Risk Management in 2019 will be to ensure that the Bank’s strategic objectives are achieved in line with the Bank’s mandate and
approved levels of risk appetite. This will include the alignment of the risk management function to the Bank’s managed growth strategy, to
drive the actualisation of the desired risk appetite, and support the front office to deliver efficient services to clients.

International Credit Ratings
In 2018, Fitch upgraded the Bank’s long-term issuer rating from BB with a positive outlook to BB+ with a stable outlook. Moody’s re-affirmed
the Bank’s long-term issuer rating of Baa3 with a stable outlook. Similarly, GCR re-affirmed the Bank’s long-term issuer rating of BBB- with a
stable outlook. These favourable rating actions reflect the Bank’s continuous progress in improving loan asset quality and leverage and liquidity
metrics, advancing the diversification of its funding mix, and strengthening institutional risk and credit risk management frameworks and practices.

Human Resources and Administration
In line with institutional strengthening, expanded operations and high growth, the Bank has continued its pursuit to attract, retain, and develop
the best talent and build a professional and motivated workforce. Accordingly, various positions across several functions were filled through a
competitive selection process, with younger talents being recruited through the on-going Young Professionals Program (YPP) and Mid-Career
Programmes to build a pipeline of talent. Through regular recruitment and executive search programs, highly experienced, internationally
accomplished, and well-trained African professionals have joined the Bank at professional, management, and executive levels.
In 2018, the Bank introduced a new coverage-product operating model to advance its diversification thrust, enhance sub-regional presence for
new business generation, and strengthen portfolio management. As a result, the Bank placed an even stronger emphasis on improving business
effectiveness and efficiency. In line with that focus, the Bank implemented various Lean Six Sigma projects in business operations and enablers.
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In efforts to fulfil the Bank’s vision to become a world class African financial institution, the Bank launched the Trade & Development Bank Academy
(TDB Academy) in July 2018 with the objective to continue building on the body of knowledge already accumulated by the Bank and to expand
the Bank’s internal capacity in terms of human capital and specific domains of trade and development finance. In addition, the TDB Academy will
add value by training and up-skilling the Bank’s staff to be able to deliver its transformational objectives for the years to come. TDB Academy will
also offer tailored training solutions to the Bank’s clients within the Member States, hence equipping them with the relevant skills and knowledge
to address the challenges faced in the region. The Academy will seek to be accredited, to give it a recognizable badge of professionalism and
to ensure that the courses provided meet the highest standards.

Conclusion
The year 2018 has once again proved to be a successful year for the Bank in achieving its strategic goals as set out in the Corporate Plan
exceeding in some instances, performance targets set out in the plan. This report highlights the journey of the Bank as it continues to grow based
on the foundations set by successfully achieving the goals established under the Fifth Five-Year Corporate Plan 2013-2017 and continuing on
the same trajectory as highlighted by the Bank’s performance in its current Corporate Plan. Looking ahead, the Bank will continue to focus on
its mandate to support sustainable economic and social development in its Member States through pursuing three core objectives which are
to scale up our operations, speed up our response and improve on our efficiency, and synergize by deriving shared value from our various
partners and stakeholders.
The Bank has continued to receive overwhelming support from its valued clients and business partners to whom I would like to express my deepest
gratitude and wish continued growth and success as we continue to partner with each other. I would also like to thank and congratulate the
Management and Staff of the Bank for living our values of performance, behavior, and attitude as reflected by their commitment, dedication,
and enthusiasm, resulting in the Bank’s continued success through strong performance.
The success of the Bank would not have been possible without the guidance and strategic direction provided by the Board of Directors and
the Board of Governors, whose support and counsel have enabled the Bank to grow into a reputable and strong regional financial institution,
with the ability to raise both debt and equity funding from regional and international markets to deliver on its mandate to champion sustainable
socio-economic development and regional economic integration within the region.
As the Bank celebrates its 35th birthday in 2020, plans are already underway to have a series of events and activities which will begin at this
35th Board of Governors meeting in August 2019 to culminate in a major celebration and the 36th Board of Governors meeting in 2020. This
is an exciting time for the Bank as we look back on the journey thus far, the achievements attained, the constraints overcome, and the impact
the Bank has made in the region.
We look forward to another successful year for the Bank and its stakeholders as we continue to passionately pursue our vision and mission
across the region.

ADMASSU Y. TADESSE
President & Chief Executive Officer
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STATEMENT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
Corporate Governance Standards
Governance Structure
The Bank’s President and CEO

Khatoum, Sudan

Dual Domicilium

The key aspects of the Bank’s approach to Corporate Governance are as follows:

Corporate Governance Standards
As a multilateral development institution, the Bank complies with good corporate governance principles
and high ethical standards as embedded in the Bank’s Charter.
The corporate governance principles and standards adopted by the Board of Directors have been
developed with close reference to guidelines adopted by other highly rated international development
finance institutions.
To underpin its commitment to sound corporate governance, the Bank signed a joint approach statement
on corporate governance alongside 30 international development finance institutions in October 2007,
which led to the development of the Corporate Governance Development Framework (CGDF). The aim
of the CGDF is to motivate cooperation among the signatory institutions to promote the accomplishment
of key institutional reforms under international best practices in the areas of transparency, accountability,
and good governance.
The Bank also frequently engages closely with other multilateral institutions to ensure that it is up to date
on best corporate governance practices.
In further recognition of its efforts in promoting good corporate governance and risk management practices,
the Bank achieved an overall score of 96% and a notation of AA (Excellent) as part of the 8th Peer Review
process conducted by the Association of African Development Finance Institutions (AADFI) under the
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Prudential Standards, Guidelines and Rating System for African
Development Banks and Finance Institutions (PSGRS).

In 2018, the Bank formally welcomed three new Members to

Statement on
Corporate
Governance

its Board of Governors : the Republic of Madagascar, the Arab

Governance Structure

Bank for Economic Development in Africa (BADEA), and the
Development Bank of Belarus, which replaced the country’s

Charter

central bank’s Paritetbank as the representative of the Republic

The Bank is a multilateral legal entity established by Charter.

of Belarus.

The Charter, which is binding on all Members, sets out the
objectives, membership, capital structure, and organisation of

In its continuous effort to align its governance policies with

the Bank, in addition to identifying the type of transactions the

international best practices, in 2018, the Board of Governors

Bank may engage in. It also sets out the immunities, exemptions,

carried out a comprehensive review of its rules of procedures

and privileges enjoyed by the Bank. The Charter also contains

premised on adherence to best practices in corporate

provisions with respect to the allocation of capital subscriptions.

governance, alignment with the Bank’s Charter and internal
practices as well as taking into account the structural changes

The Charter is revisited periodically to ensure alignment with

to the Bank’s shareholding.

the Bank’s growth, corporate strategy, shareholder interests,
and governance best practices. The latest amendments to the

Board of Directors

Bank’s Charter were approved by the Board of Governors at
its 33rd Annual Meeting in August 2017.

Board Composition
The Bank’s Charter outlines specific roles and responsibilities

Board of Governors

for the Board of Directors. ¬ Article 27(6) of the Bank’s Charter

All powers of the Bank are vested in the Board of Governors.

provides that the Board of Directors is responsible for the

Each Member of the Bank appoints one Governor and one

conduct of the general operations of the Bank. The Charter

alternate, with the alternate only voting in the absence of the

provides for the Board to consist of not more than 10 NEDs

principal. The Governor or the alternate exercises voting powers

(in addition to the President as an executive member) or

on behalf of the Member for which he or she is a nominee.

such other number as may be determined by the Board of

Each Governor is entitled to cast the number of votes of the

Governors from time to time. Five of the 10 NEDs represent five

Member State or Member which appointed them and which

groups of Member State constituencies. Each Member State

they represent and, except as otherwise expressly provided

constituency also has an Alternate NED. In addition, each of

in the Charter, all matters before the Board of Governors are

the following shareholder categories has one seat on the Board

to be decided by a majority of the voting power represented

of Directors: i) non-African States, ii) African Institutions; and iii)

at the meeting. The Board of Governors generally comprises

all other institutional Shareholders not represented by African

Ministers of Finance or Ministers of Economic Planning from

Institutions. The remaining two seats on the Board are reserved

Member States as well as appointees of Members other than

for independent NEDs in line with good corporate governance.

the Member States.
At its Second Annual Meeting, the Board of Governors of the
The Board of Governors appoints the President of the Bank and

Bank established the principle of rotation with regard to the

Non-Executive Directors (NEDs) of the Board of Directors. It

appointment of the Members of the Board of Directors. On

delegates powers to the Board of Directors, and ordinarily

the basis of this principle, the Directorship and the Alternate

meets once a year. Although it has delegated powers to

Directorship of the Bank rotate between and among Members

the Board of Directors, certain specific powers, such as

States within a constituency every three years to provide each

the increase or decrease of the Bank’s authorised capital,

shareholder the opportunity to appoint its own nationals/

amendments to the Charter, and approval of the Bank’s audited

candidates to the Board of Directors, provided that such

accounts, are retained by the Board of Governors.

Member State is not under arrears on its capital subscriptions.
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As at 31 December 2018, the Board of Directors, including

as they relate to monitoring and reviewing the Bank’s Enterprise

the President, consisted of 11 members.

Risk Management Framework, internal control, and financial
reporting practices. It serves in an advisory capacity to the

Board Meetings

Board and ensures that the Bank’s assets are safeguarded,

Board meetings are held at any of the Bank’s offices or at any

adequate internal controls are in place, and material risks are

other location specified in the notice convening the meeting.

effectively managed..

Board Members elect two Directors to serve as Chairperson
and Vice Chairperson of the Board for a period of one year.

The Investment and Credit Committee (INVESCO) is

The President works jointly with the Chairperson and Vice-

mandated to provide oversight on matters relating to the Bank’s

Chairperson. Th¬e role and responsibilities of the Chairperson

investment and credit decisions;provideadvice to management

and of the President are distinct and held separately as

regarding the implementation of investment initiatives; assist the

specified in the Charter.

Board in making major investment decisions; and to monitor
the investment policies.

To assist members of the Board in the discharge of their
responsibilities, the Bank has in place Rules of Procedure to

The Remuneration and Nominations Committee (REMCO)

guide the conduct of meetings and a Code of Conduct for

is mandated to review, recommend, and improve the Bank’s

Directors. Quorum for any board meeting is constituted by a

policy framework on human resource management including

majority of the total number of directors representing not less

remuneration, incentives, and other matters affecting working

than two-thirds of the voting rights of the Bank. In 2018, all

conditions. It advises and makes recommendations to the

Board meetings satisfied this quorum criterion.

Board with regard to corporate performance and issues
affecting staff working conditions generally. REMCO also

Board Committees
With a view to streamlining the operations of the Board for

acts as the reference committee for all matters relating to the
Board’s Code of Conduct.

greater efficiency and effectiveness, three board committees
have been in place since 2013: the Audit and Risk Committee,

Each Board committee is composed of at least four Directors.

the Investment and Credit Committee, and the Nominations

In accordance with the practice of the Bank, the Board

and Remuneration Committee. In 2018, a new Board

committees are reconstituted annually. The President is a

Committee, the Finance and Capital Committee, was created

member of INVESCO and REMCO and attends ARCO in

to further aid the Board in its review of financial, treasury, and

an ex-officio capacity.

capital raising matters.
The Finance and Capital Committee (FINCO) is mandated
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The Audit and Risk Committee (ARCO) is mandated to assist

to advise the Board of Directors on matters pertaining to, inter

the Board of Directors in discharging its duties relating to the

alia, financial and treasury management as well as capital

identification and management of the key risks facing the Bank

raising.
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The table below shows attendance by Board Members in 2017.

Statement on
Corporate
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Board Meetings

ARCO Meetings

INVESCO
Meetings

REMCO Meetings

FINCO

Mr. Mohamed Kalif

3/4

1/3

1/3

1/3

1/1

Dr. Abdel Rahman Taha

4/4

3/4

4/4

1/1

Mr. Mingzhi Liu

4/4

3/4

4/4

Mr. Said Mhamadi

4/4

4/4

1/4

4/4

Mr. Juste Rwamabuga

4/4

4/4

4/4

Mr. John Bosco Sebabi

4/4

4/4

3/4

1/4

Mr. Gerard Bussier

2/4

1/2

2/2

Mr. Peter Simbani

4/4

3/4

1/4

3/4

Dr. Natu Mwamba

4/4

1/4

3/4

4/4

Ms. Isabel Sumar

4/4

1/4

3/4

4/4

Mr. Admassu Tadesse

4/4

4/4

4/4

The Bank’s President and CEO

1/1

1/1
1/1

1/1

recommendation of the Board of Directors, approved an
upgrade of TDB’s Office in Mauritius into a second principal

Pursuant to the Bank’s Charter, the President and CEO must be

office of the Bank, alongside the Republic of Burundi, effective

a person of integrity and of the highest competence to matters

31 December 2016. The purpose has been to leverage on

pertaining to the activities, management, and administration

Mauritius’ investment-grade status and well established

of the Bank. He/she presides over the affairs of the Bank

domicilium for international funds and financial institutions

and serves as Chief Executive and legal representative of the
Bank. He/she conducts the business of the Bank under the
direction of the Board of Directors, and is assisted in his or her
role by a management team. At its 32nd Annual Meeting, in
May 2016, the Board of Governors demonstrated its strong
confidence in the Bank’s leadership by unanimously renewing
Mr. Tadesse’s contract as President and Chief Executive of the
Bank for another five years effective April 2017.

Dual Domicilium
Since its establishment in 1985, the Bank’s principal office
has been located in Bujumbura (Burundi). In recognition
of the existing domicilium of the Bank’s special purpose
funds in Mauritius, the Bank’s Board of Governors, on the

in Africa. The Bank’s Mauritius principal office will serve
as the hub and address for the Bank’s funds management,
fundraising, and regional operations. Additionally, it will
serve as a corporate and support centre as well as business
continuity point for the entire Bank. In addition to its two
principal offices, the Bank also has a regional and global
operations hub in Nairobi (Kenya), and two sub-regional
offices: one in Harare (Zimbabwe) and the other in Addis
Ababa (Ethiopia). In line with its outreach and partnership
strategy to better service the vast region it operates in and
enhance its portfolio management, the Bank has established
a new country office in Kinshasa (Democratic Republic of
Congo) in partnership with related multilateral institutions
building on the shared-premises approach taken with the
Mauritius and Addis Ababa offices.
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SUSTAINABILITY REPORTING STATEMENT
Environmental Sustainability
Green Finance
Investing in Impactful and Environmentally and Socially Sustainable Transactions
Responsible Employment

Victoria, Seychelles

www.depositphotos.com

Corporate Social Responsibility

Over the years, TDB has ensured that sustainability considerations are continuously integrated in its
financing activities. It supports projects and investments that provide solutions to various environmental
and social challenges in the Member States. The TDB 2017 Sustainability Statement reaffirmed the
commitment to align TDB’s investment strategy to the United Nation’s Sustainable Development Goals
(SDGs), specifically Goals 1,2,3,4,7,8,9 10, and 13)1, the 2015 Paris Climate Summit2 Agreement, and
the African Union’s Agenda 20633. In 2018 the Bank undertook several initiatives aimed at promoting
economic growth, social wellbeing, and inclusiveness, among others.
In undertaking these initiatives, the Bank applied social and environmental considerations in line with its
Environmental and Social Management System (ESMS Framework, also referred to as Sustainability
Framework) to ensures that all financed activities benefit society and consider the impact to future
generations in the Member States. The Bank’s ESMS Framework is aligned to the Equator Principles
to ensure responsible financing, through a consistent risk assessment and management process. It was
developed to ensure that the environmental and social risks are identified and adequately addressed,
through continuous portfolio monitoring to ensure alignment to the applicable performance standards
during the investment cycle.
TDB strategy is also aligned to the African

1

No Poverty; Goal 2 Zero Hunger, Goal 3 Good health and well Being; Goal 4: Quality Education; Goal 7: Affordable

Union’s Agenda 2063. To achieve this

and Clean Energy; Goal 8 Decent Work and Economic Grow, Goal 9: Industry, Innovation and Infrastructure; Goal

objective, the Bank has put in place an

10: Reduced Inequality and Goal 13: Climate Action.

Environmental and Social Management
(ESM) sustainability framework

The Sustainable Development Goals are the blueprint to achieve a better and more sustainable future for all. Goal 1

2

Under the Paris Climate Conference (COP21), of December 2015, 194 countries adopted the first-ever universal legally
binding global climate deal.

3

This is a strategic framework for socio-economic transformation of the continent over the next 50 years. It builds on
implementation of past and existing continental initiatives for growth and sustainability.
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The following four pillars anchor the Bank’s sustainability
TDB AIMS FOR MORE

initiatives:

ENVIRONMENTALLY AND
SOCIALLY FRIENDLY PROJECTS

1. Environmental Sustainability

WITHIN THE PROJECTS AND
INFRASTRUCTURE FINANCE

TDB’s ESMS Framework and related procedures were

SPACE

reviewed in 2018 to align them to the sustainability agenda,
giving priority to enhancing capacity through the recruitment
of a full-time Environmental and Social Management
Specialist, enhancing training to operational staff, integrating
Environmental and Social Management risk scoring within the
Bank’s loan origination system, and creating awareness of the
new sustainability strategic thrust.
That review resulted in refocusing the Bank on aiming for
more environmentally and socially friendly projects within the
Projects and Infrastructure Finance space, and enhancement

Energy Investment Profile
(USD67 Million as at December 2018)

to the process of identifying and managing environmental
risks within the Bank’s Enterprise Risk Management Framework
(ERM)4. The review also confirmed that the Bank’s investment
strategy is in alignment with United Nation’s Sustainable
Development Goals (SDGs), with the indication that 32.5%
of Bank’s portfolio contributes directly to SDGs as further
discussed below.

4

The ERM Framework outlines the standards for identification,
assessment and management of bank-=wide risks and it is within

Renewable Energy (69%)
Other Sources (31%)

this Framework that the Banks’ Sustainability Framework draws its
guidelines.
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2. Green Finance

Corporate Social Responsibility

TDB’s medium-term ambition is to be among the major

As part of its efforts to give back to the community at large,

players in the funding of climate solutions through low-carbon

during the year under review, the Bank undertook the following

transactions, aiming to green our regional economies.

activities:

As part of this aspiration, as at 31st December 2018, 69% of

• Provision of a grant of USD 25,000 to support the

the Bank’s exposure in the energy sector (approximately USD

construction of Power Hub in Uganda.

67.0 million) was related to zero carbon energy sources, i.e.,
wind, hydro, and geothermal power plants, achieving a total

Power Hub is a “solar kiosk” featuring an information and

of 369MW of renewable energy produced.

resource center designed for off-grid villages. This intervention is
part of the Bank’s wider sustainability framework to deliver triple

3. Investing in Impactful and Environmentally and
Socially Sustainable Transactions

bottom line results by connecting economic, environmental,
and social impacts. The “Solar Kiosks” project contributes to
the UN Sustainable Development Goals of Gender Equity

The Bank’s main thrust remains financing projects which

and Affordable and Clean Energy since the proprietor of this

advance sustainable economic development and economic

project is a young woman entrepreneur promoting the use of

integration, while prioritizing projects with cross-border

sustainable energy.

positive impact. In line with that focus, as at 31st December
2018, the Bank’s loan portfolio, a total of USD1.41 billion
consisting of loans extended to support projects and
transactions that contribute directly to the achievement of
the SDGs. These investments were in various sectors such
energy, manufacturing, infrastructure, telecommunications,
agribusiness, and education.

4. Responsible Employment
The Bank is especially committed to a responsible human
resources and training policy as well as to fair dealings with
all employees in compliance with international standards,
applicable laws, and labour standards.
For TDB, fair dealings with its employees means creating
a corporate culture in which partnership and cooperation,
openness, and mutual respect are esteemed values that are
endorsed by all. Together with dialogue-oriented processes,
these values lay the basis for a positive and productive working
climate. As a progressive regional development bank, the
Bank for years has been committed to ensuring that women
are given equal professional opportunities at all levels, and
that young professionals are given ample opportunities. It seeks
to advance that view in the exercise of its mandates and in
making investment decisions.
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• Sponsored staff to participate in the Business Cup
Charity Golf Tournament.
The tournament provided an opportunity for businesses and
individuals to partner with a local University in Kenya to raise
funds, part of which was allocated towards paying tuition fees
for students facing financial challenges at Eastland College
of Technology, in Kenya. The college offers, among others,
artisan courses and solar installation courses to post secondary
students thereby supporting the UN Sustainable Development
Goals of affordable and clean energy. The Bank’s sponsorship
of staff to the Charity Golf Tournament demonstrates how its
aligning business goals with best practices as part of the Bank’s
Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Strategy.

TRADE & DEVELOPMENT BANK (TDB)
Annual Report & Financial Statements 2018
To Our
Shareholders

Port Louis, Mauritius

Sustainability
Reporting Statement
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ECONOMIC ENVIRONMENT
Eastern Africa
Southern Africa
The Wider International Economic Context

Percentage of sustained
economic growth in the
region in 2017
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Eastern Africa

The region’s current account deficit was fueled by increases

Economic
Environment

in external debt because of the favourable global financing
East Africa’s robust 2017 GDP growth continued steadily in

terms prevailing as several countries in the region successfully

2018. This was driven by a combination of factors including,

raised funds through Eurobonds. Weak revenue collection also

but not limited to, recovery from drought, continued investments

contributed to the increased fiscal deficit. As a result, several

in public infrastructure, expansion in the services sector and

countries across the region embarked on a concerted effort

strong private consumption.

to raise saving, enhance tax collection, minimize tax evasion,
and increase efficiency in public spending.

It is estimated that economic growth across Eastern Africa will
remain at a robust 5.9 percent in 2019, making it a promising

Two patterns have emerged in the region’s continued current

investment and manufacturing destination. Within the region,

account deficits. First, since almost all countries depend on

Ethiopia is in the lead as the fastest growing economy with a

primary commodities for exports, falling global commodity

predicted 8.2% growth in 2019, while Rwanda (7.8%); Tanzania

prices have negatively affected their terms of trade, resulting

(6.6%); Kenya (6%), Djibouti (5.9%) and Uganda (5.3%) follow

in the persistent current account deficits. Second, the drive

behind. In both Ethiopia and Rwanda, real GDP growth has

for rapid economic growth and the resulting high growth

been driven by industry and services. The service sector has also

have been achieved through high investment, which is above

been the main driver of growth in Tanzania and Kenya, followed

domestic savings. The internal investment–savings gap, where

by the agricultural sector, the main growth driver from the supply

investment is characterized by significant import content as

side. In countries with low growth, such as South Sudan (–3.8

well as a demand for imports that is generally inelastic, is

percent), Burundi (1.4 percent), Comoros (2.8 percent), and

strongly associated with the persistent current account deficit.

Somalia (2.9 percent), the common factor is lack of peace and

The resulting current account deficit is invariably financed by a

stability, which has disrupted economic activity.

combination of external finance, which leads to indebtedness,
and monetization, which leads to inflationary pressure. The

The prospects of sustained economic growth in the region

rising external debt in the region is in turn leading to further

remain positive, with growth projected at 5.9 percent in 2019

increases in the current account deficit through debt servicing

and 6.1 percent in 2020. In Ethiopia, infrastructure investment,

costs.

continued expansion in industry and services, sustained
agricultural recovery, planned partial privatization, the peace

Structural transformation—with its implications for employment

agreement with Eritrea and the crackdown on corruption will

and poverty reduction—is the main policy issue emerging in

continue to drive high economic growth in 2019 and 2020.

East Africa. This is because structural transformation is related to

In addition, the ongoing program to develop industrial

terms of trade deterioration, vulnerability of countries to external

parks, continuing foreign direct investment inflows, and the

shocks and indebtedness, and low-quality growth—growth

government’s productivity-enhancing investments in agriculture

that is vulnerable to global primary commodity prices, that is

are opportunities for continued economic growth.

not accompanied by structural transformation, and that has
limited effect on employment and poverty. The other significant

The region’s fiscal deficit remained low, at an estimated 4.1

policy issue is regional integration. Indeed, the prospects for

percent of GDP in 2018, comparable to the average for all

regional integration have looked bright for the past few years,

of Africa. Although the deficit was up in 2018 from 2017,

as suggested by the signing of the agreement establishing the

it is projected to drop to 3.7 percent of GDP in 2019 and

CFTA by almost all East African countries as well as by IGAD

3.5 percent in 2020. At the same time, the region’s current

member countries’ active involvement in peace and security.

account deficit was an estimated 4.9 percent of GDP in 2018,
largely unchanged from 2017, and is projected to improve

While regional integration is challenged by the slow speed

slightly in 2019 and 2020. Countries generally resorted to

of implementation of agreed commitments, it has provided

external resources, including foreign direct investment (FDI),

foundation for scaling up peace building in the region. For

remittances, aid, and borrowing, to address current account

instance, the recent peace accord between Eritrea and

deficits.

Ethiopia could advance regional integration.
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At the same time, opportunities in the recent discoveries of

For example, Lesotho had political instability and a security

natural resources are propelling integration processes.

crisis in 2015 and 2017. Angola elected a new President in

Natural gas and oil discoveries in Ethiopia, Kenya,

2017 after 38 years, and Zimbabwe in 2018 after 37 years

Tanzania, and Uganda, existing oil exploitation in South

while South Africa witnessed changes in political leadership

Sudan, Ethiopia’s large hydroelectric power potential and

likely to boost investor confidence. Botswana continues to rank

its work toward exporting power to Djibouti and Kenya, and

as a peaceful country on the global peace index, remaining

pipeline development for gas and fuel import and export in

in second place in Africa after Mauritius.

Djibouti, Ethiopia, and South Sudan are important drivers
of and opportunities for further regional integration. There

The macroeconomic environment in Southern Africa appears

is however urgent need for the countries to resolve issues

to be improving as inflation pressures are generally slowing

around complementarity in trading, low competitive position

in many countries, in single digits in 2018 except for Angola

of countries to supply goods in the region, institutional capacity

and Malawi. The increase in global oil prices feeds into the

weakness to advance regional integration and improvements

domestic prices of importing countries. Tight monetary policy

in mechanisms to address political issues related to regional

in many countries allowed them to experience somewhat low

integration.

inflation, with single digits projected for 2019 and 2020. The
depreciation of the South African rand has dragged along

Southern Africa

the Southern Africa Customs Union currencies. Due to volatility
in commodity prices and uncertainty in emerging markets

According to AfDB Economic Outlook report 2019, GDP

such as South Africa, most national currencies lost ground

growth in Southern Africa region has been sluggish, falling

against the US dollar in 2018 and are expected to continue

from 4 percent in 2010 to about 1.2 percent in 2018, with

depreciating in 2019, except for the Mauritian rupee which is

projected growth of around 2.2 percent in 2019 and 2.8

not underpinned by commodity exports.

percent in 2020, lower than in other regions. The subdued
growth is, in large part, due mainly to economic stagnation in

Public debt for 2010–18 was generally high and continues

South Africa, the largest regional economy, which has a ripple

to rise in some countries. Tighter global financial conditions

effect on neighboring countries.

and fading investor sentiment toward emerging markets
contributed to a reversal in capital inflows and to higher

The main drivers of economic growth continue to be dominated

financing costs. Public debt remains high though declining,

by services, manufacturing, and mining. Over 2011–18, the

especially in Mauritius, Mozambique, and Zambia. Exchange

macroeconomic environment was stable, with inflation below

rate depreciations in Zambia and the reporting of previously

the 7 percent convergence threshold, the fiscal deficit below 5

undisclosed debt in Mozambique contributed to the

percent of GDP, and external debt below 60 percent of GDP,

deterioration in their debt-to-GDP ratios. In 2018, government

also below the convergence target. Weak revenue collection

debt rose rapidly in Angola and Zambia, because of continued

and expenditure pressures in South Africa continue to move the

exchange rate depreciations.

fiscal deficits higher than expected. In the 2018/19 national
budget, the government estimated a gross tax revenue shortfall

In addition to the rise in debt ratios, variations in the composition

of 48.2 billion rand (about $3.4 billion). Meanwhile, spending

of debt have made many countries susceptible to changes in

continued to increase because of free higher education, poorly

financing conditions. Non-concessional financing accounted

performing state-owned enterprises (SOEs), and government

for more than 50 percent of total public debt in Zambia and

intervention to minimize the impact of slow economic growth.

Zimbabwe and more than 30 percent in Mozambique.
Debt’s sustainability has deteriorated in some Southern African
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Southern Africa has largely been peaceful, secure and is

countries. At the end of 2017, Mozambique and Zimbabwe

considered the most stable region in Africa. But there have

were classified in debt distress under the World Bank/IMF

been instances of political crises, democracy and governance

debt sustainability framework and previously moderate ratings

deficits, and even armed conflict.

for Zambia were changed to high risk of debt distress.
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Across the region, public financial management reforms

In summary, many countries will grow at declining rates

have become a pillar of fiscal policy initiatives to ensure

in 2019, dampening the overall global economic growth

sound budgeting and effective resource allocation to key

prospect. In addition to slow growth and economic

development areas. Improving domestic resource mobilization

challenges, climate-related risks that affected many countries

includes measures to widen the tax base and strengthen

in 2018 are likely to continue hampering growth prospects

revenue collection through modernizing tax administration

in 2019.

Economic
Environment

systems.
From floods, drought, fires and storms, the climate change has

The Wider International Economic Context

triggered extreme weather events that pose threats to global
food security as well as general livelihoods of people word-

The global economy remained steady in 2018, however

wide. For economies with long coastlines, weather-related

growth is expected to dip in 2019 and 2020 (Source: World

risks pose added vulnerability to rising sea-levels.

Bank), considering factors such as trade tensions, interest rate
hikes, and emerging market capital outflows. Those factors
are also coupled with weak investment and aging global
labour force. A major risk to the global economic growth
is the intensification of trade wars in 2019, with trade war
escalation likely to slow down the GDP growth further and
generate uncertainty for policymakers and businesses.
Apart from the United States and China that are experiencing
the direct negative effects of the trade wars, major economies
such as Germany and Japan are also at risk due to indirect
effects from the US-China trade tensions. The last few weeks
of 2018 saw several major developments that will have
important ramifications on the 2019 economic outlook,
such as the implications of the finalized Brexit withdrawal
agreement and the decision of the OPEC to pursue
production cuts in 2019.
Political uncertainty coupled with weakening economic
reforms could continue to affect the economic outlook in
many countries globally. Countries holding elections in
2019 such as Argentina, India, Spain, Malawi, Nigeria,
and South Africa could experience geopolitical tensions,
and domestic political considerations could undermine the
commitments needed to rein in fiscal deficits or implement
structural reforms, especially where public debt levels are
high and rising. Natural disasters such as hurricanes and
drought still pose a major threat especially to agricultural
based economies and social infrastructure development.
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TREASURY
Resource Mobilisation
Export Credit Agencies (ECAs)

Resource Mobilisation
In 2018 the Bank continued to pursue its long-term funding strategy while also addressing the funding
requirements for the year. As such, several funding initiatives were launched to raise medium to longterm funding for general corporate purposes with emphasis on debt capital market transactions, such
as regionally focused syndicated loans. The Bank continued its efforts to diversify its liquidity sources by
tapping into the Middle Eastern market an amount equivalent to US$ 340 million under both Islamic
and conventional liquidity pools. The Bank also issued an Asia focused syndicated loan in the amount
of US$ 460 million, in addition to a debut Samurai syndicated loan of USD 115 million and a JPY 4
billion tranche equivalent to USD 36 million (JPY 4 billion).
To foster infrastructure development by supporting infrastructure projects, the Bank is at an advanced
stage of closing a long-term funding amounting to US$ 400 million loan from different multi-lateral
institutions namely European Investment Bank, African Development Bank, and Industrial Development
Corporation (IDC) of South Africa. As part of its strategy to raise innovative funding, the Bank is

USD 460 M

syndicated loan in
addition to a debut
Samurai syndicated
loan of USD 115
million.

PAGE 26

collaborating with European Investment Bank to raise a long tenor Green Bond to fund its fast-growing
renewable energy project pipeline. Furthermore, the Bank embarked on the exploration of other new
and innovative funding structures including blended finance, Islamic financing, and credit enhanced
borrowings with a view to optimize its funding mix and leverage.
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Looking forward, the Bank expects to benefit from improved

The Bank had two primary areas of focus in its ECA-backed

liquidity in Emerging markets on slowdown in global economic

fund sourcing activities: resource mobilisation and structuring

growth as communicated in reports by the European Central

of ECA-backed transactions. Accordingly, the Bank executed

Bank and the Federal Reserve Bank, and in the World Bank

the following ECA backed loan facilities worth about USD 260

Economic Outlook. The Bank anticipates improved economic

million to support European content imports to the TDB region:

performance in its Member States mainly due to infrastructure
spending, rising export commodity prices, improved policies,

• USD 133 million from KfW IPEX Bank and Pfandbriefbank

and improved trade environment. Given such background, the

(Germany) backed by major European ECAs fronted by

Bank tapped into the Eurobond market in April 2019 and raised

Germany’s Euler Hermes to support aircraft importation;

USD 500 million at an improved coupon rate compared to
two years ago when the Bank was last in the Eurobond market.

• USD 57 million Finnvera-backed ECA facility from

Further, the Bank intends to delve more into the syndicated loan

Sumitomo Mitsui Banking Corporation Europe to support

markets at the earliest window of opportunity to raise new

importation of Finnish content; and

funding and refinance existing debt with a view of extending
tenors and locking in lower fixed rates. To further diversify its
funding sources, the Bank will continue to explore opportunities
for issuing local currency bonds in its Member States.

Export Credit Agencies (ECAS)
The Bank continued to deepen its partnerships with leading
Export Credit Agencies (ECAs) affiliated with the Organisation
for Economic Co-operation and Development (OECD) as
well as ECA-backed international financial institutions from
across Asia, Europe, and the Americas, by entering into
bilateral medium to long-term credit facilities. This aggressive
business development drive leveraging the Bank’s unique

• USD 70 million from JSC Development Bank of Republic
of Belarus backed by Belarus Eximgarant credit line to
support importation of various equipment from Belarus.
Furthermore, the Bank also received ECA credit line offers
from major ECAs amounting to a total of USD 450 million,
including USD 350 million from Japan Bank for International
Cooperation (JBIC) and Nippon Export and Investment
Insurance (NEXI), and USD 100 million from US Export
Import Bank (US-EXIM). It is worth noting that the JBIC-NEXI
credit line will be the first of its kind to support longer-tenored
infrastructure projects in the region.

position, strategic partnerships, and investment grade status
culminated in the development of a deal pipeline for ECAbacked transactions in excess of USD1 billion.
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CO-FINANCING AND SYNDICATIONS

Under the Corporate Plan, the Bank set out to become a key regional co-financing partner and leading
arranger of syndicated loans in eastern and southern Africa, in line with the strategy to leverage African
and global capital to support trade and economic development in Member States. Further, as part of
its proactive portfolio management and capital optimization strategy, the Bank has become an active
participant in the secondary loan markets in Africa.
To implement this strategy, the Bank has been driving a co-financing and leveraging strategy with the
following key deliverables:
• Leveraging international financing into Member States by mobilizing funds from African and global
development finance institutions (DFIs), export credit agencies (ECAs), commercial banks, and debt
and pension funds;
• Proactively managing the Bank’s loan asset portfolio to mitigate obligor, sector, and geographic
concentration to ensure adherence to prudential limits and provide room for the booking of new

2.1 B

Amount mobilized by the
Bank from the syndicated
loan market.

PAGE 28

assets and generating incremental fee income;
• Generating fee income through arrangement, underwriting, and other syndication related fees
streams;
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Lending
Operations

• Mobilising liquidity from the syndicated loans market; and
• Introducing the Bank’s clients to global debt and capital
markets.
Operationally, in addition to regular co-financing, the Bank
has adopted the “Originate to Distribute or OTD” asset
origination, booking, and risk distribution model, to optimise
the Bank’s capital and liquidity resources. This OTD platform is
supported by best-in-class global market standards, systems,
and procedures.
Over the last two years, the Bank has arranged USD 2.6
billion in syndicated loans for sovereign and corporate
clients in Member States. And by leveraging an expanded
network of investors and partners, comprised of global and
regional commercial banks, development finance partners,
insurance companies, and mutual funds, the Bank mobilized
USD 1.2 billion from the syndicated loan market, representing
a leverage ratio of USD 2 for every dollar the Bank invested
in syndicated loans arranged during the period.

In this regard, the Bank has worked closely with 13 different
banks and financial institutions across Africa, Asia, Europe
and the Gulf Region.
The Bank continues to be a key strategic partner to sovereign
Member States by mobilising capital through syndicated loans
to support infrastructure investments and strategic imports. Over
the period of 2017-2018, the Bank successfully arranged
syndicated loans for the Governments of Kenya, Zambia,
and Uganda.
Under the Sovereign Infrastructure Lending Program category,
TDB has emerged as a leading market participant in the African
Syndicated Loans League Tables, closing 2018 as one of the
top ranked Bookrunners (Ranked no. 8) and Agent (ranked
no.13) in the Bloomberg Global Syndicated Loans League
Tables (Sub-Saharan Africa Borrower Loans Category).
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FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE
Assets

Operating Expenditure

Liabilities

Impairment

Capital

Profitability

Financial Strength Indicators

Cairo, Egypt

www.depositphotos.com

Income

Income
In 2018, the Bank grew its interest income by 31% to USD 361.59 million from USD 276.01 million in
2017. The increase is attributed to the 9% growth in both the Project Finance and Trade Finance loan
portfolios. Trade Finance contributed 57% of interest income.
Total interest and similar expense increased by 36% from USD 150.38 million in 2017 to USD 205.19
million in 2018. Interest expense on long-term and short-term borrowings rose by 38% from USD 143.85
million in 2017 to USD 198.47 million, due to the rise in the cost of borrowing, reflecting the rise in
LIBOR as well as the USD 142.43 million increase in total borrowings. The 4% growth in borrowings
is in line with the 6% growth in the Bank’s total assets. Other borrowing costs increased marginally by
3% from USD 6.52 million in 2017 to USD 6.72 million
Consequently, net interest income grew by 24% to USD 156.40 million, from USD 125.64 in 2017.
Net fees and commission income decreased by 22% to USD 44.19 million in 2018, from USD 56.80
million in 2017. Trade Finance fees comprise facility fees, letter of credit fees, management fees,

36%

Increase in total interest
and similar expense
amounting to USD
205.19 million in 2018
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drawdown fees, document handling fees, and other fees; while Project Finance fees comprise appraisal
fees, facility fees, restructuring fees, commitment fees, letter of credit fees, management fees, and other
fees.
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Operating Expenditure

Risk mitigation costs for 2018 (comprising risk down-selling and

Financial
Performance

insurance costs) amounted to USD 34.54 million, compared
Operating expenditure increased from USD 30.78 million in
2017 to USD 40.71 million in 2018. The increase resulted from
the Bank’s strategic initiatives to expand operational capacity
with a new coverage and business development model as well
as strengthened lending, asset management and syndications
operations.

to USD 37.39 million in 2017, an 8% improvement. The costs
of risk down-selling represent fees paid to acquirers of loan
assets distributed through the secondary market, in the context
of the Bank’s secondary loan trading and asset distribution
activities to manage obligor, sector, and geographic prudential
limits. Down-selling also provides the Bank with room to book
new assets and generate incremental fee income. Insurance,

Impairment

on the other hand, assists the Bank to receive capital relief
while serving as a risk mitigant against credit and currency

Impairment on Project Finance and Trade Finance loans
decreased by 9%, from USD 25.32 million in 2017 to USD
23.16 million. The charge for 2018 was reduced following
adoption of the IFRS 9 -Financial Instruments accounting
standard in January 2018, which resulted in an excess in
general provisions. The impairment provision in 2018 is based
on a comprehensive review of the portfolio carried out by
the Bank in December 2018 as well as utilisation of IFRS
9 Expected Credit Loss (ECL) model to derive the general
provisions.

convertibility and externalisation risks. Since December 2016,
the Bank has been insuring 60% of its callable capital, credit
enhancing it, and effectively improving the average rating
of its key shareholders. These risk mitigation measures are
considered part of the Bank’s overall credit positive initiatives
and have contributed to the Bank attaining investment grade
rating.
Operating income increased by 10% to USD 173.53 million in
2018, from USD 157.63 million in 2017. The increase resulted
mainly from growth in interest income in 2018 as discussed

Profitability

above.
The Bank made a net profit of USD 129.33 million for the year
2018, which is an increase of 16% from USD 111.86 million
in 2017. This compares favourably with the annual budget of
USD 110.13 million. The 16% growth in profitability over 2017
is attributable mainly to the increased interest income. The ROE
and ROA have decreased modestly from 12.04% and 2.35%
in 2017 to 11.57% and 2.45% respectively in 2018.

The chart below depicts the Bank’s gross interest, net interest,
fee, and operating income over a five-year period.

The graph below illustrates the Bank’s profitability and
profitability ratios over the five years to 2018.
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Assets

Liabilities

The Bank grew its total assets by 6% over 2017 to
USD 5.56 billion. Of the USD 292.87 million total asset
growth, USD 194.44 million is attributable to Project
Finance loans, whose net balance increased to USD 1.43
billion, 16% up from USD 1.24 billion in 2017, due to new
disbursements net of repayments. Trade Finance loans grew
by USD 162.20 million, a 6% increase from USD 2.57 billion
in 2017 to USD 2.73 billion as a result of disbursements net of
repayments made during the year. The Bank’s net loan book
grew year-over-year by 9%.

The Bank’s total liabilities grew marginally by 3% to

Cash and cash equivalents decreased by 7% from
USD 1.23 billion in 2017 to USD 1.15 billion due to settlement
of maturing obligations as well as funding of disbursements
during the year while maintaining a healthy liquidity buffer.
Equity investments increased by 28% from USD 40.63 million
in 2017 to USD 51.91 million due to fair valuation methodology
(as opposed to cost-based valuation) used in 2018 following
the Bank’s adoption of the IFRS 9 - Financial Instruments
accounting standard in January 2018. Other receivables
increased by USD 10.66 million in 2018 to USD 117.14 million
from the USD 106.48 level in 2017.

USD 4.37 billion from USD 4.24 billion in 2017. Short-term
borrowings increased marginally by 3% from USD 2.31 billion
in 2017 to USD 2.38 billion, while long-term borrowings
increased by USD 74 million from USD 1.71 billion in 2017
to USD 1.78 billion in 2018. Borrowings were received from
various lenders and counterparties during the year to fund the
Bank’s business and to maintain an optimal liquidity buffer.
Collection account deposits decreased by USD 8.22 million
to USD 119.58 million mainly due to reduction in funds in
some local currency accounts. Collection account balances
represent cash deposited by trade finance clients as part of
the facility structure to service maturing instalments. Foreign
currency risk on any such local bank account is borne by the
clients. Balances of collection accounts are included in the
Bank’s cash balances.

Capital
The Bank’s shareholders’ funds grew by 17% to USD 1.19 billion
from USD 1.02 billion in 2017. Of the USD 170.99 million

The chart below depicts the growth in the Bank’s Project
Finance loans and Trade Finance loans, cash, and total assets
over the last five years.

increase in total equity over 2017, USD 38.05 million was
in the form of capital subscriptions including share premium
while USD 97.64 million resulted from retained earnings for the
year. A dividend distribution of USD 31.68 million is proposed
for 2018, which works at 24.5% of the profit for the year. A
further USD 31.02 million is held in the fair value reserve and
management reserve which were created in 2018. The fair

ASSET COMPOSITION

value reserve arose from adoption of IFRS 9 by the Bank while

5,500

the management reserve was created with board approval

5,000

for cushioning incidents of significant losses.
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The graph below presents the growth in the Bank’s shareholders’
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SHAREHOLDER’S FUNDS

Financial
Performance
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The Bank’s shareholders’ funds grew by
17% to USD 1.19 billion from USD 1.02
billion in 2017.
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Financial Strength Indicators
The table below depicts the Bank’s major ratios for the year to December 2018 compared to 2017.
			
DECEMBER, 2018

DECEMBER, 2017

PROFITABILITY RATIOS
1

Return on Capital Employed

11.57%

12.04%

2

Return on assets

2.45%

2.35%

3

Net profit margin

31.29%

32.39%

4

Net Interest Margin

3.96%

3.48%

EFFICIENCY RATIOS
5

Operating costs to Total Income

15.45%

16.24%

6

Administration Costs/Total Income

9.85%

8.91%

7

Staff Costs/Total Income

6.52%

5.94%

349%

394%

LEVERAGE RATIOS
8

Total debt to equity ratio

9

Total capital and reserves to Total Assets

21.4%

19.4%

10

Total capital and reserves to Gross Loans

27.89%

26.09%

11

Capital Adequacy Ratio

35.40%

37.10%

OTHER PERFORMANCE INDICATORS
12

Liquidity Ratio

20.62%

23.42%

13

Gross NPL Ratio

2.35%

2.39%

14

NPL coverage ratio

108.22%

114.92%

15

NPL coverage ratio-Specific

98.75%

77.26%
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OPERATIONS COMPLEX
Trade Finance
Project and Infrastructure Finance (PIF)

Trade Finance
Trade Finance (TF) remains the short-term financing window of the Bank and a focus area in its mandate
through which strategic and vital imports into member states are financed or co-financed with a view
to foster intra and extra-regional trade.

www.depositphotos.com

During the year under review, the Bank pursued business activities in line with its strategic focus
namely: portfolio diversification by geography, sector, and product as well as penetration into new
and underserved markets of Mozambique, Swaziland, Madagascar, and South Sudan. The Bank
approved and commenced implementation of a financial institutions (FI) strategy that was launched
in 2018. During the year under review, the FI strategy recorded positive impact in Ethiopia, Tanzania,
and Zambia and its roll out continues.
To achieve sustainable growth and respond to the changing landscape of more open account
transactions and less letter-of-credit-backed transactions, the Bank’s trade finance business continued
its focus on diversification of products with the introduction of receivables financing, invoice discounting,
and other supplier finance-based solutions. These interventions are targeted towards high impact sectors
such as agri-business, energy, manufacturing, and financial services, in line with strategic priorities of
the Bank’s member states.

Total Gross Portfolio
The first year of executing the new Corporate Plan saw implementation of a new TF model that
underpinned the growth momentum gained in the fourth quarter of 2018. During 2018, TF total gross
portfolio stood at USD 2.81 billion representing a 6% year-over-year growth from USD 2.65 billion
achieved in 2017 driven by disbursements net of repayments made during the year. To further boost
and diversify the TF portfolio, the Bank has introduced open account-based solutions such as invoice
discounting and receivables financing.

Exposure by Country
Geographically, the largest exposures in the TF portfolio were in Zambia (24%, USD 670.6 million)
followed by Sudan (22%, USD 611.1 million) Zimbabwe (16%, USD 441.4 million) and Malawi (16%,
USD 439.3 million). The remaining 23% of total exposure was spread across other Member states
namely Ethiopia, Rwanda, Tanzania, Uganda, Kenya and Egypt.
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TF Gross Exposure by Country

Project And Infrastructure Finance (PIF)

Operations
Complex

The Bank continued to execute its lending strategy for
the Project and Infrastructure Finance business segment
throughout its entire geographic footprint in line with the new
Corporate Plan. Diversification by geography, sector, and
product underpinned the Bank’s operations in that segment.
Priority sectors in 2018 included infrastructure, agribusiness,
manufacturing, and energy. Geographically, PIF focused
on new and underserved markets (Mozambique, Djibouti,
Madagascar, Swaziland, and DRC) as well as markets where
the Bank has low concentration.

Total Gross Portfolio
PIF gross loans exposure stood at USD 1.46 billion, representing
15% year-over-year growth against USD 1.27 billion in 2017.
Egypt 1%

Sudan 6%

The largest exposure was Kenya at 43% (USD 624.1 million)

Zimbabwe 16%

Rwanda 7%

followed by Rwanda at 18% (USD 264.0 million), Mauritius

Zambia 24%

Malawi 16%

9% (USD 128.1 million and Zimbabwe 8% (USD 113.2 million).

Uganda 3%

Kenya 1%

The chart below presents the geographical distribution of gross

Tanzania 6%

Ethiopia 4%

PIF loans as at 31 December 2018.

Strategy Execution
The Bank’s trade finance activities focused on product

PIF Exposure by Country

diversification and targeted financial institutions to enhance
the Bank’s role in financial intermediation to reach SMEs in the
region. In addition, the Bank also identified new major supply
chains in the agriculture, manufacturing, and construction
sectors for products such as forfaiting, invoice discounting,
and receivables financing. Geographic diversification and
penetration into new and underserved markets continued to
be a theme throughout 2018.
The Bank also identified an opportunity to grow the trade
finance business by consciously deepening the level of
relationships with several existing clients. The idea behind this
approach, the Delta Model, is for the Bank to embed itself
deeply within its clients’ businesses so as to serve them better.
Kenya 43%

Burundi 1%

Mauritius 9%

Zambia 1%

Rwanda 18%

Zimbabwe 8%

Sudan 3%

Ethiopia 5%

Tanzania 3%

Djibouti 3%

Uganda 6%
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COVERAGE BUSINESS MODEL
Franco-Lusophone Coverage Region
Southern Africa Coverage Region
North East Africa Coverage Region
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Maputo, Mozambique

East Africa Coverage Region

The implementation of the hybrid coverage-product model began in January 2018 in line with the new
Corporate Plan. The coverage-product model was approved by the Board of Directors in 2017 with
the goal of advancing the Bank’s diversification thrust and sub-regional presence for new business
generation, while further improving the quality of the Bank’s portfolio. It was recognized that the
coverage-product model, an enhancement to the existing structure, would enable the Bank to increase
its deal pipeline and improve Member States’ access to the Bank.
The most visible manifestation of the coverage-product model is through the establishment of coverage
areas. Currently there are four coverage areas, namely: North East Africa, East Africa, Southern
Africa (Anglophone), and Franco-Lusophone Africa. The coverage areas work in tandem with the
product specialist teams for trade finance and project and infrastructure finance housed under Lending
Operations.

Franco-Lusophone Coverage Region
The Franco-Lusophone coverage region covers the following countries: Burundi, Comoros, Democratic
Republic of Congo, Madagascar, Mauritius, Mozambique, and Seychelles. The establishment of the
coverage model enables the Bank to increase its volume of activities in the covered countries, as the
coverage team was focused on strengthening existing relationships and developing news ones.
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Southern Africa Coverage Region

East Africa Coverage Region

The Southern Africa coverage region includes Eswatini,

The East Africa coverage region covers Kenya, Rwanda,

Malawi, Zambia, and Zimbabwe. The focus of 2018 activities

Tanzania, and Uganda. Economic performance of the

in the region was around supporting the management of the

region is characterized by the fact that the economies are

existing portfolio, which accounts for approximately 25% of

reliant on a well diversified mix of sectors: mining, services,

the Bank’s loan portfolio, and deepening relationships in the

financial services, manufacturing, and agriculture. The Bank’s

markets and developing client-centric solutions. Sectors of focus

coverage activities in the region focused on originating and

for new business generation included transport infrastructure,

converting new opportunities while positioning the Bank to take

power, and agribusiness.

advantage of a strong demand for its products in the region.
The Bank is well-positioned to continue being a significant

North East Africa Coverage Region

lender in the region, as demand for investments in infrastructure
is expected to continue and commercial banks continue to
experience funding deficits.

The North East Africa region is comprised of Djibouti, Egypt,
Ethiopia, Eritrea (inactive), Somalia (inactive), Sudan, and
South Sudan. The economic performance of this coverage
Bujumbura, Burundi

region during the year under review is largely a reflection of
the considerable diversity of the countries. The activities of the
coverage team in North East in 2018 focused on growing the
Bank’s exposure to the region to further drive diversification of
the Bank’s portfolio. The growth was achieved by deepening

Cairo, Egypt

existing relationships and establishing new ones.
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PORTFOLIO MANAGEMENT
Portfolio Split by Sector

Portfolio Split by Business Segment

Asset Quality

Portfolio Split by Client Segment

Focus 2019

Antananarivo, Madagascar

Portfolio Overview

Portfolio Overview
During the year under review, the Bank’s overall portfolio risk profile has remained commendable largely
due to a strong and enhanced risk management framework, including proactive and timely measures
taken to mitigate unsustainable risks expected from an adverse credit environment.
The Bank has maintained a sustainable portfolio growth momentum, well-aligned to its financial
performance and impactful interventions within its coverage markets. The Bank’s risk bearing capacity
and portfolio quality continues to be driven by the Bank wide integrated enterprise risk management
framework supported by the Credit Risk function and a dedicated and highly experienced portfolio
management team. The Bank’s has institutionalized credit risk governance, improved portfolio risk
reporting and monitoring. This management approach is complemented by regular portfolio reviews
and proactive action on emerging early warning signals, measures that have sustained overall portfolio
quality.

Portfolio split by business segment
In line with the Bank’s managed growth strategy, 2018 was a year of consolidation and increased
portfolio diversification. The overall gross portfolio grew by 9% in 2018, closing at USD 4.27 billion
as at 31st December 2018. Compared to 2017, Trade Finance (TF) loans grew by 6%, while Project
and Infrastructure Finance loans grew by 15%. Growth in Project and Infrastructure Financing (PIF) is
attributable to continued support to sovereign infrastructure projects and programs.
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Portfolio Split By Client Segment

The graph below shows the trend on TF and PIF gross portfolios

Portfolio
Management

between 2015 and 2018.
As at 31st December 2018, sovereign lending represented
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63% of the Bank’s portfolio, at USD 2.8 billion, up from
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Year
Project Finance

Trade Finance

The graph below shows the portfolio split by client segment
as at 31st December 2018. The gross portfolio split by client
type as at 31st December 2018 was as follows: the sovereign
portfolio was at 67.9%, made up of government-backed
facilities at 48.4% and loans to public enterprises at 19.5%.

Trend on Gross Balance Sheet Exposure - Sovereign vs Non Sovereign
(2015-2018)
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Within the non-sovereign portfolio, the large enterprises
comprise 22.3%, while banks and financial institutions stood
at 5.2%. Small and Medium Enterprises (SMEs) comprised
close to 5% of the portfolio, a slight improvement from the 4%
level in the previous year. The new Financial Institutions Strategy
remained unchanged from the previous year at about 5% of
the portfolio.
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Portfolio Mix, 31st December 2018

Portfolio
Management

Large Enterprises / Corporations, 22.3%

Medium & Small Enterprises, 4.6%
Government & Public Enterprises, 67.9%

Banks & Financial Institutions, 5.2%

The graph above shows the Bank’s portfolio mix as at 31st

On average, exposure to the infrastructure sector grew by

December 2018 by client segments.

82% over the three-year period to 31st December 2018. This
is attributable to the Bank’s support to infrastructure projects

Portfolio Split by Sector

and programs of governments and funding of essential ICT
and Energy sector projects in the coverage market. This aligns

Gross portfolio sector concentration mirrors the essential

with the Bank’s Corporate Plan’s thrust to support infrastructure

interventions aligned to the Bank’s coverage market. The top

in Member States in the areas of power, transport and ICT.

three sectors include Oil and Gas (33%), Agribusiness (25%),

Further, the Bank continues to seek diversification opportunities,

and Infrastructure (14%).

by sector, borrower type and country. The graph below shows
portfolio split by sector for the period (2015 – 2018).

ICT 3%

Wholesale Commodities 2%
Transport Logistics 6%

Infrastructure 14%

Loan Distribution Per Sector

Agribusiness
25%

Banking & Financial Services
5%

Real Estate 1%

Hospitality
5%
Mannufacturing and Heavy Industries
5%

Oil & Gas 33%

PAGE 40

Energy
5%

TRADE & DEVELOPMENT BANK (TDB)
Annual Report & Financial Statements 2018
To Our
Shareholders

Asset Quality

In 2018, the Bank adopted IFRS 9, so credit impairments

Portfolio
Management

moved to a lifetime expected credit loss approach from an
The overall portfolio quality continued to improve, with a

incurred basis. Impairment allowance coverage was 108.22%

significant portion of the loan book ranked in the low risk

as at 31st December 2018.

category. The NPL ratio remains acceptable at 2.35% as at
31st December 2018, an improvement from 2.39% in 2017.
Trend on Portfolio Vs Asset Quality
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The Bank continues to pursue proactive credit risk management

Total NPL as a % of Total Loans

Linear (Total Loans)

Focus 2019

strategies to select quality assets at entry and to forestall
asset deterioration post-investment. The workout team within

The Bank will continue to pro-actively monitor the portfolio

the Portfolio Management function recommends remedial

to forestall adverse credit migrations and maintain high

solutions to projects in distress, considering the need to maintain

asset quality. The process will entail a review and update of

the intended development impact, while recovering maximum

Portfolio Management, Workout and Recoveries procedures

value for the Bank. The workout team engages with co-lenders,

and interventions in line with the changes in the Bank’s Credit

directors, and other relevant stakeholders in designing optimal

Policy and the IFRS 9 standard.

solutions.
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COMPLIANCE AND
RISK MANAGEMENT
Overview and Executive Summary
Risk Review for the Year

Nairobi, Kenya

Focus for 2019

Overview and Executive Summary
The Risk Management Complex, under the leadership of the Chief Risk Officer, comprises the Compliance
Unit, the Enterprise Risk Management Unit, and the Credit Risk Management Department. The Risk
Management Complex is responsible for implementing the Risk Management Policy Framework (RMF),
which stipulates how the Bank manages risk throughout the organization.
The RMF identifies processes, holds ownership of, and is responsible for, the risk oversight required to
support effective implementation of risk management across the Bank. Effective risk management is
fundamental to the business activities of the Bank.
While the Bank remains committed to increasing shareholder value by developing and growing its
business within the Board-determined risk appetite, due consideration is given to the interests of all
stakeholders in pursuing this objective. The Bank therefore seeks to achieve an appropriate balance
between risk and reward in its business, and hence, continues to build and enhance the risk management
capabilities that assist in delivering the growth plans within a controlled environment. The Bank operates
in a risk environment of growing uncertainty. The Risk Management Complex focuses on the management
of Volatility, Uncertainty, Complexity, and Ambiguity (VUCA) at all times to assist in visualising, assessing,
and mitigating the risks that may threaten its mission and avoid surprises.
The overall responsibility of risk management within the Bank rests with the Board of Directors, while
the day-to-day responsibility is delegated to a Bank wide Integrated Risk Management Committee
(BIRMC), which reviews and summarises the entire risk universe.
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The Board also delegates high-level risk functions to the Audit
and Risk Committee (ARCO), and the Investment and Credit
Standing Committee (INVESCO), with each committee
focusing on distinct aspects of risk management. Accountability
for risk management resides at all levels within the Bank
(everyone is a “risk manager”), from the top executive to each
business manager and staff member.

The third risk category is ‘Operational Risk’ that arises passively
in the course of carrying out business. Compliance Risk, which
is increasingly becoming important in terms of likelihood
and impact, is categorised as a sub component under the
Operational Risk category. These risks were well managed
throughout the year.

Compliance and
Risk Management

Risk Review for the Year

During the year under review, the Bank continued to base its
risk management framework on a well-established governance

The global economy continues to be volatile and under

process, with different lines of defence. The framework relied

stress, and the Bank’s ongoing commitment to sound risk

on individual responsibility and collective oversight, supported

management has proved to be effective, as reflected in the

by a comprehensive reporting and escalation process.

financial performance and strong capital position which is

The industry standard “three lines of defence” model is

losses.

embedded in the Bank’s operating model. The first line of
defence, Line Management, is responsible for risk management.
The Risk Management function represents the second line of
defence, which is independent of Line Management. The Risk
Management function is accountable for establishing and
maintaining the Bank’s risk management framework, as well
as for providing risk oversight and independent reporting of
risks to senior management and the Board.
The third line of defence consists of Internal Auditors who
provide an independent assessment of the adequacy and
effectiveness of the control environment. The Internal Auditors
report independently to the Board Audit and Risk Committee
(ARCO).

considered adequate to support growth and cover potential

The Bank has a well-diversified portfolio, achieved through the
continuous process of balancing risks and rewards, as well as
prudent approaches to credit risk management, while staying
true to the Bank’s development mandate. This was reflected in
the quality of the portfolio assets.
The portfolio was also well-cushioned for expected losses,
with specific provisions for the NPL portfolio improving
to 100% (2017: 77%), above the recommended minimum
policy threshold of 70%. Overall provision coverage, including
performing loan provisions was at 108%, versus 115%, in 2017,
against a minimum policy threshold of 100%.
Active credit portfolio management led to improved
diversification of exposure concentrations at country, sector,

The Bank’s Enterprise-wide Risk Management (ERM)

and obligor level, which were well within set risk appetite

framework places emphasis on accountability, responsibility,

parameters. Portfolio stress testing and scenario analysis

independence, reporting, communication, and transparency.

techniques were applied to ensure considered output buffers

The ERM approach to risk management takes a holistic view

and management actions under the stressed scenarios in

of the risks inherent in the Bank’s strategy, operations, and

order to withstand shocks and stay within the risk appetite

business. And the management of risks is embedded into the

parameters. The foregoing will continue to be an area of focus

mainstream planning, business, and decision-making process.

as the Bank endeavours to actualise the new Corporate Plan.

The risk universe comprises eight key risk categories that are

During 2018, the following specific interventions were aimed

managed, measured, and reported on by all functions across

at enhancing the credit risk management capacity:

the Bank. The Bank classifies the eight risk categories into three
broad types of risks. The first type and main risk category being

a) Implementation of the Bank’s Credit Risk Appetite

‘Credit Risk’, followed by ‘Market Risk’, which together are

Statement aimed at effective portfolio management to

taken to actively generate profits.

mitigate the extent of maximum credit losses that can
be absorbed within the core lending activities while
optimizing returns against capital held.
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The credit risk appetite will be achieved through a

onboarding new business unless exceptionally considered

mandate and limits framework to meet the following

with mitigation.

objectives:
• Limit concentration risk at country, sector and obligor
and risk groups level;

The ratings are differentiated below:
• 1-7: Very Low Risk/Investment grade

• Keep business activities within agreed mandates;

• 8-10: Low Risk

• Ensure activities remain of an appropriate scale

• 11-12: Moderate Risk

relative to the underlying risk and reward;
• Ensure risk taking is supported by appropriate

• 13-14: High Risk
• 15-17: Very High Risk/Default

expertise and capabilities
The Bank also continued to record substantial progress in the
b) Embedding the Country Risk Framework, by enabling the

management of operational risk with the tools in the Operational

Bank to determine risk differentiated country risk appetite

Risk Management system (ORM) called ‘Accelerate’. The

limits that consider country risk rating scores adjusted for

ORM system has enhanced the implementation of Risk Control

debt absorption capacity and Bank exposure strategy for

Self-Assessments (RCSAs); operational risk assessment; control

each country.
The country risk framework also considers the Bank’s
experience in doing business on the continent, and the
alignment of the developmental mandate in the Member
States.
c) Implementing the Loan Origination System (LOS) to
enhance integration, efficiency, and effectiveness in the
credit life cycle from onboarding through to disbursement.
A new credit system called Credit Quest was successfully
implemented during the period under review.
d) Enhancing and differentiating the obligor risk ratings
through the Rating Tools as part of the LOS.
The Bank implemented 7 rating models to determine
probability of default (PD) and Loss Given Default (LGD)
as well as eligibility criteria for each borrower. The rating
models’ outputs are differentiated ratings as inputs to credit
risk appetite setting, approval limits, pricing, as well as
provisioning requirements.
The risk rating models are: (i) Financial institutions; (ii)
Sovereign model; (iii) General Corporates; (iv) Greenfield
Industrials; (v) Greenfield Infrastructure; (vi) Power –
Renewable and (vii) Power - Conventional.
The Bank also implemented a new borrower rating scale
of 1-17 as described below, with 12 being the cut-off for
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The Compliance Unit maintained its momentum in having an

Focus for 2019

Compliance and
Risk Management

independent review of the Bank’s Anti-Money Laundering
and Combating the Financing of Terrorism (AML/CFT) and

The dynamic and continually evolving nature of risk requires

Sanctions policies.

that the Bank similarly continues to enhance and evolve its risk
management capabilities.

The monitoring of the Bank’s compliance objectives will
ensure that the Bank conducts its business in compliance

The risk focus in 2019 remains to ensure that the Bank’s financial

with applicable laws and regulations, its Board of Directors’

and strategic objectives are achieved in line with the Bank’s

directives, and its internal policies and procedures.

mandate, and within approved levels of risk appetite. This will
include the alignment of the function to the Bank’s managed

The compliance culture within the Bank and amongst

growth strategy, to drive the actualisation of the desired

its customers has been embraced and boosted by the

risk appetite, and the relatively new front office Coverage

appointment of additional AML/CFT and Sanctions

Operating Model, to ensure efficient service delivery to clients.

(wo)men’ resource of the department in the enforcement of

The risk of geopolitical events in the countries in which the Bank

the compliance function. This was further facilitated by an

operates, leading to an increase in impairments and reducing

upgrade in the Bank’s AML/CFT and Sanctions automated

financing opportunities, remains the single largest risk facing

screening solution, combined with targeted trainings for both

the Bank. In this regard, the Bank will continue to pursue its

the Champions and business departments.

portfolio diversification strategy in 2019 and beyond.

Victoria Falls, Zambia & Zimbabwe

champions (“Champions”) in various departments, as the ‘key
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HUMAN RESOURCES
AND ADMINISTRATION
Office Premises

Training and Development

Staff Profile

Six Sigma

TDB Academy

Administration

Information Technology

www.depositphotos.com

Recruitment

The year 2018 marked the first year of the Bank’s new Corporate Plan. Throughout the year, various
institutional capacity building initiatives were implemented to attract, develop, and retain a talented
and motivated workforce needed to deliver the objectives established through the Corporate Plan.

Recruitment
Through a competitive selection process, 19 new and existing positions were filled in various departments.
Additionally, in 2018 the Bank recruited 29 professionals through the Young Professionals Program
(YPP) and Mid-Career Program (MCP). Some of the positions filled included Advisor, Public Sector
Capital Markets & Syndications, Senior Legal Officer, Senior Communications Officer, Environmental
& Social Management Specialist, Records Management Officer, and Principal Coverage Officer,
amongst others.

Training And Development
During 2018, through the Human Resources and Administration Department, the Bank provided
various staff training workshops, seminars, and management development programs to enhance core
competencies, technical skills, and knowledge, especially in support of the new coverage product
model. The training programs covered a variety of topics, including trade finance, financial modelling,
deal structuring & ecosystem client planning, and forfaiting. The eLearning online training platform
continued to provide several specialist and personal development courses for all staff members. In
addition, IT technical skills enhancement was addressed through the Bank’s eLearning platform and
formal classroom training.
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In-house skill capacity constraints were also addressed

Further to a decision of the Board of Directors and considering

through an outsourcing model, specifically in the support and

the establishment of the Mauritius office as the Bank’s second

enhancement of the SAP Enterprise Resource Planning system.

principal office, the Bank partnered with African Reinsurance

Furthermore, 2018 saw the launch of the “TDB Academy,” with

Corporation (Africa Re) in Ebene to jointly purchase a seven-

the objective of developing and delivering professional training

storey building strategically situated in the Cybercity at Ebène,

to support TDB’s mandate and strategic objectives.

where many businesses and corporations in the banking and

Human
Resources and
Administration

finance industry are based. The property is expected to be

Six Sigma

functional in the third quarter of 2019.

In line with TDB’s strategic objectives to further develop the

In addition, the Government of the Democratic Republic of

Bank’s human capital and achieve highest levels of operational

Congo provided TDB, African Trade Insurance Agency (ATI),

excellence, the Human Resources and Administration

and ZEP-RE (PTA Reinsurance Company) a plot of land in

Department spearheaded the implementation of the Lean

a prime location in the centre of Kinshasa for the purpose

Six Sigma methodology with the aim of improving business

of establishing a joint administrative building for the three

effectiveness and efficiency. Six projects were implemented

institutions. Pending development of the office building, the

using the DMAIC methodology (i.e., Define, Measure,

Government of the Democratic Republic of Congo also

Analyze, Improve, and Control) and another seven are

provided to the three institutions temporary office space in a

in process. The completed projects were primarily aimed

commercial tower in the centre of Kinshasa for the establishment

at improving turnaround time on areas of loan approvals,

of respective country offices.

disbursements, recruitment, IT services, and other internal
processes.

Staff Profile

Administration

As of the end of 2018, the Bank had a total staff of 139, out
of which 103 employees were professionals, representing

During 2018, through the Human Resources and Administration

73% of the workforce. The ratio of female employees stood

function, the Bank continued to improve administrative practices

at 44% of the workforce.

and pursue cost-cutting measures. New policies were
introduced, automated administrative services were revamped,

TDB Academy

and business processes were improved. The Human Resources
and Administration function continued to provide planned

In July 2018, the Bank launched the TDB Academy as a

procurement of goods and services and other logistical and

key strategic initiative in the new Corporate Plan, for the

administrative support services, including transport, protocol, and

overarching goal of developing and delivering professional

insurance services. In carrying out of these activities, emphasis

training to support the Bank’s mandate and strategic policy

was placed on efficiency and value for money.

issues.

Office Premises

The TDB Academy is being rolled out in two phases. The first
phase (2018-2020) is focusing on delivering training to TDB

During the year under review, the Bank made significant

staff, whereas in Phase II (from 2021), the TDB Academy will

progress in the development of a 19 storey office building

develop its own self-supporting academic programmes and

in Nairobi. Several milestones were achieved in relation to

start generating its own revenues.

the process of selecting the main contractor, including due
diligence, KYC exercise, price and contract negotiations,

During the year under review, the TDB Academy explored

and appointment of the main contractor. After a competitive

opportunities to eventually seek accreditation internationally

selection process, the tender was awarded to a Nairobi-based

for endorsement, as a mark of quality and to enable staff

construction company. Construction works were set to begin

training hours to contribute to continuing professional

in the first quarter of 2019.

educational credits.
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Resources and
Administration

Additionally, the Academy identified training providers and

confidentiality, integrity, and availability. Key among the risks

established partnerships with regional and international

being addressed are cyber threats, against which investment in

institutions.

skills and systems is a major priority. Furthermore, an IT disaster
recovery strategy aligned with the requirements of a Bank-

The TDB Academy has developed a training calendar based

wide Business Continuity Plan, in terms of recovery-time and

on training needs for TDB staff for 2019 consisting of online and

recovery-point objectives, continues to be in place.

classroom courses. While staff training will remain the key focus
of the TDB Academy in the short term, the Bank intends to also

In 2018, the Bank developed a comprehensive Records and

use internal talent to create a research platform and organize

Document Management Policy and Procedures Framework

periodic industry seminars where subject matter experts will be

that provides a strong foundation for effective data access

invited to share their expert knowledge.

management. Information security staff awareness was
regularly provided to sensitize and mitigate against social

Information Technology
The Bank’s new Corporate Plan has earmarked information
technology as a cornerstone for enhanced operational
efficiency and effectiveness.

Automation Roadmap
The Bank’s automation roadmap addresses the needs of
various business and administrative areas of the Bank. In
2018, new systems were implemented in the following areas:
treasury management trading platform, loan origination, credit
risk rating, and SAP enhancements. Additional enhancement
projects are underway in the areas of treasury risk reporting
and loan management, and in relation to the SAP Enterprise
Resource Planning system. There are additional automation
initiatives in the areas of records and document management
and business intelligence.

IT Infrastructure
Investment in communication infrastructure continues to be
a priority area, to ensure reliable and efficient connectivity
between the Bank’s principal offices in Mauritius and Burundi,
and regional offices in Kenya, Ethiopia, Zimbabwe, and
the recently launched office in the Democratic Republic of
Congo. In 2018, wide-area-network acceleration devices
were deployed at four of these locations.

Information Security
To mitigate technological risks, in 2018 the Bank began the
process of benchmarking against the International Standards
Organization (ISO) information security framework to
develop an information security management system that is
all encompassing and aligned with best practice. The ISO
standard is premised on the three pillars of information/data
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IT Governance
From an IT governance perspective, the Bank uses an IT

Human
Resources and
Administration

strategy that informs the current IT automation roadmap,
and investments continued to be carried out in line with an
approved set of IT architecture principles. Coupled with
this was the active role of an oversight committee headed
by the Chief Risk Officer, which committee is tasked with
ensuring, above all, that the Bank’s IT initiatives are aligned
with its business objectives. Regular independent audits and
compliance reviews of IT were conducted with findings
reported independently to the Bank’s risk function, senior

www.depositphotos.com

management, and Board of Directors.
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Equity and Capital Mobilisation
Corporate Social Responsibility
Customer and Partner Satisfaction Survey 2018

Equity and Capital Mobilisation
During the period under review, the Bank had a successful year in terms of expanding and strengthening
its shareholder base. In line with the Corporate Plan and the Board-approved membership expansion
strategy, Madagascar became the 22nd Member State of the Bank by subscribing to the Bank’s capital
stock in the amount of USD 10 million in 2018. This follows the positive trend of membership expansion
drive from the 5th Corporate Plan (2013-2017) when the Republic of Mozambique, the Kingdom of
eSwatini, and the Republic of South Sudan joined the Bank.
Since inception, the Bank’s Class B shares have continued to generate positive returns for institutional
investors while consolidating the Bank’s capital base to support impactful investments in the region
served by the Bank. In 2018, the Arab Bank for Economic Development in Africa (BADEA) joined
as the Bank’s 13th institutional investor by subscribing Class B shares in the amount of USD 10 million.
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The Bank continues to enjoy the confidence of its existing
shareholders, as evidenced by the decision by the African

Customer and Partner
Satisfaction Survey 2018

Development Bank (AfDB) to subscribe to additional Class B
shares in the amount of USD 25 million. As at the end of 2018,

From the results of the Bank’s 2018 Customer and Partner

the total amount of equity raised from Class B shares, including

Satisfaction Survey, customers and partners of the Bank

share premium, was USD 165 million.

indicated increased satisfaction with TDB’s products and
services, as evidenced by a high score of 4.47 out of 5 in

Corporate Social Responsibility

2018 as compared to a score of 4.2 in 2017. Elements of
the survey included financing capacity, simpler and shorter

In line with its Corporate Social Responsibility strategy, in 2018

loan processing turn-around times, and personal relationship

the Bank supported a solar energy project in Uganda. The

with personnel.

project will create an ecosystem built around solar kiosks for
farmers seeking better skills and employment opportunities, as
well as to enhance the livelihood of the population it serves.

www.depositphotos.com

income generating activities for entrepreneurs, students, and
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Corporate Information
BOARD OF GOVERNORS
Shareholders (each shareholder is represented
by a Governor on the Board of Governors)

MEMBER STATES

INSTITUTIONS

Republic of Rwanda

African Development Bank

United Republic of Tanzania

National Pension Fund-Mauritius

Republic of Zambia

Mauritian Eagle Insurance Company Limited

Republic of Mauritius

Rwanda Social Security Board

Republic of Seychelles

Banco Nacional de Investimento

Republic of Uganda

Seychelles Pension Fund

Republic of Burundi

Africa Re- Insurance Corporation

Union of the Comoros

ZEP-RE (PTA Reinsurance Company)

Arab Republic of Egypt

National Social Security Fund – Uganda

State of Eritrea

SACOS Group Limited

Republic of Kenya

OPEC Fund for International Development

Republic of Malawi

TDB Staff Provident Fund

Republic of Zimbabwe

TDB Directors and Select Stakeholders Provident Fund

Republic of Djibouti

BADEA – Arab Bank for Economic Development in Africa

Republic of Sudan
Federal Democratic Republic of Ethiopia
Democratic Republic of Congo
Federal Republic of Somalia
Republic of South Sudan

PAGE 54

NON-MEMBER STATES

Kingdom of eSwatini

People’s Republic of China (represented by

Republic of Mozambique

the People’s Bank of China)

Republic of Madagascar

Republic of Belarus – Development Bank of Belarus
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Corporate Information
BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Corporate
Information

Gerard Bussier

Juste Rwamabuga

Prof. Oliver Saasa

Non-Executive Director for Zimbabwe, Mauritius, Rwanda,
Eritrea and South Sudan - Chairman, Board of Directors

Non-Executive
Independent Director

Non-Executive Alternate Director for Kenya, Zambia, Mozambique
and Somalia

John Bosco Sebabi

Dr. Abdel-Rahman Taha

Mariam Hamadou

Non-Executive Director for All Other Shareholders

Non-Executive Independent Director

Non-Executive Alternate Director for Egypt, Tanzania, Djibouti and
eSwatini

Peter Simbani

Admassu Tadesse

Non-Executive Director for Seychelles, Ethiopia, Burundi,
Malawi and Madagascar

President &
Chief Executive Officer

Dr. Natu Mwamba

Samuel Mivedor

Non-Executive Director for Egypt, Tanzania, Djibouti and
eSwatini

Non-Executive Alternate Director
for African Institutions

Lekha Nair

Said Mhamadi

Kampeta Sayinzoga

Li Xiaoping

Non-Executive Director for Uganda, Sudan, DR Congo and
Comoros

Non-Executive Alternate Director for Zimbabwe, Mauritius,
Rwanda, Eritrea and South Sudan

Non-Executive Alternate Director for Non-African States

Isabel Sumar

Rupert Simeon

Gerome Kamwanga

Non-Executive Director for Kenya, Zambia, Mozambique
and Somalia

Non-Executive Alternate Director for Seychelles, Ethiopia, Burundi,
Malawi and Madagascar

Non-Executive Alternate Director for Uganda, Sudan, DR Congo
and Comoros (Up to 1 October 2018)

Marie Gisele Masawa
Non-Executive Alternate Director for Uganda, Sudan, DR Congo
and Comoros (With effect from 1 October 2018)

Non-Executive Alternate Director for All Other Shareholders

Liu Mingzhi
Non-Executive Director for Non-African States

Mohamed Kalif
Non-Executive Director for African Institutions

HEADQUARTERS
MAURITIUS PRINCIPAL OFFICE
BLUE TOWER, RUE DE L’INSTITUT
EBENE, MAURITIUS
TEL +230 4676021/4676016

AUDITORS

Deloitte & Touche
Certified Public Accountants (Kenya)
Deloitte Place, Waiyaki Way,
Muthangari
PO Box 40092, 00100
Nairobi, Kenya

TDB HEADQUARTERS
CHAUSSEE, PRINCE LOUIS, RWAGASORE
PO BOX 1750 I BUJUMBURA, BURUNDI
TEL +257 22 224 966/75

OTHER OFFICES
TDB NAIROBI REGIONAL OFFICE: EAST AFRICA
197 LENANA PLACE, LENANA ROAD
PO BOX 48596-00100 I NAIROBI, KENYA
TEL +254 732 192 000

TDB HARARE REGIONAL OFFICE: SOUTHERN AFRICA
70 OLD ENTERPRISE ROAD, NEWLANDS
HARARE, ZIMBABWE
TEL +263 24 2788 336/7/8/9

TDB ADDIS ABABA REGIONAL OFFICE: NORTH EAST AFRICA
UNDP RSC, BOLE OLYMPIA ROUNDABOUT
ADDIS ABABA, ETHIOPIA
TEL +251 11 518 1730/31

LAWYERS
Various

TDB KINSHASA COUNTRY OFFICE
3RD FL CROWN TOWER BLDG, OFF 301 BATETELA AVE,
BLVD DU 30 JUIN COMMUNE DE LA GOMBE
KINSHASA, DEMOCRATIC REPUBLIC OF CONGO
TEL +243 977 792 970
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To foster Infrastructure
development, the Bank
successfully negotiated
and concluded a largescale Export Credit
Agreement (ECA)
5-year tenor loan of
USD$ 250 million from
China Exim Bank
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Report of the
Directors
The directors have pleasure in presenting their report and the audited financial statements of the Eastern and Southern African Trade
and Development Bank (TDB - formerly PTA Bank) for the year ended 31 December 2018.

1.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES
The principal activity of the Bank is to finance, where possible, viable projects and trade activities which have the potential to make
the economies of the Member States increasingly complimentary to each other.
The Bank is established by a Charter pursuant to Chapter 9 of the Treaty for the establishment of the Preferential Trade Area (PTA), as
subsequently repealed and replaced by the Treaty for the Common Market for the Eastern and Southern African States (COMESA).

2.

RESULTS
The results for the period are set out on page 66.
The Bank adopted International Financial Reporting Standard (IFRS) 9, Financial Instruments effective 1 January 2018.
As a result of the above, the net impairment provisions on loans and low credit risk assets decreased from USD 107.5 million to USD
91.5 million. In addition, the equity investments were re-measured from USD 40.2 million to USD 50.9 as at 1 January 2018. The net
impact resulted in a credit to total equity as at 1 January 2018 of USD 30.55 million to reflect the impact of the new standard. At the
adoption date of IFRS 9, the Bank did not restate the comparative period, as permitted by the standard.
Accordingly, the current year 2018 results on classification, measurement and impairment of financial instruments are based on IFRS
9, while the prior years’ results are based on International Accounting Standard (IAS) 39, Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement and therefore, certain amounts related to the financial instruments herein and related ratios are not comparable. The
main impact under IFRS 9 is related to impairment provisions on loans and advances. The provision for impairment on performing loans
and advances is stages 1 and 2 under IFRS 9, while impairment provision for credit losses on impaired loans and advances is stage 3.
For detailed description of the changes, refer to Notes 2, 3, 18 and 39 in these financial statements

3.

DIVIDEND
The Board has recommended a dividend of USD 315.93 (2017: USD 308.67) per share subject to the approval of the shareholders
at the Annual General Meeting.

4.

BOARD OF GOVERNORS
The current shareholders are shown on page 54.
In accordance with the Bank’s Charter, each member shall appoint one governor.

5.

DIRECTORS
The current members of the Board of Directors are shown on page 55.
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In accordance with the Bank’s Charter, and subject to re-appointment by the Board of Governors, the directors hold office for a term
of three years and are, therefore, not subject to retirement by rotation annually.

6.

Report of the
Directors

AUDITORS
The Bank’s auditors, Deloitte & Touche were appointed for a three-year term with effect from July 2018. They have expressed their
willingness to continue in office in accordance with Article 26 (2) (e) of the Charter of the Bank.

By Order of the Board Chairman
28th March 2019
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Statement of
Directors’ Responsibilities
The Bank’s Charter requires the directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year which give a true and fair view of the state
of affairs of the Bank as at the end of the financial year and of the operating results of the Bank for that year. It also requires the directors to
ensure that the Bank keeps proper accounting records which disclose with reasonable accuracy, the financial position of the Bank. They are
also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Bank.
The directors accept responsibility for the annual financial statements, which have been prepared using appropriate accounting policies
supported by reasonable and prudent judgments and estimates, in conformity with International Financial Reporting Standards and in the
manner required by the Bank’s Charter. The directors are of the opinion that the annual financial statements give a true and fair view of the
state of the financial affairs of the Bank and of its operating results. The directors further accept responsibility for the maintenance of accounting
records which may be relied upon in the preparation of financial statements, as well as adequate systems of internal financial control.
Nothing has come to the attention of the directors to indicate that the Bank will not remain a going concern for at least the next twelve months
from the date of this statement.

--------------------------------------------------			-------------------------------------------------Director 						Director
28th March 2019					28th March 2019
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Deloitte & Touche
Certified Public Accountants (Kenya) Deloitte Place
Waiyaki Way, Muthangari
P.O. Box 40092 - GPO 00100 Nairobi
Kenya
Tel: +254 (0) 20 423 0000
Cell: +254 (0) 719 039 000 Dropping Zone No.92
Email: admin@deloitte.co.ke www.deloitte.com

Independent
Auditor’s Report

Independent
Auditor’s Report
TO THE MEMBERS OF EASTERN AND SOUTHERN AFRICAN TRADE AND DEVELOPMENT BANK
(TDB - formerly PTA Bank)
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion
We have audited the financial statements of Eastern and Southern African Trade and Development Bank (the “Bank”) set out on pages 66
to 172, which comprise the statement of financial position at 31 December 2018 and the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income, statements of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including
a summary of significant accounting policies.
In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Bank as at 31 December 2018 and of its financial
performance and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards and the requirements
of the Bank’s Charter.

Basis for Opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Bank in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (IESBA Code) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in Kenya, and we
have fulfilled our ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the IESBA Code.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Other matters
The financial statements of Eastern and Southern African Trade and Development Bank for the year ended 31 December 2017 were audited
by another auditor, Ernst & Young LLP, who expressed an unmodified opinion on those financial statements on 12 April 2018.

Key Audit Matter
A key audit matter is a matter that, in our professional judgement, was of most significance in our audit of the financial statements of the current
period. The matter was addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and
we do not provide a separate opinion on the matter.
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Independent
Auditor’s Report
TO THE MEMBERS OF EASTERN AND SOUTHERN AFRICAN TRADE AND DEVELOPMENT BANK
(TDB - formerly PTA Bank)
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements (Continued)
Key Audit Matter

How the matter was addressed in the audit

Application of IFRS 9 in the calculation of impairment of loans and advances
The measurement of impairment of loans at the end of the year
involves significant judgements and estimates by the Directors,
which could have material impact on the financial position and
the results of the Bank.
At 31 December 2018 the Bank reported total gross trade finance
loans of USD 2.81 billion and USD 79.95 million of expected
credit loss provisions (ECL), and total gross project finance loans of
USD 1.46 billion and USD 30.36 million of ECL provisions. These
are disclosed in Note 15 and Note 16 in the financial statements.

We tested the design and implementation of key controls across the
processes relevant to the ECL. This included the allocation of assets
into stages, model governance, data accuracy and completeness,
credit monitoring and recording of journal entries.

The Bank adopted IFRS 9 from 1 January 2018 which requires
impairment losses to be evaluated on an ECL basis. The
determination of impairment provisions for expected losses requires
significant judgement, and we have identified the audit of ECL
impairment provisions to be a key audit matter.

We challenged the criteria used to allocate an asset to stage 1, 2
or 3 in accordance by testing assets in stage 1, 2 and 3 to verify
that they were allocated to the appropriate stage.

The key areas where we identified greater levels of management
judgement and therefore increased levels of audit focus in the Bank’s
implementation of IFRS 9 are:

(i) Assessed the reliability of historical macroeconomic and
forward-looking information/assumptions used. As the
loans are disbursed in different countries, we assessed the
reasonableness of the Bank’s internal macro-economic tool
used to develop each country’s ratings. We considered trends
in the different economies and industries to which the Bank is
exposed.
(ii) Tested the assumptions, inputs and formulas used in a sample
of ECL models. This included assessing the appropriateness
of model design and formulas used, considering alternative
modelling techniques and recalculating the Probability of
Default, Loss Given Default and Exposure at Default for a
sample of models.
(iii) Reviewed the appropriateness of management’s assessment
of lifetime of financial instruments based on outstanding term
of the loan facilities
(iv) Reviewed the appropriateness of thresholds used to determine
“SICR”. The Bank bases this on both quantitative and qualitative
indicators which was the basis of our review of the staging for
a sample of the loans.
(v) Assessed the discounting used in the ECL calculation to
ensure discounting was done to the reporting date using the
appropriate effective interest rate (EIR).

Accuracy of ECL models
The ECL model applies to financial assets measured at amortised
cost and certain loan commitments, as well as financial guarantee
contracts.
Under IFRS 9 loss allowances are measured on either of the
following bases:
(i) 12 month ECLs that result from possible default events within
the 12 months after the reporting date; or
(ii) Lifetime ECLs that result from ECLs from all possible default
events over the expected life of a financial instrument.
The Bank is required to recognise an allowance for either 12 month
or lifetime ECLs, depending on whether there has been a significant
increase in credit risk (“SICR”) since initial recognition.
The measurement of ECLs reflects a probability-weighted outcome,
the time value of money and the Bank’s best available forwardlooking information.
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audit procedures on the opening balances to gain assurance
on the transition from IAS 39. This included evaluating the
accounting interpretations for compliance with IFRS 9 and testing
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With the support of our internal modelling specialists, we :
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TO THE MEMBERS OF EASTERN AND SOUTHERN AFRICAN TRADE AND DEVELOPMENT BANK
(TDB - formerly PTA Bank)
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements (Continued)
Key Audit Matter

How the matter was addressed in the audit

Application of IFRS 9 in the calculation of impairment of loans and advances
TThe abovementioned probability-weighted outcome considers

We found that the models used for the measurement ECL to be

the possibility of a credit loss occurring and the possibility of no

appropriate and reasonable. In addition, the disclosures in the

credit loss occurring, even if the possibility of a credit loss is low.

financial statements pertaining to the ECL measurement were found

Credit losses are measured as the present value of all cash shortfalls

to be appropriate.

(i.e. the difference between the cash flows due to the entity in
accordance with the contract and the cash flows that the Bank
expects to receive). ECLs are discounted at the original effective
interest rate of the financial asset.
The assessment of the ECL of a financial asset or a portfolio of
financial assets entails estimations of the likelihood of defaults
occurring and of the default correlations between counterparties.
The Bank measures ECL using probability of default (PD), exposure
at default (EAD) and loss given default (LGD). These three
components are multiplied together and adjusted for the likelihood
of default. The calculated ECL is then discounted using the original
effective interest rate of the financial asset.
The assessment of SICR and the calculation of ECL both incorporate
forward looking information. The Bank has performed historical
analyses and identified the key economic variables impacting credit
risk and ECL for each portfolio. These economic variables and
their associated impact of the PD, EAD and LGD vary by financial
instrument. Significant judgement and estimates are applied in this
process of incorporating forward looking information into the SICR
assessment and ECL calculation.
Refer to Note 3 (j) for the accounting policy on financial instruments;
Note 3 (t) for the critical judgements used in determining the
impairment losses; and Note 13, 14, 15, 16, 17 and 18 for the
disclosure on financial assets.
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Independent
Auditor’s Report
TO THE MEMBERS OF EASTERN AND SOUTHERN AFRICAN TRADE AND DEVELOPMENT BANK
(TDB - formerly PTA Bank)
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements (Continued)
Other Information
The directors are responsible for the other information which comprises the Corporate Information and the Report of the directors, which we
obtained prior this auditor’s report and the Annual Report, and the Chairman’s Statement, President’s Statement, Statement on Corporate
Governance, Sustainability Reporting Statement, Information on Economic Environment, Treasury, Co-financing and Syndications, Financial
Performance, Operations Complex, Coverage Business Model, Portfolio Management, Compliance and Risk Management, Human
Resources and Administration, Corporate Affairs and Investor Relations, which are expected to be made available to us after that date. The
other information does not include the financial statements, and our auditor’s report thereon.
Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express an audit opinion or any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.
In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether
the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to
be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed on the other information that we obtained prior to the date of this auditor’s
report, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard

Responsibilities of the directors for the Financial Statements
The directors are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with IFRS and the requirements
of the Bank’s Charter, and for such internal control as the directors determine are necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the Bank’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing,
as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate
the Bank or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.
As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit.
We also:
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TO THE MEMBERS OF EASTERN AND SOUTHERN AFRICAN TRADE AND DEVELOPMENT BANK
(TDB - formerly PTA Bank)
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements (Continued)
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements (Continued)
• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit
procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Bank’s internal control.
• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made
by the directors.
• Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting and based on the audit evidence obtained,
whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Bank’s ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Bank to cease to continue
as going concern.
• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures and whether the financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.
We communicate with the directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings
including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.
We also provide the directors with a statement that we have complied with the relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and
to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, related safeguards.
From the matters communicated with the directors, we determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the financial
statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.

Certified Public Accountants (Kenya)				
Nairobi, Kenya

28 March 2019

CPA Fredrick Okwiri, Practising certificate No. 1699
Signing partner responsible for the independent audit
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Note

2018
USD

2017
USD

INCOME
Interest income

4

361,587,896

276,013,942

Interest expense

5

(198,468,902)

(143,851,524)

Borrowing and financing costs

6

(6,723,839)

(6,524,928)

(205,192,741)

(150,376,452)

156,395,155

125,637,490

Interest and similar expense
Net interest income
Fee and commission income

7a

Net trading income
Risk mitigation costs

7b

Other income
OPERATING INCOME

44,192,454

56,804,279

200,587,609

182,441,769

(34,541,104)

(37,389,840)

7,482,851

12,575,263

173,529,356

157,627,192

(40,707,782)

(30,784,811)

EXPENDITURE
Operating expenses

9

Impairment on other financial assets

11

(3,226,125)

-

Impairment allowance on loans

17

(23,156,955)

(25,323,332)

22,886,898

10,345,372

(44,203,964)

(45,762,771)

129,325,392

111,864,421

450,000

-

129,775,392

111,864,421

Net foreign exchange gains
TOTAL EXPENDITURE
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR
Other comprehensive income
Fair value gain on fair value through other comprehensive income
- Equity investments

18

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR
ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY HOLDERS
EARNINGS PER SHARE:
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Basic

12

1,283
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12
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Note

2018
USD

2017
USD
1,232,980,427

ASSETS
Cash and balances held with other banks

13

1,145,918,378

Derivative financial instruments

14

54,042,940

-

Trade finance loans

15

2,733,444,885

2,571,248,280

Project loans

16

1,429,558,794

1,235,120,149

Investment in Government securities

20

-

57,275,058

Other receivables

21

117,136,030

106,477,488

comprehensive income

18

51,521,730

40,257,957

Investment in joint venture

19

386,994

369,493

Property and equipment

23

23,710,110

19,631,950

Intangible assets

24

1,853,744

1,338,030

5,557,573,605

5,264,698,832

119,576,580

127,796,131

Equity investments at fair value through other

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
LIABILITIES
Collection account deposits

25

Derivative financial instruments

14

-

4,797,549

Short term borrowings

26

2,383,253,601

2,314,562,283

Provision for service and leave pay

29

7,828,640

6,558,688

Other payables

28

72,858,965

81,658,467

Long term borrowings

27

1,782,030,068

1,708,289,548

4,365,547,854

4,243,662,666

431,225,426

TOTAL LIABILITIES

EQUITY
Share capital

30

461,742,558

Share premium

30

60,500,611

52,968,478

Retained earnings

607,076,151

509,435,480

Fair value reserve

11,178,799

-

31,684,721

27,406,782

19,842,911

-

1,192,025,751

1,021,036,166

5,557,573,605

5,264,698,832

Proposed dividend
Management reserve

31

TOTAL EQUITY
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

The notes on pages 70 to 174 are an integral part of these financial statements.
The financial statements were approved by the board of directors on 28th March 2019 and were signed on its behalf by:

President									Director
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30
30
28

Proposed dividend

Dividend declared and paid

Dividend declared and payable

30
30
28

Proposed dividend

Dividend declared and paid

Dividend declared and payable

31

461,742,558

-

-

-

-

-

-

30,517,132

60,500,611

-

-

-

-

-

7,532,133

-

52,968,478

-

-

52,968,478

52,968,478

-

-

-

-

17,861,817

-

35,106,661

Share
premium
USD

607,076,151

129,325,392

(19,842,911)

-

-

-

(31,684,721)

-

-

529,278,391

-

19,842,911

509,435,480

509,435,480

111,864,421

-

-

(27,406,783)

-

-

424,977,842

Retained
earnings
USD

31,684,721

-

-

(2,357,693)

(25,049,089)

31,684,721

-

-

27,406,782

-

-

27,406,782

27,406,782

-

(1,056,296)

(23,293,199)

27,406,783

-

-

24,349,494

Proposed
dividend
USD

11,178,799

-

-

450,000

-

-

-

-

-

10,728,799

10,728,799

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Fair value
Reserve
USD

19,842,911

-

19,842,911

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Management
Reserve*
USD

Total
equity
USD

1,192,025,751

129,325,392

450,000

(2,357,693)

(25,049,089)

-

7,532,133

30,517,132

1,051,607,876

10,728,799

19,842,911

1,021,036,166

1,021,036,166

111,864,421

(1,056,296)

(23,293,199)

-

17,861,817

59,174,487

856,484,936

*Management reserve was created in 2018 following board approval. The purpose of the reserve is for cushioning incidents of significant losses as disclosed in Note 31.

At 31 December 2018

Total comprehensive income for the year

Appropriation to the Management Reserve

2(b)

30

Share Premium

Equity Investments Reserve

30

Capital subscriptions

431,225,426

-

Equity Investments

At 1 January 2018 – as restated

-

Credit Risk
2(b)

431,225,426

At 1 January 2018-as previously stated

Effect of change in accounting policy

431,225,426

-

-

-

-

At 31 December 2017

2(b)

30

Share Premium

Total comprehensive income for the year

59,174,487

30

Capital subscriptions
-

372,050,939

Share
Capital
USD

Statement of Changes
in Equity

At 1 January 2016

Note
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Flows

Note

2018
USD

2017
USD

32(a)

(167,618,832)

449,526,341

23
24
18
19
20

(4,979,569)
(937,627)
(84,974)
(17,501)
57,275,058

(852,533)
(928,099)
(22,761,285)
159,180,887

51,255,387

134,638,970

30,517,132
7,532,133
(25,049,089)

59,174,487
17,861,817
(23,293,199)

13,000,176

53,743,105

(103,363,269)

637,908,416

16,301,220

236,392

1,232,980,427

594,835,619

OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net cash (used in)/generated from operations
INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of property and equipment
Purchase of intangible assets
Acquisition of equity investments
Acquisition of interest in joint venture
Proceeds from redemption of government securities
Net cash generated from investing activities
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from capital subscriptions
Proceeds from share premium
Payment of dividends

30
30
30

Net cash generated from financing activities
(DECREASE)/INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Foreign exchange gain on cash and cash equivalents
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
AT BEGINNING OF YEAR
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
AT THE END OF YEAR

31(c)

1,145,918,378

1,232,980,427

FACILITIES AVAILABLE FOR LENDING

31(d)

1,890,373,212

1,907,781,631
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Notes to the
Financial Statements
1.

CORPORATE INFORMATION
The principal activity of the Bank is to finance, where possible, viable projects and trade activities which have the potential to make
the economies of the Member States increasingly complementary to each other.
Eastern and Southern African Trade and Development Bank (“the Bank”) was established by the Charter pursuant to Chapter 9 of
the Treaty for the establishment of the Preferential Trade Area (PTA), as subsequently repealed and replaced by the Treaty for the
Common Market for the Eastern and Southern African States (COMESA).

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS -IFRS
The accounting policies adopted are consistent with those followed in the preparation of the Bank’s annual financial statements for
the year ended 31 December 2017, except for new standards, amendments and interpretations effective 1 January 2018. The nature
and impact of each new standard/ amendment are described below:
The Bank only considered those that are relevant to its operations. Consequently, all amendments not listed in this note do not impact
the Bank

New pronouncements issued as at 31 December 2018
(a)

IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers
The standard contains a single model that applies to contracts with customers and two approaches to recognising revenue: at
a point in time or over time. The standard specifies how and when the Company will recognise revenue as well as requiring
such entities to provide users of financial statements with more informative, relevant disclosures.
The Bank applied IFRS 15 on 1 January 2018 using the modified retrospective approach in which the cumulative effect of
initially applying this Standard is recognised at the date of initial application as an adjustment to the opening balance of
retained earnings as at 1 January 2018 without restating comparative periods. There was no material impact of application
of IFRS 15 and no adjustment to retained earnings was required.

(b)

IFRS 9 Financial instruments
On 24 July 2014 the IASB issued the final IFRS 9 Financial Instruments Standard. IFRS 9 sets out requirements for recognising
and measuring financial assets, financial liabilities and some contracts to buy and sell non-financial items. The Standard
replaces earlier versions of IFRS 9 and completes the IASB’s project to replace IAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition
and Measurement.
During the year, the Bank adopted IFRS 9 Financial Instruments (IFRS 9). As a result of the application of IFRS 9, there was
a change in the accounting policies and these new policies were applicable from 1 January 2018.
The new standard brings fundamental changes to the accounting for financial assets and to certain aspects of the accounting
for financial liabilities.
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New pronouncements issued as at 31 December 2018 (Continued)
b)

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Continued)
Classification of financial assets and financial liabilities
IFRS 9 contains three principal classification categories for financial assets: measured at amortised cost, fair value through
other comprehensive income (FVOCI) and fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL).
IFRS 9 classification is generally based on the business model in which a financial asset is managed and its contractual cash
flows.
The standard eliminates the previous IAS 39 categories of held-to-maturity, Loans and advances and receivables and
available-for-sale. Under IFRS 9, derivatives embedded in contracts where the host is a financial asset in the scope of the
standard are never bifurcated. Instead, the whole hybrid instrument is assessed for classification. For an explanation of how
the Bank classifies financial assets under IFRS 9, see Note 3(j).
IFRS 9 largely retains the existing requirements in IAS 39 for the classification of financial liabilities. However, although under
IAS 39 all fair value changes of liabilities designated under the fair value option were recognised in profit or loss, under IFRS
9 fair value changes are generally presented as follows:
•
•

the amount of change in the fair value that is attributable to changes in the credit risk of the liability is presented in
OCI; and
the remaining amount of change in the fair value is presented in profit or loss.

For an explanation of how the Bank classifies financial liabilities under IFRS 9, see below.

Impairment of financial assets
IFRS 9 replaces the ‘incurred loss’ model in IAS 39 with an ‘expected credit loss’ model. The new impairment model also
applies to certain loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts but not to equity investments. Under IFRS 9, credit
losses are recognised earlier than under IAS 39. For an explanation of how the Bank applies the impairment requirements
of IFRS 9, see Note 3(j).

Transition
Changes in accounting policies resulting from the adoption of IFRS 9 have been applied retrospectively, except as described
below.
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2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS -IFRS
(Continued)
New pronouncements issued as at 31 December 2018 (Continued)
b)

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Continued)
Comparative periods generally have not been restated. Differences in the carrying amounts of financial assets and financial
liabilities resulting from the adoption of IFRS 9 are recognised in retained earnings and reserves as at 1 January 2018.
Accordingly, the information presented for 2017 does not reflect the requirements of IFRS 9 and therefore is not comparable
to the information presented for 2018 under IFRS 9. The Bank used the exemption not to restate comparative periods.

IMPACT OF INITIAL APPLICATION OF IFRS 9

IFRS 9

Classification of financial assets and financial liabilities on the date of initial application of 		

The following table shows the original measurement categories in accordance with IAS 39 and the new measurement
categories under IFRS 9 for the Bank’s financial assets and financial liabilities as at 1 January 2018.

Note

Original
classification
under IAS 39

New classification
under IFRS 9

Original carrying
amount under IAS
39
USD

New carrying
amount under
IFRS 9
USD

Financial assets:
Cash and balances held with
other banks

13

Loans and
receivables

Amortised cost

1,232,980,427

1,231,478,538

Trade finance

15

Loans and
receivables

Amortised cost

2,571,248,280

2,589,671,753

Project loans

16

Loans and
receivables

Amortised cost

1,235,120,149

1,238,041,476

Investment in Government
securities

20

Loans and
receivables

Amortised cost

57,275,058

57,275,058

Other receivables

21

Loans and
receivables

Amortised cost

106,477,488

106,477,488

Equity investments – at cost

18

Cost

FVOCI

40,257,957

50,986,756

5,243,359,359

5,273,931,069

Total financial assets
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New pronouncements issued as at 31 December 2018 (Continued)
(b)

IFRS 9 Financial instruments (Continued)

Classification of financial assets and financial liabilities on the date of initial application of 		
IFRS 9 – (continued)

Note

Original
classification
under IAS 39

New classification
under IFRS 9

Original carrying
amount under IAS
39
USD

New carrying
amount under
IFRS 9
USD

127,796,131

127,796,131

Financial liabilities:
Collection account deposits

25

Other liabilities

Amortised cost

Derivative financial instruments

14

FVTPL

FVTPL

Short term borrowings

26

Other liabilities

Amortised cost

Other payables

28

Other liabilities

Amortised cost

81,658,467

81,658,467

Long term borrowings

27

Other liabilities

Amortised cost

106,477,488

106,477,488

4,237,103,978

4,237,103,978

Total financial liabilities

4,797,549

4,797,549

2,314,562,283

2,314,562,283

The application of the Bank’s policies in line with IFRS 9 did not result in any reclassification.
The following table reconciles the carrying amounts under IAS 39 to the carrying amounts under IFRS 9 on transition to IFRS
9 on 1 January 2018.

Note

IAS 39 carrying
amount
USD

Re-measurement
USD

IFRS 9 carrying
amount
USD

Financial assets:
Amortised cost
Cash and balances held with other banks
Closing balance under IAS 39

13

Re-measurement – Expected credit losses

1,232,980,427
-

Opening balance under IFRS 9

1,232,980,427

-

-

(1,501,889

-

(1,501,889)

1,231,478,538

-

-

Trade finance loans
Closing balance under IAS 39

15

Re-measurement – Expected credit losses

17

Reversal of suspended interest
Opening balance under IFRS 9

2,571,248,280
-

15,787,947

-

-

2,635,526

-

18,423,473

2,589,671,753

2,571,248,280
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS - IFRS
(Continued)
New pronouncements issued as at 31 December 2018 (Continued)
(b)

IFRS 9 Financial instruments (Continued)

Classification of financial assets and financial liabilities on the date of initial application of 		
IFRS 9 – (continued)

Note

IAS 39 carrying
amount
USD

Re-measurement
USD

IFRS 9
carrying amount
USD

Closing balance under IAS 39

13

1,232,980,427

-

-

Closing balance under IAS 39

16

1,235,120,149

-

-

Re-measurement – Expected credit losses

17

-

1,737,372

-

-

1,183,955

-

1,235,120,149

2,921,327

1,238,041,476

57,275,058

-

57,275,058

Project finance loans

Reversal of suspended interest
Opening balance under IFRS 9
Investment in Government securities
Other receivables
Total amortised cost

106,477,488

-

106,477,488

5,203,101,402

19,842,911

5,222,944,313

Equity Investments – at cost
-

-

Re-measurement – Expected credit losses

Closing balance under IAS 39

40,257,957
-

(40,257,957)

-

Closing balance

-

-

-

Opening balance

-

-

-

Transfer from available for sale

-

40,257,957

-

Re-measurement – fair value

-

10,728,799

-

Opening balance under IFRS 9

-

-

50,986,756

40,257,957

10,728,799

50,986,756

5,243,359,359

30,571,710

5,273,931,069

Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI)

Total FVOCI
Total assets
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New pronouncements issued as at 31 December 2018 (Continued)
(b)

IFRS 9 Financial instruments (Continued)

Classification of financial assets and financial liabilities on the date of initial application of 		
IFRS 9 – (continued)

IAS 39 carrying
amount
USD

Re-measurement
USD

IFRS 9
carrying
amount
USD

127,796,131

-

127,796,131

Short term borrowings

2,314,562,283

-

2,314,562,283

Long term borrowings

1,708,289,548

-

1,708,289,548

81,658,467

-

-

Financial liabilities
Amortised cost
Collection account deposits

Closing balance under IAS 39
Opening balance under IFRS 9

-

-

81,658,467

4,232,306,429

-

4,232,306,429

Derivative financial instruments

4,797,549

-

4,797,549

Total Fair value through profit or loss

4,797,549

-

4,797,549

4,237,103,978

-

4,237,103,978

Total amortised cost
Fair value through profit or loss

Total financial liabilities

Impact of transition of IFRS 9 on opening equity reserves
The following table summarises the impact of transition to IFRS 9 on the opening balance of the retained earnings and
management reserve. There is no impact on other components of equity.
Impact of adopting
IFRS 9 at
1 January 2018
USD
Fair value reserve
Closing balance under IAS 39 (31 December 2017)

-

Fair valuation of Equity reserves previously measure at Cost

10,728,799

Opening balance under IFRS 9 (1 January 2018)

10,728,799

Retained earnings
Closing balance under IAS 39 (31 December 2017)
Recognition of expected credit losses under IFRS 9 (including loan commitments)
Opening balance under IFRS 9 (1 January 2018)

509,435,480
19,842,911
529,278,391
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2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS - IFRS
(Continued)
New pronouncements issued as at 31 December 2018 (Continued)
(b)

IFRS 9 Financial instruments (Continued)

Measurement category
Cash and balances with financial institutions
Loans and advances to customers

Loan loss allowance
under IAS 39
USD
107,546,640

Interest in Suspense (Stage 3 Loans and Advances)
Total

Remeasurement
USD

Loan loss allowance
under IFRS 9
USD

1,501,887

1,501,887

(17,525,318)

90,021,322

-

(3,819,480)

-

107,546,640

(19,842,911)

91,523,209

New pronouncements issued but not effective as at 31 December 2018
a)

IFRS 16 Leases
The new standard is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019.
The IASB issued IFRS 16 Leases on 13 January 2016. The scope of the new standard includes leases of all assets, with certain
exceptions. A lease is defined as a contract, or part of a contract, that conveys the right to use an asset (the underlying asset)
for a period of time in exchange for consideration.
Key features
The new standard requires lessees to account for all leases under a single on-statement of financial position model (subject to
certain exemptions) in a similar way to finance leases under IAS 17. The new standard includes two recognition exemptions
for lessees – leases of ’low-value’ assets (e.g., personal computer) and short-term leases (i.e., leases with a lease term of
12 months or less). At the commencement date of the lease, a lessee will recognize a liability to make lease payments (i.e.,
the lease liability) and an asset representing the right to use the underlying asset during the lease term (i.e., the right-to-use
asset).
•

Lessees will be required to remeasure the lease liability upon the occurrence of certain events (e.g., a change in
the lease term, a change in future lease payments resulting from a change in an index or rate used to determine
those payments). The lessee will generally recognise the amount of the re-measurement of the lease liability as an
adjustment to the right-of-use asset.

•

Lessor accounting is substantially the same as today’s lessor accounting, using IAS 17’s dual classification approach.

Transition
Early application is permitted, but not before an entity applies IFRS 15. The new standard permits a lessee to choose either
a full retrospective or a modified retrospective transition approach.
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New pronouncements issued but not effective as at 31 December 2018 (Continued)
a)

IFRS 16 Leases (Continued)
Impact
The Bank is currently assessing the impact of these amendments and plans to adopt the amendments on the required effective
date if necessary.

b)

Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28: Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its Associate
or Joint Venture
The amendments address the conflict between IFRS 10 and IAS 28 in dealing with the loss of control of a subsidiary that
is sold or contributed to an associate or joint venture. The amendments clarify that the gain or loss resulting from the sale or
contribution of assets that constitute a business, as defined in IFRS 3, between an investor and its associate or joint venture, is
recognised in full. Any gain or loss resulting from the sale or contribution of assets that do not constitute a business, however,
is recognised only to the extent of unrelated investors’ interests in the associate or joint venture. The IASB has deferred the
effective date of these amendments indefinitely, but an entity that early adopts the amendments must apply them prospectively.
The Bank is assessing the impact of these amendments and will adopt as applicable if necessary.

c)

Amendments to IAS 28 Long‑term Interests in Associates and Joint Ventures
The amendment clarifies that IFRS 9, including its impairment requirements, applies to long‑term interests.
Furthermore, in applying IFRS 9 to long‑term interests, an entity does not take into account adjustments to their carrying amount
required by IAS 28 (i.e., adjustments to the carrying amount of long‑term interests arising from the allocation of losses of the
investee or assessment of impairment in accordance with IAS 28).
The amendments apply retrospectively to annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019.
Earlier application is permitted. Specific transition provisions apply depending on whether the first‑time application of the
amendments coincides with that of IFRS 9.
The Bank is assessing the impact of these amendments and will adopt as applicable if necessary.

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Except for changes explained in Note 2 (b), the Bank has consistently applied the following accounting policies to all periods
presented in these financial statements.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
a)

Basis of preparation
The financial statements are prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) and the Bank’s
Charter. The measurement basis applied is the historical cost basis, except where otherwise stated in the accounting policies
below. The Bank’s functional and reporting currency is the United States Dollars (USD).
Statement of compliance
The financial statements of the Bank have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
(IFRS) as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB).
This is the first set of the Bank’s annual financial statements in which IFRS 9 Financial Instruments has been applied. Resultant
changes to significant accounting policies are described in Note 2.
Presentation of financial statements
The Bank presents its statement of financial position broadly in the order of liquidity.

b)

Revenue recognition
Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Bank and the revenue can
be reliably measured.
i.

Interest income from loans and investments

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using the effective interest rate method.
Effective interest rate
Income from loans and Investments is recognised in profit or loss using the effective interest rate method. The ‘effective interest
rate’ is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts through the expected life of the financial
instrument to:
•

The gross carrying amount of the financial asset; or

•

The amortised cost of the financial liability

When calculating the effective interest rate for financial instruments other than purchased or originated credit-impaired assets,
the Bank estimates future cash flows considering all contractual terms of the financial instrument, but not the expected credit
loss (ECL). For purchased or originated credit-impaired financial assets, a credit-adjusted effective interest rate is calculated
using estimated future cash flows including ECL.
The calculation of the effective interest rate includes transaction costs and fees and points paid or received that are an integral
part of the effective interest rate. Transaction costs include incremental costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or
issue of a financial asset or financial liability. Interest on arrears of payable capital is taken to revenue when received.
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Revenue recognition (Continued)
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Amortised cost and gross carrying amount
The ‘amortised cost’ of a financial asset is the amount at which the financial asset is measured on initial recognition minus
the principal repayments, plus or minus the cumulative amortisation using the effective interest rate method of any difference
between that initial amount and the maturity amount and, for financial assets, adjusted for any ECL (or impairment allowance
before 1 January 2018).
The ‘gross carrying amount of a financial asset’ is the amortised cost of a financial asset before adjusting for any expected
credit loss allowance.
Calculation of interest income
The effective interest rate of a financial asset is calculated on initial recognition of a financial asset. In calculating interest
income, the effective interest rate is applied to the gross carrying amount of the asset (when the asset is not credit-impaired).
The effective interest rate is revised as a result of periodic re-estimation of cash flows of floating rate instruments to reflect
movements in market rates of interest.
For financial assets that were credit-impaired on initial recognition, purchased originated credit impaired (POCI) assets,
interest income is calculated by applying the credit-adjusted effective interest rate to the amortised cost of the asset. The
calculation of interest income does not revert to a gross basis, even if the credit risk of the asset improves.
For financial assets that have become credit-impaired subsequent to initial recognition, interest income is calculated by
applying the effective interest rate to the amortised cost of the financial asset. If the asset is no longer credit-impaired, then
the calculation of interest income reverts to the gross basis.
ii.

Fees and commissions

Fees and commissions are generally recognised on an accrual basis when a financing facility is provided over a period of
time. These fees include Letter of Credit fees, confirmation fees, guarantee fees, commitment and other fees.
Other fees and commission income include one-off fees arising from the provision of financing facilities to the Bank’s clients,
like facility fees, drawdown fees, restructuring fees, that do not form an integral part of effective interest rate of the facilities
are recognised on completion of the underlying transaction.
Fees arising from negotiating or participating in the negotiation of a transaction for a third party, such as the arrangement of
loans or the acquisition of shares or other securities or the purchase or sale of businesses, are recognised on completion of
the underlying transaction. Fees or components of fees that are linked to a certain performance are recognised after fulfilling
the corresponding criteria.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(c)

Borrowing and financing costs
Borrowing costs are interest and other borrowing and financing costs that the Bank incurs in connection with the borrowing
of funds. Interest expense is recognised in profit or loss on the accrual basis taking into account the effective interest rate.
Other borrowing and financing costs are expensed in the period in which they are incurred. Discounts and premiums or other
differences between the initial carrying amount of an interest-bearing instrument and its amount at maturity are calculated on
an effective interest basis.

(d)

Foreign currencies
Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded at their respective functional currency rates prevailing at the date of
the transaction.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the functional currency spot rate of
exchange ruling at the reporting date. All differences are taken to profit or loss. All differences arising on non–trading activities
are taken to other operating income in profit or loss.
Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rates as at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated
using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value is determined.

(e)

Property and equipment
All categories of property and equipment are stated at historical cost and subsequently stated at cost less depreciation.
Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items.
Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when
it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Bank and the cost of the item can be
measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to profit or loss during the financial period in which they
are incurred.
Depreciation on other assets is calculated at rates which are estimated to write off the cost of property and equipment to
their estimated residual values in equal annual instalments over their expected useful lives. The expected useful life of each
class of asset is up to the following:
Computer equipment			
Motor vehicles			

3-5 years

5-7 years

Office equipment			

3-5 years

Furniture and fittings			

5-10 years

Buildings				50 years
Freehold land and buildings are not depreciated.
Leasehold land is depreciated over the unexpired term of the lease on the straight-line basis
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Assets in the course of construction for administrative purposes are carried at cost, less any recognised impairment loss.
Depreciation of these assets, on the same basis as other assets, commences when the assets are ready for their intended use.
An item of property and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its
use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in profit or loss in the period the asset is derecognised.
The assets’ residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation are reviewed at each reporting date, and adjusted
prospectively, if appropriate.
Property and equipment are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised in the statement of profit or loss for the amount by which
the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value
less costs to sell and value in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which
there are separately identifiable cash flows (cash-generating units).

(f)

Intangible assets
The Bank’s intangible assets relate to the value of computer software. An intangible asset is recognised only when its cost can
be measured reliably, and it is probable that the expected future economic benefits that are attributable to it will flow to the
Bank. Intangible assets are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation
is recognised on a straight‑line basis over their estimated useful lives.
An intangible asset is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal.
Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and
the carrying amount of the asset) is included in profit or loss in the period the asset is derecognised.
The intangible assets’ useful lives and methods of amortisation are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted prospectively
if appropriate.

(g)

Tax
In accordance with paragraph 6 of Article 43 of its Charter, the Bank is exempt from all forms of tax.

(h)

Share capital
In accordance with Article 7 of the Charter, for Class A shares, issued and called-up shares are paid for in instalments by
the members. Payable capital is credited as share capital and instalments not yet due and due but not paid at period-end
are deducted there-from. For Class B shares, payment of the amount subscribed by subscribers shall be paid in full within 90
days from the date of subscription.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(i)

Financial instruments - Policy applicable after 1 January 2018
Financial instruments
A financial asset or liability is recognised when the Bank becomes party to the contractual provisions of the instrument (i.e. the
trade date). This includes regular way trades: purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within the
time frame generally established by regulation or convention in the market place.
Financial assets
Initial Recognition and Measurement
Except for trade receivables that do not have a significant financing component, at initial recognition, an entity shall measure
a financial asset or financial liability at its fair value plus or minus, in the case of a financial asset or financial liability not at
fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of the financial asset
or financial liability. Trade receivables that do not have a significant financing component are measured at their transaction
price.
The Bank classifies its financial assets into three principal classification categories based on the cash flow characteristics of
the asset and the business model assessment. Financial instruments are measured at:
•

Amortised Cost;

•

Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income (FVOCI); and

•

Faith Value through Profit or Loss (FVTPL)

A financial asset is classified into one of these categories on initial recognition. The previous categories of Held to Maturity,
Loans and Receivables, and Available for Sale under IAS 39 have been replaced. Under IFRS 9, derivatives embedded in
contracts where the host is a financial asset in the scope of IFRS 9 are not separated. Instead, the hybrid financial instrument
as a whole is assessed for classification.
Amortised cost
A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it meets both of the following conditions and is not designated as at FVTPL:
•

it is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual cash flows; and

•

its contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are Solely Payments of Principal and Interest
(SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding.

Initial Recognition and Measurement
The Bank recognises its Cash and Balances held with banks, Investment in Government Securities, Trade Finance and Project
Finance loans and other receivables at amortised cost. Project financing is long term in nature, while trade financing is short
term in nature. These instruments are subject to impairment.
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Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income (FVOCI) – Debt
A financial asset is measured at FVOCI only if it meets both of the following conditions and is not designated as at FVTPL:
•

it is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling
financial assets; and

•

its contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on
the principal amount outstanding.

The Bank does not have any debt instruments measured at FVOCI.
Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income (FVOCI) – Equity
On initial recognition of an equity investment that is not held for trading, the Bank may irrevocably elect to present subsequent
changes in fair value in Other Comprehensive Income (OCI). This election is made on an investment-by investment basis. The
Bank has elected to classify certain equity investments it holds at FVOCI.
Fair Value through Profit or Loss (FVTPL)
All financial assets not classified as measured at amortised cost or FVOCI as described above are measured at FVTPL. In
addition, on initial recognition the Bank may irrevocably designate a financial asset that otherwise meets the requirements to
be measured at amortised cost or at FVOCI as at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting mismatch
that would otherwise arise from measuring assets or liabilities or recognising the gains and losses on them on different bases.
The Bank classifies its derivative financial instruments at FVTPL.
Assessment Whether Contractual Cash Flows are Solely Payments of Principal and Interest
To determine whether a financial asset should be classified as measured at amortised cost or FVOCI, an entity assesses
whether the cash flows from the financial asset represent, on specified dates, solely payments of principal and interest on
the principal amount outstanding - i.e. the SPPI criterion. A financial asset that does not meet the SPPI criterion is always
measured at FVTPL, unless it is an equity instrument for which an entity may apply the OCI election.
Assessment Whether Contractual Cash Flows are Solely Payments of Principal and Interest (Continued)
For the purposes of this assessment, ‘Principal’ is defined as the fair value of the financial asset on initial recognition. ‘Interest’
is defined as consideration for the time value of money, for the credit risk associated with the principal amount outstanding
during a particular period of time and for other basic lending risks and costs (e.g. liquidity risk and administrative costs), as
well as a profit margin.
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Financial instruments - Policy applicable after 1 January 2018 (Continued)
In assessing whether the contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest, the Bank considered the
contractual terms of the instrument. This included assessing whether the financial asset contained a contractual term that could
change the timing or amount of contractual cash flows such that it would not meet this condition. In making the assessment,
the Bank considered:
•

contingent events that would change the amount and timing of cash flows;

•

leverage features;

•

prepayment and extension terms;

•

terms that limit the Bank’s claim to cash flows from specified assets – e.g. non-recourse asset arrangements; and

•

features that modify consideration for the time value of money – e.g. periodic reset of interest rates.

Interest rates on certain loans made by the Bank are based on Standard Variable Rates (SVRs) that are set at the discretion
of the Bank. SVRs are generally based on a market interbank rate and also include a discretionary spread. In these cases,
the Bank will assess whether the discretionary feature is consistent with the SPPI criterion by considering a number of factors,
including whether:
•

the borrowers are able to prepay the loans without significant penalties;

•

the market competition ensures that interest rates are consistent between banks; and

•

any regulatory or customer protection framework is in place that requires banks to treat customers fairly

Some of the Bank’s loans contain prepayment features. A prepayment feature is consistent with the SPPI criterion if the
prepayment amount substantially represents unpaid amounts of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding,
which may include reasonable compensation for early termination of the contract. In addition, a prepayment feature is treated
as consistent with this criterion if:
•

a financial asset is acquired or originated at a premium or discount to its contractual par amount,

•

the prepayment amount substantially represents the contractual par amount plus accrued (but unpaid) contractual
interest (which may also include reasonable compensation for early termination), and

•

the fair value of the prepayment feature is insignificant on initial recognition.

De Minimis
A contractual cash flow characteristic may not affect the classification of a financial asset if it could have only a de minimis
effect on the financial asset’s contractual cash flows. To make this determination, the Bank considers the possible effect of
the contractual cash flow characteristic in each reporting period and cumulatively over the life of the financial asset.
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Business Model Assessment
The Bank makes an assessment of the objective of the business model in which a financial asset is held at a portfolio level
because this best reflects the way the business is managed, and information is provided to management. The information
considered includes:
•

the stated policies and objectives for the portfolio and the operation of those policies in practice, including whether
management’s strategy focuses on earning contractual interest revenue, maintaining a particular interest rate profile,
matching the duration of the financial assets to the duration of the liabilities that are funding those assets or realising
cash flows through the sale of assets;

•

how the performance of the portfolio is evaluated and reported to the Bank’s management;

•

the risks that affect the performance of the business model (and the financial assets held within that business model)
and how those risks are managed;

•

how managers of the business are compensated – e.g. whether compensation is based on the fair value of the assets
managed or the contractual cash flows collected; and

•

the frequency, volume and timing of sales in prior periods, the reasons for such sales and expectations about future
sales activity. However, information about sales activity is not considered in isolation, but as part of an overall
assessment of how the Bank’s stated objective for managing the financial assets is achieved and how cash flows
are realised.

Financial assets that are held for trading and those that are managed and whose performance is evaluated on a fair value
basis will be measured at FVTPL because they are neither held to collect contractual cash flows nor held both to collect
contractual cash flows and to sell financial assets.
Derecognition and Modification
The Bank derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expire, or when
it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows on the financial asset in a transaction in which substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred. Any interest in transferred financial assets that is created
or retained by the Bank is recognised as a separate asset or liability.
However, when the modification of a financial instrument not measured at FVTPL does not result in derecognition, the Bank will
recalculate the gross carrying amount of the financial asset (or the amortised cost of the financial liability) by discounting the
modified contractual cash flows at the original effective interest rate and recognise any resulting adjustment as a modification
gain or loss in profit or loss.
The Bank enters into transactions whereby it transfers assets recognised on its statement of financial position, but retains either
all or substantially all of the risks and rewards of the transferred assets or a portion of them. If all or substantially all risks and
rewards are retained, then the transferred assets are not derecognised from the statement of financial position. Transfers
of assets with retention of all or substantially all risks and rewards include, for example, securities lending and repurchase
transactions.
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Financial instruments - Policy applicable after 1 January 2018 (Continued)
Financial Liabilities
IFRS 9 largely retains the existing requirements in IAS 39 for the classification and measurement of financial liabilities. However,
although under IAS 39 fair value changes of liabilities designated under the fair value option were recognised in profit and
loss, under IFRS 9, fair value changes are generally presented as follows:
(a)

the amount of the change in the fair value of the financial liability that is attributable to changes in the credit risk of
that liability should be presented in other comprehensive income; and

(b)

the remainder of the change in the fair value of the liability should be presented in profit or loss unless the treatment
of the effects of changes in the liability’s credit risk described in (a) would create or enlarge an accounting mismatch
in profit or loss (in which case all gains or losses are recognised in profit or loss).

Initial Measurement of Financial Liabilities
All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, directly
attributable transaction costs.
Subsequent Measurement
The Bank classifies all financial liabilities as subsequently measured at amortised cost, except for financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss. Such liabilities, including derivatives that are liabilities, shall be subsequently measured at fair value.
Collection account deposits, short term borrowings, long term borrowings and other payables are classified at amortised
cost.
The Bank classifies all financial liabilities as subsequently measured at amortised cost, except for financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss. Such liabilities, including derivatives that are liabilities, shall be subsequently measured at fair value.
Collection account deposits, short term borrowings, long term borrowings and other payables are classified at amortised
cost.
Derecognition
The Bank derecognises a financial liability when, and only when, its contractual obligations specified in the contract are
discharged or cancelled or expire.
Reclassification
The Bank only reclassifies financial assets when management changes the business model for managing the financial assets.
In that instance all affected financial assets are reclassified. Such changes are expected to be very infrequent, and are
determined by the Bank’s senior management as a result of external or internal changes.
An entity shall not reclassify any financial liability.

PAGE 86

TRADE & DEVELOPMENT BANK (TDB)
Annual Report & Financial Statements 2018
To Our
Shareholders

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(j)

Notes to the
Finaancial Statements
For the year ended
31 December 2018

Financial instruments - Policy applicable after 1 January 2018 (Continued)
Write-off
The Bank directly reduces the gross carrying amount of a financial asset when the entity has no reasonable expectations of
recovering a financial asset in its entirety or a portion thereof. A write-off constitutes a derecognition event.
Offsetting
Financial assets and liabilities are offset, and the net amount presented in the statement of financial position when, and only
when, the Bank has a legal right to set off the amounts and it intends either to settle them on a net basis or to realise the asset
and settle the liability simultaneously.
Income and expenses are presented on a net basis only when permitted under IFRS, or for gains and losses arising from a
group of similar transactions such as in the Bank’s trading activity.
Impairment – Trade finance and Project finance loans, Investments, Other receivables, Loan Commitments and Financial
Guarantee Contracts
IFRS 9 replaced the previous ‘Incurred Loss’ model in IAS 39 with a forward-looking ‘Expected Credit Loss (ECL)’ model.
The new impairment model applies to the following financial instruments that are not measured at FVTPL:
•

financial assets that are debt instruments;

•

Trade and other receivables; and

•

loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts issued (previously, impairment was measured under IAS 37
Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets).

No impairment loss is recognised on equity investments.
The Bank recognises loss allowance at an amount equal to either 12-month ECLs or lifetime ECLs. Lifetime ECLs are the ECLs
that result from all possible default events over the expected life of a financial instrument, whereas 12-month ECLs are the
portion of ECLs that result from default events that are possible within the 12 months (or a shorter period if the expected life
of a financial instrument is less than 12 months), weighted by the probability of that default occurring. The Bank recognises
loss allowances at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs, except in the following cases, for which the amount recognised will be
12-month ECLs:
•

debt investment securities that are determined to have low credit risk at the reporting date. The Bank considers a
debt security to have low credit risk when its credit risk rating is equivalent to the globally understood definition of
‘investment-grade’; and

•

other financial instruments (other than trade and lease receivables) for which credit risk has not increased significantly
since initial recognition.
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Financial instruments - Policy applicable after 1 January 2018 (Continued)
Loss allowances for trade receivables will always be measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs. The impairment
requirements of IFRS 9 are complex and require management judgements, estimates and assumptions, particularly in the
following areas, which are discussed in detail below:
•

assessing whether the credit risk of an instrument has increased significantly since initial recognition; and

•

incorporating forward-looking information into the measurement of ECLs.

Measurement of ECLs
ECLs are an unbiased and probability-weighted estimate of credit losses and will be measured as follows:
•

financial assets that are not credit-impaired at the reporting date: the present value of all cash shortfalls – i.e. the
difference between the cash flows due to the entity in accordance with the contract and the cash flows that the Bank
expects to receive;

•

financial assets that are credit-impaired at the reporting date: the difference between the gross carrying amount and
the present value of estimated future cash flows;

•

undrawn loan commitments: the present value of the difference between the contractual cash flows that are due to
the Bank if the commitment is drawn down and the cash flows that the Bank expects to receive; and

•

financial guarantee contracts: the present value of the expected payments to reimburse the holder less any amounts
that the Bank expects to recover

An asset is credit-impaired if one or more events have occurred that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash
flows of the asset. The following are examples of such events:
•

significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the borrower;

•

a breach of contract - e.g. a default or past-due event;

•

a lender having granted a concession to the borrower - for economic or contractual reasons relating to the borrower’s
financial difficulty - that the lender would not otherwise consider;

•

it becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;

•

the disappearance of an active market for that financial asset because of financial difficulties; or

•

the purchase of a financial asset at a deep discount that reflects the incurred credit losses

Hedge Accounting
IFRS 9 introduces a new general hedge accounting model that better aligns hedge accounting with risk management activities.
However, the current hedge accounting requirements under IAS 39 may continue to be applied until the IASB finalizes its
macro hedge accounting project. As permitted, the Bank elected not to adopt the IFRS 9 hedge accounting requirements
and instead will continue applying the IAS 39 hedge accounting requirements. The Bank has, however, complied with the
revised hedge accounting disclosures required by the consequential amendments made to IFRS 7.
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Financial instruments - Policy applicable after 1 January 2018 (Continued)
The Bank makes use of derivative instruments to manage exposures to interest rate and foreign currency risks. In order to
manage these risks, the Bank applies hedge accounting for transactions which meet specified criteria. At inception of the
hedge relationship, the Bank formally documents the relationship between the hedged item and the hedging instrument,
including the nature of the risk, the objective and strategy for undertaking the hedge and the method that is used to assess
the effectiveness of the hedging relationship.
Also at the inception of the hedge relationship, a formal assessment is undertaken to ensure the hedging instrument is expected
to be highly effective in offsetting the designated risk in the hedged item. Hedges are formally assessed each quarter. A hedge
is expected to be highly effective if the changes in fair value or cash flows attributable to the hedged risk during the period
for which the hedge is designated are expected to offset in a range of 80% to 125%. For situations where that hedged item is
a forecast transaction, the Bank assesses whether the transaction is highly probable and presents an exposure to variations
in cash flows that could ultimately affect profit or loss.
Fair Value Hedges
For designated and qualifying fair value hedges, the change in the fair value of a hedging derivative is recognised in profit or
loss in ‘other income’. Meanwhile, the change in the fair value of the hedged item attributable to the risk hedged is recorded
as part of the carrying value of the hedged item and is also recognised in profit or loss in ‘other income’.
If the hedging instrument expires or is sold, terminated or exercised, or where the hedge no longer meets the criteria for hedge
accounting, the hedge relationship is terminated. For hedged items recorded at amortised cost, the difference between the
carrying value of the hedged item on termination and the face value is amortised over the remaining term of the original
hedge using the Effective Interest Rate (EIR). If the hedged item is derecognised, the unamortised fair value adjustment is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.
Cash Flow Hedges
For designated and qualifying cash flow hedges, the effective portion of the cumulative gain or loss on the hedging instrument
is initially recognised directly in other comprehensive income. The ineffective portion of the gain or loss on the hedging
instrument is recognised immediately in net trading income in profit or loss.
When the hedged transaction affects profit or loss, the gain or loss on the hedging instrument is recorded in the corresponding
income or expense line in profit or loss. When a hedging instrument expires, or is sold, terminated, exercised, or when a
hedge no longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting, any cumulative gain or loss existing in other comprehensive income
at that time remains in other comprehensive income and is recognised when the hedged forecast transaction is ultimately
recognised in profit or loss. When a forecast is no longer expected to occur, the cumulative gain or loss that was reported
in other comprehensive income is immediately transferred to profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(k)

Employee entitlements
Employee entitlements to service pay and annual leave are recognised when they accrue to employees.
A provision is made for the estimated liability of service pay as a result of services rendered by employees up to the year
end. Employees are entitled to a full month pay for every year of service completed.
A provision is made for the estimated liability of annual leave for services rendered by employees up to the year end.

(l)

Retirement benefit costs
The Bank operates a defined contribution provident fund scheme for its employees. The Bank contributes 21% of an employee’s
gross salary to the fund while employees can choose to contribute 7%, 14% or 21%. The Bank’s contributions to the defined
contribution plan are charged to profit or loss in the year to which they relate. The funds of the scheme are held independently
of the Bank’s assets.

(m)

Contingent liabilities
Letters of credit, acceptances, guarantees and performance bonds are generally written by the Bank to support performance
by customers to third parties. The Bank will only be required to meet these obligations in the event of the customers’ default.
These obligations are accounted for as off-statement of financial position transactions and disclosed as contingent liabilities.

(n)

Cash and cash equivalents
For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash equivalents include short term liquid investments which are readily
convertible to known amounts of cash and which were within three months to maturity when acquired; less advances from
banks repayable within three months from the date of the advance.

(o)

Leases
The determination of whether an arrangement is a lease, or contains a lease, is based on the substance of the arrangement
and requires an assessment of whether the fulfilment of the arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific asset or assets
and the arrangement conveys a right to use the asset.
Bank as a lessee
A finance lease is a lease that transfers to the lessee substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership. A lease that is not
a finance lease is an operating lease. Operating lease payments are recognised as an operating expense in profit or loss
on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
Bank as a lessor
Leases in which the Bank does not transfer substantially all the risks and benefits of ownership of the asset are classified as
operating leases and are recognised as income on a straight-line basis over the lease term. Initial direct costs incurred in
negotiating an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised over the lease term
on the same bases as rental income.
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Provisions for other liabilities
Provisions are recognised when the Bank has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events, it is probable
that an outflow will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation can be made.

(q)

Government grants
Government grants are not recognized unless there is reasonable assurance that the grants will be received and that the
Bank will comply with the conditions attaching to the grant. When the grant relates to an expense item, it is recognised as
income on a systematic basis over the periods that the related costs, for which it is intended to compensate, are expensed.
When the grant relates to an asset, it is recognised as income in equal amounts over the expected useful life of the related
asset. When the Bank receives grants of non-monetary assets, the asset and the grant are recorded at nominal amounts and
released to profit or loss in equal annual instalments over the expected useful life of the asset.

(r)

Collection accounts deposits
Collection accounts deposits include amounts collected on behalf of customers from proceeds of Bank funded commodities. The
funds are held until maturity of underlying loans. Collection accounts are recorded at amortized cost. They are derecognized
when the underlying assets are discharged.

(s)

Investment in Joint Venture
A joint venture is a type of joint arrangement whereby the parties that have joint control of the arrangement have rights to the
net assets of the joint venture. Joint control is the contractually agreed sharing of control of an arrangement, which exists only
when decisions about the relevant activities require unanimous consent of the parties sharing control.
The Bank’s investment in its joint venture is accounted for using the equity method. Under the equity method, the investment
in a joint venture is initially recognised at cost. The carrying amount of the investment is adjusted to recognise changes in the
Bank’s share of net assets of the joint venture since the acquisition date. Goodwill relating to the joint venture is included in
the carrying amount of the investment and is not tested for impairment individually.
The statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income reflects the Bank’s share of the results of operations of the
joint venture. Any change in OCI of the investee is presented as part of the Bank’s OCI. In addition, when there has been a
change recognised directly in the equity of the joint venture, the Bank recognises its share of any changes, when applicable,
in the statement of changes in equity. Unrealised gains and losses resulting from transactions between the Bank and the joint
venture are eliminated to the extent of the interest in the joint venture.
The aggregate of the Bank’s share of profit or loss 2018 NIL ( 2017 NIL) of joint venture is shown on the face of the statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income outside operating profit and represents profit or loss after tax of the joint
venture.
The financial statements of the joint venture are prepared for the same reporting period as the Bank. When necessary,
adjustments are made to bring the accounting policies in line with those of the Bank.
After application of the equity method, the Bank determines whether it is necessary to recognise an impairment loss on
its investment in its joint venture. At each reporting date, the Bank determines whether there is objective evidence that the
investment in the joint venture is impaired. If there is such evidence, the Bank calculates the amount of impairment as the
difference between the recoverable amount of the joint venture and its carrying amount, and then recognises the loss as
‘Share of profit of a joint venture’ in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(t)

Critical judgments in applying the Bank’s accounting policies
In the process of applying the Bank’s accounting policies, management has made estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities, as well as disclosure of contingent liabilities within the next financial year. Estimates
and judgments are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors, including expectations
of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances of assets and liabilities within the next financial
year.
(i)

Fair value of financial instruments

Where the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded on the statement of financial position cannot be
derived from active markets, they are determined using a variety of valuation techniques that include the use of mathematical
models. The inputs to these models are derived from observable market data where possible, but if this is not available, judgment
is required to establish fair values. The judgments include considerations of liquidity and model inputs such as volatility for
‘longer–dated’ derivatives and discount rates, prepayment rates and default rate assumptions for ‘asset-backed’ securities.
The Bank measures financial instruments, such as, derivatives, and non-financial assets, at fair value at each reporting date.
The fair value of financial instruments is disclosed in more detail in Note 33.
(ii)

Impairment losses on loans – Trade and Project Finance

Judgement is made in establishing the criterion for determining whether credit risk on the financial instrument has increased
significantly since initial recognition, determining methodology for incorporating forward-looking information into measurement
of Expected Credit Losses (ECLs) and selection and approvals of models used to measure ECL.
Assets accounted for at amortised cost and fair value through other comprehensive income are evaluated for impairment on
a basis described in accounting policy 3(b).
The Bank recognises loss allowance at an amount equal to either 12-month expected credit losses (ECLs) or lifetime ECLs.
Lifetime ECLs are the ECLs that result from all possible default events over the expected life of a financial instrument, whereas
12-month ECLs are the portion of ECLs that result from default events that are possible within the 12 months after the reporting
date.
For credit exposures where there have not been significant increases in credit risk since initial recognition, the Bank provides
for 12-month ECLs. These are classified as Stage 1 assets.
For credit exposures where there have been significant increases in credit risk since initial recognition on an individual or collective
basis, a loss allowance is required for lifetime ECLs. These are classified as Stage 2 assets.
For credit exposures that are credit impaired and in default, similar to stage 2 assets, a loss allowance is required for lifetime
ECLs however the probability of default for these assets is presumed to be 100% less any determined recovery and cure rate.
The impairment loss on loans is disclosed in more detail in notes 15, 16 and 17.
(iii)

Classification and measurement of financial assets

Judgement is made on classification of financial assets assessment of the business model within which the assets are held and
assessment of whether the contractual terms of the financial assets are Solely for Payment of Principal and Interest (SPPI) on
the principal amount outstanding.
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Critical judgments in applying the Bank’s accounting policies (Continued)
The Bank determines the business model at a level that reflects how groups of financial assets are managed together to
achieve a particular business objective. This assessment includes judgement reflecting all relevant evidence including how
the performance of the assets is evaluated and their performance is measured, the risks that affect the performance of the
assets and how these are managed and how the managers of the assets are compensated. The Bank monitors financial
assets measured at amortised cost or fair value through other comprehensive income that are derecognised prior to their
maturity to understand the reason for their disposal and whether the reasons are consistent with the objective of the business
for which the asset was held. Monitoring is part of the Bank’s continuous assessment of whether the business model for which
the remaining financial assets are held continues to be appropriate and if it is not appropriate whether there has been a
change in business model and so a prospective change to the classification of those assets.
(iv)

Significant increase of credit risk

As explained in note 3 (j) above, ECL are measured as an allowance equal to 12-month ECL for stage 1 assets, or lifetime
ECL for stage 2 or stage 3 assets. An asset moves to stage 2 when its credit risk has increased significantly since initial
recognition. IFRS 9 does not define what constitutes a significant increase in credit risk. Instead, in assessing whether the
credit risk of an asset has significantly increased the Bank takes into account qualitative and quantitative reasonable and
supportable forward-looking information.
Refer to note 2 for more details.

(u)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
i.

Establishing the number and relative weightings of forward-looking scenarios for each type of product and
determining the forward-looking information relevant to each scenario:

When measuring ECL the Bank uses reasonable and supportable forward-looking information, which is based on assumptions
for the future movement of different economic drivers and how these drivers will affect each other.
ii.

Probability of default:

PD constitutes a key input in measuring ECL. PD is an estimate of the likelihood of default ovea given time horizon, the
calculation of which includes historical data, assumptions and expectations of future conditions.
iii.

Loss Given Default:

LGD is an estimate of the loss arising on default. It is based on the difference between the contractual cash flows due and
those that the lender would expect to receive, taking into account cash flows from collateral and integral credit enhancements.
iv.

Property and equipment

Critical estimates are made by the directors in determining depreciation rates for property and equipment.
v.

Fair value measurement and valuation process

In estimating the fair value of a financial asset or a liability, the Group uses market-observable data to the extent it is available.
Where such Level 1 inputs are not available the Bank uses valuation models to determine the fair value of its financial
instruments.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(v)

Models and assumptions used
The Bank uses various models and assumptions in estimating ECL. Judgement is applied in identifying the most appropriate
model for each type of asset, as well as for determining the assumptions used in these models, including assumptions that
relate to key drivers of credit risk. Refer to note 2 for more details on ECL measurement.

(w)

Management Reserve
The Board of Directors approved creation of a management reserve in October 2018. When the Bank adopted at 1 January
2018 IFRS 9- Financial Instruments accounting standard’s Expected Loss (ECL) Model it showed that the Bank’s credit policy
was more conservative and resulted in USD 19.84 million excess impairment provision.
The board therefore approved the creation of the management reserve to cushion the Bank against credit risk and other
incidents of significant loss. The USD 19.84 million excess impairment provision was transferred to the management reserve
as at 31 December 2018. Transfers into and out of this management reserve will be approved by the Board of Directors

4.

2018
USD

2017
USD

Project finance loans

125,422,165

95,166,425

Trade finance loans

204,323,254

172,360,418

329,745,419

267,526,843

31,842,477

8,487,099

361,587,896

276,013,942

109,789,083

68,076,920

Regional and International Bond Markets

51,544,521

43,946,456

Other Institutions

37,135,298

31,828,148

198,468,902

143,851,524

BORROWING COSTS

2018
USD

2017
USD

Facility and management fees

3,556,994

1,665,080

437,562

1,953,732

INTEREST INCOME
On loans and facilities:

On placements:
Deposits/Held-to-maturity investments

5.

INTEREST EXPENSE
Interest payable on funds borrowed from:
Banks and financial institutions

6.

Guarantee fees
Commitment fees
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2,068,253

1,608,761

Agency fees

270,784

631,802

Other costs

271,745

496,813

Bank commission

118,501

168,740

6,723,839

6,524,928
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FEE AND COMMISSION INCOME
Upfront fees in trade finance
Letter of credit fees in trade finance

20,130,054

41,168,729

4,364,683

5,952,378

Management fees in trade finance

5,847,001

537,406

Facility fees in project finance

9,347,577

3,415,925

Drawdown fees in trade finance

683,225

2,247,760

Commitment fees in project finance

505,739

450,494

Drawdown fees in project finance

306,718

386,657

Other fees in trade finance

(87,999)

185,500

Restructuring fees in project finance

1,914,115

875,204

Appraisal fees in project finance

207,704

578,992

Management fees in project finance

380,105

354,326

Letter of credit fees in project finance

116,762

401,407

269,453

151,589

Document handling fees in trade finance
Other Project fees

207,317

97,912

44,192,454

(b)

56,804,279

Risk Mitigation Costs
*Insurance cover costs
**Risk down-selling costs

32,139,864

22,275,106

2,401,240

15,114,734

34,541,104

37,389,840

*This is premium on insurance cover taken on loans made to various borrowers. As at 31 December 2018, the insurance cover was USD 1.45 billion (2017: USD
1.65 billion). The cover was taken with African Trade Insurance Agency Ltd, Islamic Corporation for the Insurance of Investments and Export Credit (ICIEC), Mar
Risk Services Limited and Lloyds of London, all of which are Investment-grade companies.
**These costs represent Risk down-selling costs relating to fees paid to acquirers of loan assets distributed via the secondary market. This is in line with the Bank’s
Secondary loan trading and asset distribution activities under which, the loan assets are selectively traded to manage obligor, sector and geographic prudential
limits and to provide room for booking of new assets and generating incremental fee income. During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Bank had down
sold/distributed an aggregate of USD 704 million (2017 – USD 950 million).

8.

OTHER INCOME
Impaired assets recovered *
Other income
Interest on capital arrears**
Grant income ***

2018
USD

2017
USD

4,356,719

11,086,964

1,017,817

536,846

2,073,647

552,498

-

297,346

39,668

28,859

-

72,750

7,482,851
*Impaired assets recovered relate to previously written off loans that were recovered during the year.

12,575,263

Interest on staff loans
Rental income

**Interest on capital arrears relates to interest on capital subscriptions received during the year from member states that were in arrears.
***The grant is provided by the African Development Bank (AFDB) to fund various consultancies and training. The proceeds are credited to the AFDB deferred
income account and included in other payables (Note 29). Transfers are made to income when the costs which the grant relates to have been incurred.
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9.

OPERATING EXPENSES
Staff costs (Note 10)
Consultants and advisors
Depreciation of property and equipment

26,960,147

20,508,156

5,951,626

3,353,207

898,757

856,858

2,028,531

1,604,402

Other operating expenses

1,316,520

894,520

814,697

893,231

Business promotion

11.

2017
USD

Official missions
Board of Directors meetings

10.

2018
USD

1,334,185

1,318,308

Rent

619,082

509,511

Board of Governors meeting

308,324

416,374

Amortisation of intangible assets

421,913

374,244

Audit fees

54,000

56,000

40,707,782

30,784,811

Salaries and wages

15,331,421

12,571,500

Other costs

4,041,442

2,901,054

Staff Provident fund contributions –defined contribution plan

2,340,775

1,952,534

Service and leave pay expenses

1,644,260

1,026,547

Staff reward and recognition scheme

3,602,249

2,056,521

26,960,147

20,508,156

2018
USD

2017
USD

STAFF COSTS

IMPAIRMENT ON OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS
Other receivables (Note 21)

3,226,125

-

This relates to appraisal fees on projects previously recognized as income receivable, now written off.

12.

EARNINGS PER SHARE		
Earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit for the year of USD 129,325,392 (2017: USD 111,864,421) by the weighted
average number of ordinary shares in issue during the year.
Basic Earnings per Share:
The weighted average number of shares in issue is calculated based on the capital instalments due as at year end. The weighted
average number of shares in issue during the year was 100,794 comprising Class A – 78,643 and Class B – 22,151 (2017: 90,498
comprising Class A -71,360 and Class B -19,138).
Diluted Earnings per Share:
The diluted earnings per share is computed using the total shares in issue during the year; it takes into account the dilutive effect of
the callable Class A shares. The number of shares in issue during the year for purposes of diluted earnings per share was 101,853
(2017: 95,122).
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2018
USD

2017
USD

139,901,609

139,590,914

1,006,016,769

1,093,389,513

1,145,918,378

1,232,980,427

7,915,526

7,991,823

Euro

18,937,550

77,072,156

Tanzania Shillings

2,805,352

3,953,925

Malawi Kwacha

85,631,536

44,420,987

408,055

521,832

7,026

25,558

CASH AND BALANCES HELD WITH OTHER BANKS
Current accounts – Note 13 (i)
Call and term deposits with banks – Note 13 (ii)

(i)

Notes to the
Finaancial Statements
For the year ended
31 December 2018

Current accounts:
Amounts maintained in United States Dollars (USD)
Amounts maintained in other currencies:

Ethiopian Birr
Ugandan Shilling
United Arab Emirates Dirham

18,456,873

4,888,870

South African Rand

8,279

5,136

Burundi Francs

9,572

3,316

Mauritian Rupee

5,200

17,753

British Pounds

17,258

425

Japanese Yen
Zambia Kwacha
Kenyan Shilling

33,614

29,514

5,660,730

642,645

5,038

16,974

131,986,083

131,599,091

139,901,609

139,590,914

The average effective interest rate on current accounts was 4.95% (December 2017: 0.49%) per annum.
2018
USD

2017
USD

967,299,667

1,006,613,250

34,091,883

82,400,556

(ii) Call and term deposits with banks:
United States Dollars (USD)
Amounts maintained in other currencies:
Sudanese Pounds
Ugandan Shillings

4,625,219

4,375,707

38,717,102

86,776,263

1,006,016,769

1,093,389,513

2018

2017

11.79%

9.99%

1.79%

0.51%

The effective interest rates per annum by currency of deposits were as follows:

Uganda Shillings
United States Dollars

The deposits in Sudanese pounds do not earn interest.
PAGE 97

TRADE & DEVELOPMENT BANK (TDB)
Annual Report & Financial Statements 2018
To Our
Shareholders
Notes to the
Finaancial Statements
For the year ended
31 December 2018

14.

DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS		
As part of its asset and liability management, the Bank uses derivatives for hedging purposes in order to reduce its exposure to interest
rate and foreign currency risks. This is done by engaging in interest rate swaps, currency swaps and currency forward contracts.
		
Interest rate swaps relate to contracts taken out by the Bank with other financial institutions in which the Bank either receives or pays a
floating rate of interest in return for paying or receiving, a fixed rate of interest. The payment flows are usually netted off against each
other, with the difference being paid by one party to the other. This swap does not qualify for fair value hedge accounting, and the
Bank has treated interest rate swaps contracted to hedge the interest rate risk exposure associated with the fixed rate on its Eurobond
as economic hedges, thus derivatives at fair value though Profit and Loss.
		
The Bank hedges its exposure to adverse movements on currency exchange rates on its Euro disbursements by entering into currency
forward exchange contracts. Currency forward exchange contracts are hedges, since the bank is protecting is the USD parity of the
Euro, thus hedging the value of the assets from fluctuations.
The table below shows the derivative financial instruments, recorded as assets or liabilities at year-end.
			
2018
USD

2017
USD

Balance as at 1 January

(4,797,549)

75,418,629

Contracts traded during the year-Net

26,665,311

(84,268,108)

Fair valuation

32,175,178

4,051,930

Balance as at 31 December

54,042,940

(4,797,549)

Total Currency Hedges

54,042,940

(4,797,549)

Balance as at 1 January

-

341,813

Amounts due from counterparties

-

302,055

Amount received from counterparties

-

(196,062)

Amounts settled

-

(447,806)

Balance as at 31 December

-

-

Total Interest Rate Swaps

-

-

54,042,940

(4,797,549)

a) Currency Hedges
Foreign exchange forward contracts:

b) Interest Rate Swap:
Cash flows

Total derivative assets (a) and (b)
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15.

TRADE FINANCE LOANS

Principal loans
Interest receivable
Gross loans
Impairment on trade finance loans (Note 17)
Net loans

2018
USD

2017
USD

2,686,114,042

2,512,940,589

127,283,804

133,688,966

2,813,397,846

2,646,629,555

(79,952,961)

(75,381,275)

2,733,444,885

2,571,248,280

1,102,563,832

1,911,498,219

1,487,909,814

439,339,600

222,924,200

295,791,736

2,813,397,846

2,646,629,555

Notes to the
Finaancial Statements
For the year ended
31 December 2018

Maturing:
Within one year
One to three years
Over three years

The gross non-performing trade finance loans was USD 76,467,029 (2017: USD 72,098,214). The specific impairment provisions
related to these loans amounted to USD 75,208,488 (2017: 50,821,193) hence the carrying value of the loans amount was USD
1,258,541 (2017: 21,277,021). General provisions for trade finance loans amounted to USD 54,744,473 (2017: USD 24,560,077).

16.

PROJECT LOANS
2018
USD

2017
USD

2,720,138,793

2,291,904,734

56,582,529

50,901,119

(1,350,947,319)

(1,108,893,002)

1,425,774,003

1,233,912,851

34,144,315

33,372,663

Gross loans

1,459,918,318

1,267,285,514

Impairment on project loans (Note 17)

(30,359,524)

(32,165,365)

1,429,558,794

1,235,120,149

Loans disbursed
Interest capitalised**
Loans repaid
Principal loan balances
Interest receivable

Net loans

		
* Unsigned loans refer to loans that have been approved but whose facility agreements have not yet been processed and signed.
**Interest capitalized relates to interest in arrears on loans which were restructured now capitalized.
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16.

PROJECT LOANS (Continued)
2018
USD

2017
USD

221,675,395

385,586,099

Maturing:

Within one year
One year to three years

526,726,621

301,717,151

Three to five years

349,469,998

267,791,904

Over five years

362,046,304

312,190,360

1,459,918,318

1,267,285,514

The aggregate non-performing project loans was USD 24,147,841 (December 2017 - USD 21,485,839). The specific impairment
provisions related to these loans amounted to USD 24,147,841 (December 2017 - USD 21,485,839) hence the carrying value of the
loans amounted to NIL (December 2017- NIL). General provisions for project finance loans amounted to USD 6,211,683 (December
2017 - USD 10,679,529).
		

17.

IMPAIRMENT ALLOWANCE
The movement in the allowance is as follows:
Project
finance loans
USD

Trade
finance loans
USD

Low Credit
Risk Assets
USD

Off-Balance
Sheet
USD

Total
Allowance
USD

At 1 January 2017

49,201,206

48,400,632

-

-

97,601,838

Amounts written-off

(15,378,530)

-

-

-

(15,378,530)

Charge for the year

(1,657,311)

26,980,643

-

-

25,323,332

(5,124,877)

(4,871,937)

3,742,984

7,187,847

10,930,831

- Individually assessed

-

31,852,580

1,319,615

10,863,823

12,183,438

- Collectively assessed

3,467,566

-

-

-

3,467,566

At 31 December 2017

32,165,365

75,381,275

-

-

107,546,640

As 1 January 2018 -As
previously stated

32,165,365

75,381,275

-

-

107,546,640

Effect of change in accounting
policy*

(1,737,372)

(15,787,947)

1,501,887

-

(16,023,432)

At 1 January 2018 - restated

30,427,993

59,593,328

1,501,887

-

91,523,208

(Income)/charge for the year

(68,469)

20,359,633

1,258,541

1,607,250

23,156,955

- Amount written-back

- Amount written-back
- Provisions
At 31 December 2018

(1,437,556)

-

-

-

(1,437,556)

1,369,087

20,359,633

1,258,541

1,607,250

24,594,511

30,359,524

79,952,961

2,760,428

1,607,250

114,680,163

*Arose as a result of adoption of IFRS 9 in January 2018 which resulted in lower provisions than was previously held.
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17,496,672

TOTAL

-

22,761,285

22,602,186

-

40,257,957

31,938,654

628,653

1,755,000

592,756

1,978,734

1,000,000

2,364,160

40,342,931

677,730

1,978,734

1,000,000

1,755,000

628,653

31,938,654

2,364,160

Total ending
cost
USD

40,257,957

31,938,654

628,653

1,755,000

592,756

1,978,734

1,000,000

2,364,160

51,521,730

677,730

2,243,000

1,015,000

276,000

1,835,000

38,886,000

6,589,000

Investment
Carrying Value
at year End
USD

17,496,672

9,336,468

628,653

1,755,000

433,657

1,978,734

1,000,000

2,364,160

40,257,957

592,756

1,978,734

1,000,000

1,755,000

628,653

31,938,654

2,364,160

Investment
Carrying Value
Previous Year
USD

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

10,728,799

-

264,266

(223,000)

(1,691,000)

1,206,347

6,947,346

4,224,840

Fair value
adjustment
for day 1
USD

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

450,000

-

-

238,000

212,000

-

-

-

Fair value
adjustment
for the year
USD

been carried at fair value The Bank does not intend to dispose the shares in the short term, and none of the shares have been derecognized.

at fair value as per provision of IFRS 9 adopted in January 2018. In the previous years, these investments were carried at cost, except for Pan African Housing Fund which has always

the Bank has subscribed to the equity of various projects in its Member States. The Bank’s participation is expressed in US Dollars. As at 31 December 2018, all investments were carried

The Bank’s main equity investments are in ZEP-RE (PTA Reinsurance Company), African Export-Import Bank, Tanruss, Africa Trade Insurance Agency and Gulf African Bank. In addition,

9,336,468

628,653

1,755,000

ZEP-RE (PTA Reinsurance Company)

Tononoka

Tanruss

159,099

-

433,657

1,978,734

Pan African Housing Fund

Gulf African Bank

-

2,364,160
1,000,000

-

84,974

Africa Trade Insurance Agency

40,257,957

African Export Import Bank

At cost:

As at 31 December 2017:

TOTAL

84,974

-

592,756

1,978,734

Pan African Housing Fund

Gulf African Bank

-

1,000,000

Africa Trade Insurance Company

-

-

1,755,000

628,653

-

-

Additions at
cost
USD

Tanruss

Tononoka

2,364,160
31,938,654

African Export Import Bank

Beginning
cost
USD

PTA Reinsurance

At fair value through other comprehensive income:

31 December 2018

i) Equity participation

EQUITY INVESTMENTS
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18.

EQUITY INVESTMENTS (Continued)
2018
USD

2017
USD

Total subscribed capital*

41,865,201

41,865,201

Less: Instalments not due – Note 18 (iii)

(1,522,270)

(1,607,244)

Instalments paid as at end of year – Note 18 (I) and (iii)

40,342,931

40,257,957

1,200,000

1,200,000

322,270

407,244

1,522,270

1,607,244

ii) Instalments paid:

*Total subscribed capital includes paid up capital and unpaid subscriptions
iii) Unpaid subscriptions expressed in US Dollars at year-end rates comprised:
African Export-Import Bank*
Pan African Housing Fund*

*Unpaid subscriptions are payable on call.

iv) Movement in the instalments paid:
At beginning of year
Net additions at cost – Note 18 (i)

At end of year

19.

40,257,957

17,496,672

84,974

22,761,285

40,342,931

40,257,957

INVESTMENT IN JOINT VENTURES		

			
The Bank has a 50% interest in Eastern and Southern African Trade Advisers Limited (ESATAL) and 50% interest in Eastern and Southern
African Infrastructure Fund (ESAIF). The joint ventures were incorporated in 2016 and their principal place of business is Ebene,
Mauritius. ESATAL and ESAIF are vehicles that will raise and manage the Trade Finance Fund and the Infrastructure Fund, respectively.
The Bank’s voting rights in the joint ventures is equal to its ownership interest. The Bank’s interest in the joint ventures is accounted for
using the equity method in the financial statements. No quoted market price exists for the investments. Both ESATAL and ESAIF have
a 31 December year end for reporting purposes.
Summarised financial information of the joint ventures is set out below:
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INVESTMENT IN JOINT VENTURES (Continued)
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Summarised financial information of the joint ventures is set out below:
2018
USD

2017
USD

773,988

738,986

-

-

773,988

738,986

Assets
Current assets - cash and cash equivalents
Non-current assets
Total Assets

-

-

Equity

Liabilities

773,988

738,986

Bank’s carrying amount of the investment

386,994

369,493

			
ESATAL and ESAIF are yet to start operations. The joint ventures had no contingent liabilities or capital commitments at 31 December
2018. ESATAL and ESAIF cannot distribute their profits without the consent from the venture partners.

20.

INVESTMENTS IN GOVERNMENT SECURITIES

		
2018
USD

2017
USD

Treasury Notes:
57,275,058

214,699,238

Matured bonds

At 1 January

(57,275,058)

(159,180,887)

Accrued income

-

1,756,707

At 31 December

-

57,275,058

			
The treasury notes were issued by the Government of Malawi and held as investments in Malawi Kwacha equivalent. They matured
in 2018, hence the nil balance as 31 December 2018 (December 2017 - USD 57.3 million, bearing interest at a rate of 6.50% per
annum). These investments were managed by the Reserve Bank of Malawi and FDH Bank. The investments are classified at amortised
cost under IFRS 9.
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21.

OTHER RECEIVABLES
2018
USD

2017
USD

Down-sold assets*

70,000,000

75,000,072

Prepayments and other receivables**

44,886,422

29,828,548

Staff loans and advances***

1,216,404

1,034,033

Appraisal fees****

1,033,204

614,835

117,136,030

106,477,488

Appraisal fees receivable****
As at 1 January
Accrued income

614,835

585,040

5,198,448

544,550

Receipts

(1,553,954)

(514,755)

Amounts written off (Note 11)

(3,226,125)

-

At 31 December

1,033,204

614,835

116,834,370

106,173,304

301,660

304,184

117,136,030

106,477,488

Analysis of other receivables by maturity:
Amounts due within one year
Amounts due after one year

			
*Down-sold assets represent loan assets sold to the Bank’s counterparties on a non-funded basis. The amount will be settled within
6 months after year end. Down-selling receivable does not attract interest.
**Prepayments and other receivables comprise mainly of insurance costs on the Bank’s exposures and facility fees paid in relation
to short term facilities extended to the Bank by lenders.
***Staff loans and advances are granted in accordance with the Staff Rules and Regulations approved by the Board of Directors.
These staff loans and advances have various repayment terms ranging from 3 to 36 months.
****Appraisal fees are recognized as income receivable on approval of a facility to the borrower by the Bank.
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DEFERRED EXPENDITURE
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2018
USD

2017
USD

-

30,429,340

COST
At beginning of year
Additions

-

-

Disposals*

-

(30,429,340)

At end of year

-

-

At beginning of year

-

12,334,174

Charge for the year

-

-

Disposals*

-

(12,334,174)

At end of year

-

-

-

-

AMORTISATION

NET CARRYING AMOUNT
At end of year

Deferred expenditure comprises export credit insurance costs, long term borrowing costs and costs incurred to raise, issue and list local
currency bonds and Eurobonds in the Bank’s member countries and international markets. These costs are amortised over the life of
the underlying borrowings and bonds. Disposals relate to fully amortised costs removed from the books during the reporting period.
*This relates to transfer of deferred expenditure to long-term borrowings.
With effect from 2017, deferred expenditure was transferred to long term borrowings consistent with the application of the effective
interest rate (EIR).
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2,377,446

76,419

-

24,783

51,636

2,453,865

-

-

2,453,865

Leasehold
land
USD

1,067,139

-

-

-

-

1,067,139

-

603,982

463,157

Building under
construction
USD

18,833,364

7,749,159

-

430,094

7,319,065

26,582,523

-

3,883,342

22,699,181

Buildings
USD

227,846

497,423

-

85,544

411,879

725,269

-

136,920

588,349

Motor
vehicles
USD

751,836

998,888

(8,645)

127,335

880,198

1,750,724

(10,586)

210,023

1,551,287

Furniture
and fittings
USD

312,079

1,865,085

(11,030)

231,001

1,645,114

2,177,164

(11,741)

145,302

2,043,603

Office
equipment
USD

23,710,110

11,186,974

(19,675)

898,757

10,307,892

34,897,084

(22,327)

4,979,569

29,939,842

Total
USD

None of the assets have been pledged to secure borrowings of the Bank.

Equipment, no depreciation has been charged on these costs until the building is ready for use.

The Bank is in the process of constructing an office building. Professional costs comprising contractors and consultants’ fees have been incurred and in line with IAS 16, Property, Plant and

Building Under Construction:

Leasehold land refers to land that the Bank owns and holds on a 99-year leasehold title. Amortization is charged over the life of the lease.

Leasehold Land:

At 31 December 2018

NET CARRYING AMOUNT
140,400

-

Disposals
-

-

Charge for the year

At 31 December 2018

-

At 1 January 2018

DEPRECIATION

140,400

-

At 31 December 2018

-

Disposals

140,400

Additions

At 1 January 2018

Freehold
land
USD

Notes to the
Finaancial Statements
For the year ended
31 December 2018

COST

Year ended 31 December 2018:

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT
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23.

-

Disposals

At 31 December 2017

At 31 December 2017

140,400

-

Charge for the year

NET CARRYING AMOUNT

-

At 1 January 2017

DEPRECIATION

140,400

-

Disposals

At 31 December 2017

-

140,400

Freehold
land
USD

Additions

At 1 January 2017

COST

Year ended 31 December 2017:

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)

2,402,229

51,636

-

24,786

26,850

2,453,865

-

-

2,453,865

Leasehold
land
USD

463,157

-

-

-

-

463,157

-

345,427

117,730

Building under
construction
USD

15,380,116

7,319,065

-

443,138

6,875,927

22,699,181

-

1,710

22,697,471

Buildings
USD

176,470

411,879

-

62,469

349,410

588,349

-

106,563

481,786

Motor
vehicles
USD

671,089

880,198

-

104,684

775,514

1,551,287

-

228,241

1,323,046

Furniture
and fittings
USD

398,489

1,645,114

(4,805)

221,781

1,428,138

2,043,603

(7,071)

170,592

1,880,082

Office
equipment
USD

19,631,950

10,307,892

(4,805)

856,858

9,455,839

29,939,842

(7,071)

852,533

29,094,380

Total
USD
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24.

INTANGIBLE ASSETS
2018
USD

2017
USD

3,338,765

2,410,666

937,627

928,099

4,276,392

3,338,765

At beginning of year

2,000,735

1,626,491

Charge for the year

421,913

374,244

2,422,648

2,000,735

1,853,744

1,338,030

COST
At beginning of year
Additions
At end of year

AMORTISATION

At end of year

NET CARRYING AMOUNT
At end of year

			
Intangible assets relate to cost of acquired computer software.
Computer software are amortised over their estimated useful lives, which is on average 5 years.
			

25.

COLLECTION ACCOUNT DEPOSITS		
			

At 1 January
Increase

2018
USD

2017
USD

127,796,131

177,770,025

43,519,141

45,703,718

Reduction

(51,738,692)

(89,677,612)

At 31 December

119,576,580

127,796,131

2018
USD

2017
USD

-

94,313,391

		

26.

SHORT TERM BORROWINGS

(a) CERTIFICATES OF DEPOSITS
Lender
Reserve Bank of Malawi
Banque Commerciale du Congo
African Trade Insurance Agency

			

Certificates of deposits relate to borrowings that are payable within one year.
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26.

SHORT TERM BORROWINGS (Continued)
(b)

Notes to the
Finaancial Statements
For the year ended
31 December 2018

OTHER SHORT TERM BORROWINGS

Syndicated Loan - Citibank
Syndicated Loan – Asia (I)
Syndicated Loan- Middle First Abu Dhabi Bank PJSC
Syndicated Loan – Asia (II)
The Bank of Tokyo Mitsubishi UFJ, Ltd
Standard Chartered Bank London
Cargill Kenya Limited
Mashreq Bank
Mizuho Bank London
Nedbank
Sumitomo Mitsui Banking Corporation Euro
KfW
Africa50
Citibank
Bank One Ltd
Standard Bank South Africa
ABSA Bank
African Trade Insurance Agency
BHF BANK
Commerzbank Frankfurt am Main
Loius Dreyfus Commodities Kenya
ABC Bank Incorporation Mauritius
Bunge S.A
Standard Chartered Bank Kenya
Allfirst Bank
British Arab Commercial Bank PLC
Nouvobanq
Standard Chartered Bank

Date of
renewal/
advance

Maturity
Date

Currency

May-18
Dec-17

Oct-21
Jun-19

USD
USD

Dec-17
Dec-17
Oct-18
Dec-17
Dec-17
Nov-18
Nov-18
Oct-18
Jul-18
Dec-18
Dec-18
Nov-18
Oct-18
Sep-18
Oct-18
Jan-18
Nov-18
Jul-18
Dec-17
Dec-17
Nov-17
Dec-17
Dec-17
Jun-18
Dec-17
Dec-17

Dec-19
Dec-20
Dec-21
Dec-20
Dec-19
Nov-19
Nov-19
Nov-21
Feb-19
Mar-19
Mar-19
Mar-19
Jan-19
Jan-19
Apr-19
Sep-19
Feb-19
Jan-19
Dec-18
Jan-18
Nov-18
Jan-18
Jun-18
Dec-18
Mar-18
Apr-18

USD
USD
USD
USD
USD
USD
USD
USD
EUR
USD
USD
USD
USD
USD
USD
USD
USD
USD
USD
USD
USD
USD
USD
USD
USD
USD

Sub total for other short term borrowings

2018
USD

2017
USD

460,000,000
340,000,000
329,301,555
237,000,000
221,220,401
193,806,513
148,247,850
100,000,000
75,000,000
60,912,877
58,931,936
40,000,000
39,761,916
29,952,505
22,871,000
5,141,589
4,632,718
3,677,350
2,140,494
307,260
-

400,000,000
340,000,000
307,052,975
237,000,000
75,000,000
100,000,000
70,000,000
50,000,000
22,713,734
164,773,423
52,712,716
1,930,823
8,009,538
16,275,938
126,117,322
66,188,900
48,293,746
30,000,000
25,000,000
25,000,000
19,098,457
1,130,482

2,372,905,964

2,186,298,054

INTEREST PAYABLE

9,103,641

12,731,606

Certificate of Deposits (Note 26a)

1,243,996

115,532,623

2,383,253,601

2,314,562,283

TOTAL SHORT TERM BORROWINGS

Borrowings are classified as short term or long term on the basis of the book of business that the Bank funds i.e, Trade or Project loans, and
not on the basis of contractual maturity of the liability.
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Dec-25

Dec-23
May-20

Sep-27

Feb-18

USD

1,782,030,068

10,000,000

146,286,252

(26,682,475)

172,968,727

25,024,959

147,943,768

-

11,173,909

1,369,446

1,369,446

25,274,725

-

7,365,175

2,449,520

14,889,746

5,874,667

13,364,622

5,714,286

5,949,514

9,375,000

-

-

-

106,706

2,515,862

28,302,095

10,000,000

1,635,743,816

-

1,635,743,816

-

1,635,743,816

5,001,933

89,391,275

980,576

982,192

224,725,276

57,000,000

12,941,238

11,028,720

66,928,436

82,245,333

109,747,198

101,428,571

11,155,339

14,062,500

-

700,000,000

-

6,486

3,146,082

20,000,000

1,708,289,548

(30,455,963)

1,738,745,511

17,987,840

1,720,757,671

-

-

3,778,539

3,779,765

250,000,000

12,000,000

2,471,876

3,703,000

45,454,545

88,120,000

-

85,000,000

23,054,367

38,591,099

2,000,000

700,000,000

217,031,000

513,451

8,864,039

84,906,473

30,000,000

355,965,433

(112,777)

356,078,210

17,987,840

338,090,370

-

-

1,390,927

1,391,378

21,033,379

-

1,818,950

1,953,468

13,636,364

-

-

2,857,143

5,949,514

15,153,599

2,000,000

-

217,031,000

400,638

3,185,798

36,604,378

10,000,000

-

1,352,324,115

(30,343,186)

1,382,667,301

-

1,382,667,301

-

-

2,387,612

2,388,387

228,966,621

12,000,000

652,926

1,749,532

31,818,181

88,120,000

-

82,142,857

17,104,853

23,437,500

Borrowings are classified as short term or long term on the basis of the book of business that the Bank funds i.e, Trade or Project loans, and not on the basis of contractual maturity

of the liability.

-

112,813

5,678,242

48,302,095

20,000,000

700,000,000

The Bank repays these borrowings in either quarterly or semi-annual instalments. The Bank has not given any security for the borrowings. It has not defaulted on any of them.

										

Total long-term borrowings

(26,682,475)

25,024,959

1,783,687,584

5,001,933

100,565,184

2,350,022

2,351,638

250,000,001

57,000,000

20,306,413

13,478,240

81,818,182

88,120,000

123,111,820

107,142,857

17,104,853

23,437,500

-

700,000,000

-

113,192

5,661,944

48,302,095

20,000,000

51,500,000

USD
14,376,015

USD
65,876,015

USD
158,746,264

USD

USD
171,696,249

Deferred Expenditure

5,001,933

100,565,184

5,364,547,731

5,365,496,168

250,000,001

57,000,000

20,306,413

13,478,240

81,818,182

88,120,000

123,111,820

107,142,857

17,104,853

23,437,500

-

700,000,000

-

113,192

5,661,944

48,302,095

20,000,000

171,696,249

12,949,985

Amount due
after one year

Amount due
within one year

outstanding

Year

one year

Currency

outstanding

Amounts as at 31 December 2017
Balance

after one

due within

Amounts as at 31 December 2018
Balance

Amount in

1,808,712,543

USD

USD

TZS

TZS

USD

USD

USD

USD

USD

USD

USD

USD

USD

USD

USD

USD

USD

USD

USD

USD

USD

USD

Currency

Total

Interest payable

Sub-total for long term borrowings

BADEA

Dec-27

Mar-18

IDC – Industrial Development Corporation

May-20

Jun-15
Jun-15

Tanzania local currency fixed rate bond

Tanzania local currency floating rate bond

Mar-32

Dec-17
Dec-17

AFD -Agence Francaise De Development

The Exim -Import Bank of China

Feb-24

Mar-24

Jul-17

Standard Chartered Bank / USAID

Sep-26

Oct-21

Japan Bank for International Corporation
(JBIC)

Oct-16
Sep-17

CDC Group

Dec-28

Sep-16
Aug-16

KFW IPEX

KfW

European Investment Bank

Dec-28

Aug-11
Dec-13

Private Export Funding Corporation

Jun-23

Jan-18

Mar-10
Mar-07

Mar-22

Development Bank of Southern Africa

Dec-13

US$ 1.0 Billion Euro Medium Term Note
Programme: Second Tranche

Dec-18

Various

FMO

Dec-13

US$ 1.0 Billion Euro Medium Term Note
Programme: First Tranche

Feb-20

Various
Various

KBC Bank

Exim Bank of India Loan

Sept-19
Mar-20

Sep-12
Dec-08

Africa Agriculture and Trade Investment Fund

China Development Bank

date
Aug-23

Dec-04

disbursement

African Development Bank

Maturity

renewal/

Date of

LONG TERM BORROWINGS									

Notes to the
Finaancial Statements
For the year ended
31 December 2018
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28.

OTHER PAYABLES

Notes to the
Finaancial Statements
For the year ended
31 December 2018

		

Accrued expenses
Accrued fees-Trade Finance
Provident fund*
Other creditors**
Accrued reward & recognition
Accrued fees-Project Finance

2018
USD

2017
USD

9,374,066

4,548,881

850,382

968,344

1,243,471

8,119,134

54,008,954

63,865,893

4,971,407

3,006,127

1,370

42,170

51,622

51,622

2,357,693

1,056,296

72,858,965

81,658,467

2018
USD

2017
USD

65,535,685

75,009,560

7,323,280

6,648,907

72,858,965

81,658,467

At beginning of year

5,081,470

4,480,046

Increase in provision

1,155,218

792,997

Payment of service pay

(196,497)

(191,573)

6,040,191

5,081,470

At beginning of year

1,477,218

1,358,677

Increase in provision

402,898

164,977

Payment of leave pay

(91,667)

(46,436)

At end of year

1,788,449

1,477,218

TOTAL PROVISION FOR SERVICE AND LEAVE PAY

7,828,640

6,558,688

Rental deposit
Dividends payable

			
*Provident fund relates to the Bank’s contribution to the fund that is payable.
**Other creditors mainly relate to cash cover deposits by clients
Analysis of other payables by maturity:

Amounts due within one year
Amounts due after one year

			

29.

PROVISION FOR SERVICE AND LEAVE PAY		

			
(i) PROVISION FOR SERVICE PAY

At end of year

(i) PROVISION FOR LEAVE PAY

Employees’ entitlements to annual leave and service pay are recognized when they accrue to employees
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(6,404,787)

Paid up capital

Less: subscriptions in arrears
357,025,081

(3,281,391)

360,306,472

Less: Amounts not yet due

Capital due

366,711,259

Payable capital

(1,466,845,038)

-

- 23,099 Class ‘B’ (2017: 21,482) ordinary
shares of USD 4,533.40 each

Less: Callable capital

1,833,556,297

104,717,477

-

104,717,477

-

104,717,477

-

104,717,477

-

(895,282,523)

-

Subscribed capital:
- 80,891 Class ‘A’ (2017: 76,526) ordinary
shares of USD 22,667 each

- Class ‘B’

-

-

1,000,000,000

(166,443,703)

Less: Unsubscribed

- Class ‘A’

-

- 220,584 Class ‘B’ ordinary shares of USD
4,533.42 each

-

USD

USD

2,000,000,000

CLASS ‘B’
SHARES

CLASS ‘A’ SHARES

As at 31 December 2018

461,742,558

(3,281,391)

465,023,949

(6,404,787)

471,428,736

(1,466,845,038)

104,717,477

1,833,556,297

(895,282,523)

(166,443,703)

-

1,000,000,000

2,000,000,000

USD

TOTAL

333,838,490

(3,716,659)

337,555,149

(9,367,819)

346,922,968

(1,387,691,874)

-

1,734,614,842

-

(265,385,158)

-

2,000,000,000

USD

CLASS ‘A’ SHARES

97,386,936

-

97,386,936

-

97,386,936

-

97,386,936

-

(902,613,064)

-

1,000,000,000

-

USD

CLASS ‘B’
SHARES

As at 31 December 2017

431,225,426

(3,716,659)

434,942,085

(9,367,819)

444,309,904

(1,387,691,874)

97,386,936

1,734,614,842

(902,613,064)

(265,385,158)

1,000,000,000

2,000,000,000

USD

TOTAL

Notes to the
Finaancial Statements
For the year ended
31 December 2018

Authorised capital:
- 88,234 Class ‘A’ ordinary shares of USD
22,667 each
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30.

SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

Notes to the
Finaancial Statements
For the year ended
31 December 2018

As at 31 December 2018
CLASS ‘A’
USD
Movement in paid up share capital:
At beginning of year
African Development Bank

CLASS ‘B’
USD

333,838,490

As at 31 December 2017
TOTAL
USD

97,386,936

CLASS ‘A’
USD

CLASS ‘B’
USD

TOTAL
USD

431,225,426

293,781,436

78,269,503

372,050,939

1,128,817

-

1,128,817

1,047,215

-

1,047,215

BADEA – Arab Bank for Economic
Development in Africa

-

4,352,084

4,352,084

-

-

-

National Social Security Fund- Uganda

-

389,875

389,875

-

235,738

235,738

National Pension Fund-Mauritius

-

-

-

-

244,805

244,805

Rwanda Social Security Board

-

376,274

376,274

-

4,234,215

4,234,215

Banco Nacionale De Investment

-

-

-

-

117,869

117,869

Africa Reinsurance Corporation

-

-

-

-

104,269

104,269

OPEC Fund for International Development
(OFID)

-

-

-

-

9,311,645

9,311,645

TDB Staff Provident Fund

-

2,030,972

2,030,972

-

4,170,746

4,170,746

TDB Directors & Select Stakeholders
Provident Fund

-

181,336

181,336

-

213,071

213,071

1,222,205

-

1,222,205

1,145,137

-

1,145,137

Belarus
Burundi
China
Comoros
Congo DRC
Djibouti
Egypt
Eritrea

462,407

-

462,407

430,673

-

430,673

1,282,952

-

1,282,952

1,183,218

485,075

1,668,293

40,801

-

40,801

387,331

-

387,331

3,540,695

-

3,540,695

9,628,675

-

9,628,675

108,802

-

108,802

-

-

-

2,012,830

-

2,012,830

1,858,694

-

1,858,694

45,216

-

45,216

41,761

-

41,761

Ethiopia

2,012,830

-

2,012,830

1,858,694

-

1,858,694

Kenya

2,012,830

-

2,012,830

1,858,694

-

1,858,694

Madagascar

400,753

-

400,753

-

-

-

Malawi

498,674

-

498,674

457,873

-

457,873

Mauritius

952,014

-

952,014

838,679

-

838,679

Mozambique

145,069

-

145,069

2,063,604

-

2,063,604

Rwanda

539,475

-

539,475

953,089

-

953,089

99,735

-

99,735

95,201

-

95,201

Somalia

59,912

-

59,912

55,333

-

55,333

South Sudan

13,600

-

13,600

10,000,680

-

10,000,680

409,820

-

409,820

400,752

-

400,752

Seychelles

Swaziland
Tanzania

1,944,829

-

1,944,829

1,799,760

-

1,799,760

Uganda

2,520,571

-

2,520,571

2,357,368

-

2,357,368

Zambia

1,731,754

-

1,731,754

1,594,623

-

1,594,623

23,186,591

7,330,541

30,517,132

40,057,054

19,117,433

59,174,487

357,025,081

104,717,477

461,742,558

333,838,490

97,386,936

431,225,426

Payable capital is one fifth of the subscribed capital to Class ‘A’ shares. The remaining four fifths of the subscribed capital constitutes callable
capital. The Bank’s Board of Governors may, on the recommendation of the Board of Directors, make a call only when the amount thereof is
required to repay existing borrowings or to meet guaranteed commitments. Note 44 contains the status of subscriptions to the capital stock
by member countries.
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30.

SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

Share Premium: (Class B Shares Only)

Number of shares

Share
value
USD

Price
paid
USD

Share
premium
USD

21,482

97,386,936

150,355,414

52,968,478

1,617

7,330,541

14,862,674

7,532,133

23,099

104,717,477

165,218,088

60,500,611

17,265

78,269,503

113,376,164

35,106,661

4,217

19,117,433

36,979,250

17,861,817

21,482

97,386,936

150,355,414

52,968,478

As at 31 December 2018:
At1 January 2018
Additions during the year
At 31 December 2018

As at 31 December 2017:
As at 1 January 2017:
Additions during the year
As at 31 December 2017:

Class A and B shares
As at 31 December 2018, there were 80,891 ‘A’ ordinary shares (2017: 76,526 and 23,099 Class ‘B’ ordinary shares (2017: 21,482). Class
‘A’ shares have a par value of USD 22,667 each (comprising 80% callable and 20% payable) and were issued only to Members, while Class
‘B’ shares have a par value of USD 4,533.42 each and are issued both to Members and other institutional investors. All ordinary shares have
a right to receive dividends in the proportion of the number of shares held by each member, as and when declared by the Board of Governors.
Nature and purpose of the share premium
Class ‘B’ shares are issued at a premium of USD 6,929.47(2017: USD 5,884.58) that is determined after a valuation of the Bank’s shares.
The share premium is used to finance the operations of the Bank.

2018
USD

2017
USD

25,049,089

23,293,199

2,357,693

1,056,296

27,406,782

24,349,495

31,684,721

27,406,783

Dividends on ordinary shares declared and paid:
Final dividend for 2017: USD 308.67 per share (2016: 304.21 per share)
-Declared and paid
-Declared and not paid/payable

Proposed dividends on ordinary shares:
Dividend for 2018: USD 315.93 per share (2017: USD 308.67 per share)

Proposed dividends on ordinary shares are subject to approval at the annual general meeting and are not recognised as a liability as at 31
December.
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MANAGEMENT RESERVE

Notes to the
Finaancial Statements
For the year ended
31 December 2018

The management reserve is used to record appropriations from retained earnings to cushion the Bank against future credit risk and
other incidents of significant loss. Amounts recorded in management reserves cannot be reclassified to profit or loss and the transfers
into and out of this management reserve are approved by the Board of Directors.

32.

NOTES TO THE STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

			
2018
USD

2017
USD

129,325,392

111,864,421

898,757

856,858

421,913

374,244

2,652

2,266

(a) Reconciliation of profit for the year to cash generated
from operations:		
Profit for the year
Adjustments:
Depreciation on property and equipment (Note 23)
Amortisation of intangible assets (Note 24)
Profit from disposal of property and equipment
(Gain) in foreign exchange

(16,301,220)

(236,392)

Interest received

(271,215,413)

(235,762,869)

Interest paid

182,199,807

123,612,040

Management Reserve

19,842,913

-

Provision for impairment

23,156,955

25,323,332

981,788

481,956

69,313,544

26,515,856

Increase in other receivables

(10,658,542)

(26,934,321)

(Increase)/decrease in hedging derivative instruments-Assets

(54,042,940)

75,760,442

Increase in provision for service and leave pay
Profit before changes in operating assets and liabilities

(Decrease)/Increase in hedging derivative instruments-Liabilities

(4,797,549)

4,797,549

Increase in trade finance loans

(182,556,237)

(205,086,013)

Increase in project loans

(194,370,177)

(386,576,110)

-

18,095,167

Decrease in deferred expenditure

(8,219,550)

(43,973,894)

(Decrease)/Increase in other payables

Decrease in collection accounts deposits

(14,022,988)

16,980,773

Provision for service and leave pay paid

288,164

238,009

-

(1,756,707)

Increase in interest receivable on government securities
Interest received
Interest paid
Net increase in borrowings (Note 32 (b))

271,215,413

235,762,869

(182,199,807)

(123,612,040)

142,431,837

859,314,761

(167,618,832)

449,526,341

PAGE 115

TRADE & DEVELOPMENT BANK (TDB)
Annual Report & Financial Statements 2018
To Our
Shareholders
Notes to the
Finaancial Statements
For the year ended
31 December 2018

32.

NOTES TO THE STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (Continued)

(b)

2018
USD

2017
USD

2,314,562,284

2,369,322,431

Analysis of changes in borrowings:

Short term borrowings:
At beginning of year
Loans received
Repayments
At end of year

2,634,377,484

1,670,688,314

(2,565,686,167)

(1,725,448,461)

2,314,562,284

2,369,322,431

1,708,289,548

794,214,640

Long term borrowings:
At beginning of year
Loans received
Repayments
At end of year

547,625,476

1,175,933,883

(473,884,956)

(261,858,975)

1,782,030,068

1,708,289,548

4,022,851,832

3,163,537,071

Total borrowings:
At beginning of year

3,182,002,960

2,846,622,197

Repayments

Loans received

(3,039,571,123)

(1,987,307,436)

At end of year

4,165,283,669

4,022,851,831

142,431,837

859,314,760

Increase in total borrowings (Note 32 ( a))

For purposes of the Statement of Cash Flows, borrowings received for on-lending are treated as normal operations of the Bank
and, therefore, are classified as cash generated from operations.

2018
USD

(c)

Analysis of cash and cash equivalents
Cash and balances with other banks - Note 13
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NOTES TO THE STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (Continued)
(d)

Notes to the
Finaancial Statements
For the year ended
31 December 2018

Facilities available for lending		

			
As at 31 December 2018 the following facilities were available to the Bank for lending:

SHORT-TERM FACILITIES
LENDER

Facilities
available
USD

Facilities
utilized
USD

Facilities
unutilised
USD

Asian Syndicated Loan i

340,000,000

340,000,000

-

Middle East Syndication 2017 (First Abu Dhabi Bank PJSC )

329,301,555

329,301,555

-

Cargill Kenya

148,247,850

148,247,850

-

4,921,346

4,921,346

-

BHF Bank

African Trade Insurance Agency

34,306,500

4,972,880

29,333,620

AFREXIM

171,532,500

-

171,532,500

NIC Bank

40,000,000

-

40,000,000

Natixis

30,000,000

-

30,000,000

ING Bank

102,919,500

-

102,919,500

KBC Bank

28,588,750

-

28,588,750

DZ Bank

15,158,226

-

15,158,226

Standard Chartered Bank

330,000,000

221,419,972

108,580,028

Asian Syndication ii, 2017 (Standard Chartered Bank)

237,000,000

237,000,000

-

BNP Paribas Group

75,000,000

-

75,000,000

Commerz Bank

114,355,000

307,260

114,047,740

Mauritius Commercial Bank

90,000,000

-

90,000,000

Standard Bank South Africa

90,000,000

5,141,589

84,858,411

Deutsche Bank

60,000,000

-

60,000,000

Commercial Bank of Africa

80,000,000

-

80,000,000

Mizuho

80,000,000

75,000,000

5,000,000

220,000,000

73,665,000

146,335,000

Rand Merchant Bank

50,000,000

-

50,000,000

Bank of Tokyo Mitsubishi

221,220,401

221,220,401

-

9,865,500

-

9,865,500

25,000,000

-

25,000,000

100,000,000

100,000,000

-

Sumitomo Mitsui Banking Corporation

Banque de Commerce de placement
State Bank of Mauritius
Mashreqbank

28,588,750

-

28,588,750

FBN Bank London

FimBank

5,000,000

-

5,000,000

Societe Generale

95,000,000

-

95,000,000

Barclays/Absa Bank

24,000,000

23,358,811

641,189

Banque BIA, France

22,871,000

-

22,871,000

BMCE Bank

28,588,750

-

28,588,750

British Arab Commercial Bank
Citibank

57,177,500

-

57,177,500

65,000,000

49,554,598

15,445,402
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32.

NOTES TO THE STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (Continued)
SHORT-TERM FACILITIES (Continued)
LENDER

Syndicated Loan Oct 2018 (Citibank)
Nedbank

Facilities
available
USD

Facilities
utilized
USD

Facilities
unutilised
USD

460,000,000

460,000,000

-

85,000,000

64,098,885

20,901,115

United Bank Limited

5,000,000

-

5,000,000

Africa50

39,761,917

39,761,917

-

Bank One

22,871,000

22,871,000

-

KFW IPEX

40,000,000

40,000,000

-

4,006,276,045

2,460,843,064

1,545,432,981

Eurobond

700,000,000

700,000,000

-

Exim Bank India

100,000,000

75,000,000

25,000,000

LONG-TERM FACILITIES
LENDER

European Investment Bank (EIB)
African Development Bank

88,120,000

88,120,000

-

330,000,000

270,000,000

60,000,000

Development Bank of South Africa

95,000,000

95,000,000

-

Private Export Funding Corporation (PEFCO)

60,000,000

60,000,000

-

BKB Bank
Africa Agriculture Trade and Investment Fund
KfW

51,403,510

36,854,139

14,549,371

30,000,000

30,000,000

-

160,000,000

110,000,000

50,000,000

KfW- Ipex

133,135,287

133,135,287

-

China Development Bank

122,900,000

122,900,000

-

BHF Bank

18,000,000

7,300,000

10,700,000

Japan Bank for International Corporation (JBIC)

80,000,000

23,040,956

56,959,044

Tanzania Shillings Local Currency Bond
CDC Group
BADEA
IDC- Industrial Development Corporation

16,506,555

16,506,555

-

100,000,000

100,000,000

-

15,000,000

5,000,000

10,000,000

105,000,000

100,565,184

4,434,816

Standard Chartered Bank / USAID

50,000,000

14,703,000

35,297,000

AFD -Agence Francaise De Development

75,000,000

57,000,000

18,000,000

250,000,000

250,000,000

-

60,000,000

-

60,000,000

No Limit

-

No Limit

2,640,065,352

2,295,125,121

344,940,231

6,731,605,937

4,823,824,306

1,907,781,631

The Exim -Import Bank of China
OPEC Fund for International Development (OFID)
Exim Bank USA

TOTAL FACILITIES: 31 December 2018

Note:
Facilities utilised include outstanding letters of credit amounting to USD 161,673,239 as disclosed in note 35(b).
Syndicated Loan 2
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NOTES TO THE STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (Continued)
(e)

Facilities available for lending

As at 31 December 2017 the following facilities were available to the Bank for lending:

SHORT-TERM FACILITIES
LENDER

Facilities
available
USD

Facilities
utilized
USD

Facilities
unutilised
USD

Syndicated Loan 1

340,000,000

340,000,000

29,471,050

First Abu Dhabi Bank PJSC-Middle East Syndication

336,524,025

307,052,975

Standard Chartered Bank-Asian Syndication

237,000,000

237,000,000

-

Sumitomo Mitsui Banking Corporation

220,000,000

176,608,672

43,391,328

Standard Chartered Bank

180,000,000

89,305,073

90,694,927

AFREXIM Bank

179,662,500

-

179,662,500

KFW

164,773,423

164,773,423

-

Louis Dreyfus

126,117,322

126,117,322

-

Commerzbank

119,775,000

29,250,577

90,524,423

Certificates of deposit

115,532,623

115,532,623

107,797,500

ING Bank

107,797,500

-

100,000,000

100,000,000

-

Societe Generale

95,000,000

-

95,000,000

Mauritius Commercial Bank

90,000,000

-

90,000,000

Standard Bank South Africa

90,000,000

9,053,385

80,946,615

Commercial Bank of Africa

80,000,000

-

80,000,000

Mizuho Bank

80,000,000

50,000,000

30,000,000

FBN Bank London

80,000,000

-

80,000,000

BNP Paribas Group

75,000,000

-

75,000,000

Cargill Kenya

Bank of Tokyo Mitsubishi

75,000,000

75,000,000

-

Mashreq Bank

70,000,000

70,000,000

-

ABC Bank Mauritius

66,188,900

66,188,900

-

Citibank

65,000,000

1,310,211

63,689,789

Deutsche Bank

60,000,000

-

60,000,000

British Arab Commercial Bank

59,887,500

25,000,000

34,887,500

Africa50

52,712,716

52,712,716

-

Rand Merchant Bank

50,000,000

25,000,000

25,000,000

Bunge S.A

48,293,746

48,293,746

-

NIC Bank

40,000,000

-

40,000,000

BHF Bank

35,932,500

19,424,305

16,508,195

Nedbank

35,000,000

-

35,000,000

Natixis

30,000,000

-

30,000,000

KBC Bank

29,943,750

-

29,943,750

FimBank

29,943,750

-

29,943,750

BMCE Bank

29,943,750

-

29,943,750

Bank One

25,000,000

-

25,000,000

Banque BIA, France

23,955,000

-

23,955,000

Barclays/Absa Bank

20,000,000

6,178,650

13,821,350
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32.

NOTES TO THE STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (Continued)
SHORT-TERM FACILITIES (Continued)
LENDER

Facilities
available
USD

Facilities
utilized
USD

Facilities
unutilised
USD

Nouvobanq

19,098,457

19,098,457

-

DZ Bank

15,158,226

15,158,226

-

State Bank of Mauritius

15,000,000

-

15,000,000

Banque de Commerce de placement

9,993,430

-

9,993,430

United Bank Limited

5,000,000

-

5,000,000

Africa Trade Insurance Agency

1,930,823

-

1,930,823

Bank of China

8,000,000

-

8,000,000

Louis Dreyfus Commodities Kenya

6,421,063

6,421,063

-

United Bank Limited

5,000,000

-

5,000,000

4,130,164,941

2,568,059,261

1,562,105,680

Eurobond

700,000,000

700,000,000

-

Eurobond

300,000,000

300,000,000

-

African Development Bank

330,000,000

270,000,000

60,000,000

Eurobond

300,000,000

300,000,000

-

The Exim -Import Bank of China

250,000,000

250,000,000

-

KfW

160,000,000

85,000,000

75,000,000

China Development Bank

122,900,000

122,900,000

-

Exim Bank India

100,000,000

75,000,000

25,000,000

95,000,000

95,000,000

-

European Investment Bank (EIB)

88,120,000

88,120,000

-

Agence Francaise De Development (AFD)

75,000,000

12,000,000

63,000,000

Private Export Funding Corporation (PEFCO)

60,000,000

60,000,000

-

LONG-TERM FACILITIES
LENDER

Development Bank of South Africa

BKB Bank

51,403,510

36,854,139

14,549,371

FMO

50,000,000

50,000,000

-

CDC Group

50,000,000

50,000,000

-

Standard Chartered Bank / USAID

50,000,000

3,703,000

46,297,000

Africa Agriculture Trade and Investment Fund

30,000,000

30,000,000

-

Industrial Development Bank (IDC)

30,000,000

-

30,000,000
10,700,000

BHF Bank

18,000,000

7,300,000

Tanzania Shillings Local Currency Bond

16,506,555

16,506,555

-

BADEA

15,000,000

-

15,000,000

9,510,931

3,381,351

6,129,580

No limit

-

No limit

2,901,440,996

2,555,765,045

345,675,951

6,731,605,937

4,823,824,306

1,907,781,631

Japan Bank for International Corporation (JBIC)
Exim Bank USA

TOTAL FACILITIES AT 31 December 2017

Note:
Facilities utilised include outstanding letters of credit amounting to USD 475,127,528 as disclosed in note 35(b).
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FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Notes to the
Finaancial Statements
For the year ended
31 December 2018

			

Financial instruments recorded at fair value		
			
The following is a description of how fair values are determined for financial instruments that are recorded at fair value using valuation
techniques. These incorporate the Bank’s estimate of assumptions that a market participant would make when valuing the instruments.

Net derivative financial instruments
Currency swaps, interest rate swaps and currency forward contracts are derivative products valued using a valuation technique with
market-observable inputs. The most frequently applied valuation technique is the swap model using present value calculations. The
model incorporates various inputs including foreign exchange spot and forward rates

Financial instruments disclosed at fair value
Management assessed that the fair value of financial instruments not measured at fair value approximates their carrying amount.

Fair Value hierarchy
The Bank uses the following hierarchy for determining and disclosing the fair value of financial instruments by valuation technique:
Level 1:

quoted (unadjusted) prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities;

Level 2:

other techniques for which all inputs which have a significant effect on the recorded fair value are 			

observable, either directly or indirectly; and
Level 3:

techniques which use inputs which have significant effect on the recorded fair value that are not based on observable

market data.
		

Net changes in fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities -Level 3		
		
At 31 December 2018:

Level 1
USD

Level 2
USD

Level 3
USD

Total
USD

-

54,042,940

-

54,042,940

51,521,730

51,521,730

51,520,730

105,564,670

ASSETS
Net derivative financial instruments
Equity investments at fair value through other
comprehensive income
-

54,042,940

At 31 December 2017:
LIABILITIES
Net derivative financial instruments

-

4,797,549

-

4,797,549

-

4,797,549

-

4,797,549

The Bank has not designated any loan or receivable or borrowings and payables as at fair value through profit or loss.
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33.

FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
Transfers between Level 1, 2 and Level 3:
As at 31 December 2018 and 31 December 2017, there were no transfers between the levels.
					

Valuation of financial Instruments recorded at fair value:
The Bank uses widely recognised valuation models for determining fair values of interest rate swaps, currency swaps and forward
foreign exchange contracts. The most frequently applied valuation techniques include forward pricing and swap models, using present
value calculations. The models incorporate various inputs including both credit and debit valuation adjustments for counterparty and
own credit risk, foreign exchange spot and forward rates and interest rate curves. For these financial instruments, significant inputs
into models are market observable and are included within Level 2. The valuation is done in the Treasury Management System where
these instruments are managed.
The Bank invests in private equity companies which are not quoted in an active market. Transactions in such investments do not occur
on a regular basis. The Bank contracts experts to value these investments. Valuation is done using International Private Equity Valuation
Guidelines for these positions.
					
Valuations of financial instruments are the responsibility of Management.
The valuation of derivative financial instruments is performed daily in the Treasury Management System, while that of equity investments
is performed on a semi-annual basis by consultants who are contracted by the Financial Management Department. The valuations are
also subject to quality assurance procedures performed by the Bank’s internal and external auditors. In addition, the accuracy of the
computation is tested. The latest valuation is also compared with the valuations in the preceding periods. If fair value changes (positive
or negative) are more than certain thresholds set, the changes are further considered by senior management. Appropriateness of
valuation methods and inputs is considered and management may request that alternative valuation methods are applied to support
the valuation arising from the method chosen.
Net changes in fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities -Level 3
As at 31 December 2018

As at 31 December 2017

Realised
USD

Unrealised
USD

gains/
(losses)
USD

Realised
USD

Unrealised
USD

gains/
(losses)
USD

11,178,799

-

11,178,799

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

ASSETS
Equity investments – at fair value
through other comprehensive
income
LIABILITIES
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FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Notes to the
Finaancial Statements
For the year ended
31 December 2018

The Bank adopted IFRS 9 Financial Instruments on 1 January 2018. Equity investments, which were previously held at cost under IAS
39, were now recognized at fair value through other comprehensive income. Consequently, the gain disclosed as at 31 December
relates to valuation gains upon recognizing the assets at fair value from cost.
Quantitative information of significant unobservable inputs – Level 3:

Description

Valuation Technique

Unobservable
input

Range
(weighted
average)

2018
USD

2017
USD

International Private
Equity Valuation
Guidelines

Multiple variables

n/a

51,521,730

-

ASSETS
Equity investments – at fair value
through other comprehensive
income

Sensitivity analysis to significant changes in unobservable inputs within Level 3 hierarchy – Level 3:
The significant unobservable inputs used in the fair value measurement categorised within Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy together
with a quantitative sensitivity analysis are as shown below:
As at 31 December 2018:
Description
Equity investments – at fair value through other comprehensive

Input

Sensitivity used

Effect on fair value

Multiple variables

5%

2,576,087

income
As at 31 December 2017: NIL

Significant increases (decreases) in the equity of investee companies in isolation would result in a significantly (lower) higher fair
value measurement
Level 3 reconciliation		
		
The following table shows a reconciliation of all movements in the fair value of financial instruments categorised within Level 3 between
the beginning and the end of the reporting period:
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33.

FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
2018
USD

2017
USD

Balance as at 31 January

40,257,957

17,496,672

IFRS 9 adjustment

10,728,799

-

Balance as at 31 January-Restated

50,986,756

17,496,672

450,000

-

84,974

22,761,285

-

(288,500)

51,521,730

40,257,957

FV gains and losses
Additions
Additions/(retirements)
Balance as at 31 December

34.

SEGMENT REPORTING
The Bank’s main business is offering loan products, which is carried out in distinct geographic coverage areas. As such, the Bank has
chosen to organise the Bank based on the loan products offered as well as coverage areas for segmental reporting.
The main types of loan products are:
•

Trade finance – Short term and structured medium-term financing in support of trading activities such as imports and exports
in various member states.

•

Project finance – Medium and long- term financing of viable and commercially oriented public and private sector projects
and investments in various economic sectors or industries.

Other operations comprise other miscellaneous income like rental of office premises which cannot be directly attributed to the Bank’s
main business. The Bank also participates in the investment of Government securities and other unlisted equity investments. Transactions
between the business segments are on normal commercial terms and conditions. Segment assets and liabilities comprise operating
assets and liabilities, which form the majority of the statement of financial position.

(a)
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34.

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

Exchange Gains

Impairment on other assets

Impairment allowance on loans

Operating expenditure

Depreciation and amortisation

33,820,399

-

(471,125)

(11,012,333)

(897,995)

-

1,564,251

(8,221,032)

Risk Mitigation Costs

Other Income

52,858,633

11,977,476

Fee and commission income

Net Trading Income

40,881,157

(50,559,206)

91,440,363

Net interest income

Interest expense and other borrowing
costs

Interest income

INCOME

East Africa
USD

38,154,286

-

-

(1,103,071)

(389,952)

-

-

(9,019,064)

48,666,373

988,364

47,678,009

(63,454,029)

111,132,038

North East
Africa
USD

33,860,120

-

-

(7,233,548)

(450,054)

-

2,533,153

(14,032,706)

53,043,275

20,435,473

32,607,802

(44,238,902)

76,846,704

Southern
Africa
USD

-

1,760,105

-

(255,000)

(638,737)

(748,743)

-

23,446,093

-

-

(1,910,725)

(3,415,261)

(279,333)

29,051,412

8,452,833

20,598,579

(27,331,490)

47,930,069

Multi Regional
USD

49,940 -

-

3,352,645

2,338,308

1,014,337

(1,381,908)

2,396,245

Franco /
Lusophone
USD

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME						

							

(a)

SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)					

131,041,003

-

(726,125)

(21,898,414)

(5,902,005)

-

4,147,344

(31,552,135)

186,972,338

44,192,454

142,779,884

(186,965,535)

329,745,419

Total Lending
Operations
USD

(1,715,611)

22,886,898

(2,500,000)

(1,258,541)

(33,485,107)

(1,320,670)

3,335,507

(2,988,969)

13,615,271

-

13,615,271

(18,227,206)

31,842,477

Corporate
USD

129,325,392

22,886,898

(3,226,125)

(23,156,955)

(39,387,112)

(1,320,670)

7,482,851

(34,541,104)

200,587,609

44,192,454

156,395,155

(205,192,741)

361,587,896

Consolidated/
Bank Total
USD
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(a)

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (Continued)

The table below analyses the breakdown of segmental assets, liabilities, income and expenses;
Year Ended 31 December 2018:

Trade finance
USD

Project finance
USD

Other
USD

Total
USD

Gross interest income

204,323,254

125,422,165

31,842,477

361,587,896

Interest expense and other borrowing costs

(116,941,399)

(70,024,156)

(18,227,206)

(205,192,741)

Net interest income

87,381,855

55,398,029

13,615,271

156,395,155

Fee and commission income

31,206,418

12,986,036

-

44,192,454

(23,385,321)

(7,905,473)

(3,250,310)

(34,541,104)

Other income

-

-

1,052,485

1,052,485

Interest on capital arrears

-

-

2,073,647

2,073,647

Risk mitigation costs

Other assets written-off

(2,500,000)

(726,125)

Other assets recovered

503,410

3,850,173

3,136

4,356,719

(19,781,660)

(19,605,452)

-

(39,387,112)

(662,813)

(657,857)

Operating expenses
Depreciation and amortisation
Impairment on assets

(3,226,125)

(1,320,670)

(20,359,633)

68,469

(1,258,541)

(21,549,705)

(744,814)

(862,436)

-

(1,607,250)

Foreign exchange gain

22,886,898

-

-

22,886,898

Profit for the year

74,544,340

42,545,364

12,235,688

129,325,392

Impairment on off-balance sheet
commitments

Year Ended 31 December 2017:
Gross interest income

178,408,979

95,166,425

2,438,538

276,013,942

(102,929,017)

(44,409,204)

(3,038,231)

(150,376,452)

Net interest income

75,479,962

50,757,221

(599,693)

125,637,490

Fee and commission income

50,243,362

6,560,917

-

56,804,279

(29,889,732)

(4,128,898)

(3,371,210)

(37,389,840)

-

-

935,801

935,801

Interest expense and other borrowing costs

Risk mitigation costs
Other income
Interest on capital arrears
Other assets recovered
Operating expenses
Depreciation and amortisation
Impairment on loans
Foreign exchange loss
Profit for the year
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-

-

552,498

552,498

6,029,262

5,057,702

-

11,086,964

(15,312,618)

(14,241,090)

-

(29,553,708)

(624,062)

(607,041)

-

(1,231,103)

(26,980,643)

1,657,311

-

(25,323,332)

10,345,372

-

-

10,345,372

69,290,903

45,056,122

(2,482,604)

111,864,421
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SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)
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31 December 2018

The table below analyses the breakdown of segmental assets, liabilities, income and expenses;

(b)

REVENUE FROM MAJOR GROUPS

		
2018
USD

2017
USD

Groups contributing 10% or more of revenue

223,371,145

146,206,289

All other customers

150,566,918

178,124,833

373,938,063

324,331,122

Total Revenue

(c)

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

As at 31 December 2018:

Trade finance
USD

Project finance
USD

Other
USD

Total
USD

Cash and balances held with other banks

56,296,236

-

1,089,622,142

1,145,918,378

Investment in Government securities - held
to maturity

54,042,940

-

-

54,042,940

Assets:

Other receivables
Trade finance loans
Project loans

-

-

117,136,030

117,136,030

2,733,444,885

-

-

2,733,444,885

-

1,429,558,794

-

1,429,558,794

Equity investments - at costs
Investment in Joint Ventures
Property and equipment
Intangible assets
Total assets

Liabilities:

-

40,257,957

-

40,257,957

-

369,493

51,521,730

19,631,950

19,631,950

-

1,338,030

1,338,030

2,843,784,061

1,481,467,518

1,232,322,026

5,557,573,605

-

-

23,710,110

23,710,110

Short term borrowings

2,383,253,601

-

-

2,383,253,601

Long term borrowings

-

1,782,030,068

-

1,782,030,068

119,576,580

-

-

119,576,580

Collection account deposits
Derivative financial instruments

-

-

7,828,640

7,828,640

Provision for service and leave pay

-

-

72,858,965

72,858,965

Other payables
Total liabilities

Equity

-

-

81,658,467

81,658,467

2,502,830,181

1,782,030,068

80,687,605

4,365,547,854

-

-

1,192,025,751

1,192,025,751

2,502,830,181

1,782,030,068

1,272,713,356

5,557,573,605
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34.

SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)
(c) STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

(Continued)

As at 31 December 2017: 			
Trade finance
USD

Project finance
USD

Other
USD

Total
USD

Cash and balances held with other banks

82,400,556

-

1,150,579,871

1,232,980,427

Investment in Government securities - held
to maturity

57,275,058

-

-

57,275,058

-

-

106,477,488

106,477,488

Assets:

Other receivables
Trade finance loans

2,571,248,280

-

-

2,571,248,280

Project loans

-

1,235,120,149

-

1,235,120,149

Equity investments at cost

-

40,257,957

-

40,257,957

Investment in joint ventures

-

369,493

-

369,493

Property and equipment

-

-

19,631,950

19,631,950

Intangible assets

-

-

1,338,030

1,338,030

2,710,923,894

1,275,747,599

1,278,027,339

5,264,698,832

2,314,562,283

-

-

2,314,562,283

Total assets

Liabilities:
Short term borrowings
Long term borrowings
Collection account deposits
Derivative financial instruments

1,708,289,548

-

1,708,289,548

-

-

127,796,131

4,797,549

-

-

4,797,549

Provision for service and leave pay

-

-

6,558,688

6,558,688

Other payables

-

-

81,658,467

81,658,467

2,447,155,963

1,708,289,548

88,217,155

4,243,662,666

-

-

1,021,036,166

1,021,036,166

2,447,155,963

1,708,289,548

1,109,253,321

5,264,698,832

Total liabilities

Equity
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2018
USD

2017
USD

Approved but not contracted

17,294,830

12,841,523

Approved and contracted

10,105,737

-

(a) Approved capital expenditure

(b) Loans committed but not disbursed
Project finance loans
Trade finance loans

263,569,643

181,024,180

265,445,719

513,906,227

529,015,362

694,930,407

		
In line with normal banking operations, the Bank conducts business involving acceptances, guarantees and performances. The
majority of these facilities are offset by corresponding obligations of third parties.

Letters of credit - Project finance loans
- Trade finance loans
Guarantees

2018
USD

2017
USD

280,000

7,223,037

161,393,239

467,904,491

17,000,000

-

178,673,239

475,127,528

(c) Operating lease arrangements
The Bank as a lessor
This relates to the Bank’s building in Bujumbura of which part has been leased out. Rental income earned during the year was USD NIL
(2017 – USD NIL). At the reporting date, the Bank had contracted with tenants for the following future lease receivables (2017: NIL)
		
Leases are negotiated for an average term of 2 years and rentals are reviewed every 2 years. The leases are cancelled with a penalty
when the tenants do not give 3 months’ notice to vacate the premises. The leases had not been renewed by 31 December, 2018.
The Bank as a lessee		
			
At year end, the Bank had outstanding commitments under operating leases which fall due as follows:
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35.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND COMMITMENTS (Continued)
2018
USD

2017
USD

Within one year

350,021

446,962

In the second to fifth year inclusive

256,661

199,308

606,682

646,270

			
Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the Bank for use of its office premises. These leases are negotiated for an
average term of 5 years.
(d) Pending litigation
Litigation is a common occurrence in the banking industry due to the nature of the business undertaken. The Bank has controls and
policies for managing legal claims. Once professional advice has been obtained and the amount of loss reasonably estimated, the
Bank makes provisions to cater for any adverse effects which the claims may have on its financial standing.
As at 31 December 2018, there were legal proceedings involving the Bank amounting to USD 38,789,873 (2017 – USD 25,100,000)
that are yet to be determined. No provision has been made as, in the opinion of the Directors and the Bank’s lawyers, it is unlikely
that any significant loss will crystallise.

36.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

		

						
(a) Membership and governance						
As a supranational development financial institution with a membership comprising:- Class A Shareholders- Twenty two COMESA /
African States (the “Member States”), two non-African State and one institutional member;- Class B Shareholders – one non-African
State and Fourteen institutional members,- subscription to the capital of the Bank is made by all its Members. All the powers of the
Bank are vested in the Board of Governors, which consists of the Governors appointed by each Member of the Bank, who exercise
the voting power of the appointing Member. The Board of Directors, which is composed of Nineteen (19) Directors elected by the
Members is responsible for the conduct of the general operations of the Bank, and for this purpose, exercises all the powers delegated
to it by the Board of Governors. The Bank makes loans to some of its Member States. The Bank also borrows funds from some of its
Members. Such loans granted to Member States are approved by the Board of Directors.
The following are the details of the transactions and balances with related parties:-
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2018
USD

2017
USD

Outstanding loans at 1 January

1,907,869,877

1,132,314,880

Loans disbursed during the year

453,571,429

844,696,940

Loans repaid during the year

(559,053,690)

(69,141,943)

Outstanding loan balances at 31 December

1,802,387,616

1,907,869,877

(b) Loans to member states

			
Loans to related parties are subject to commercial negotiations on the terms and conditions of varying interest rates and terms.
Outstanding balances at year-end are secured by cash security deposits, sovereign undertakings/guarantees and insurance. The
loans to Member States are performing and the Bank has not made any specific provision for doubtful debts relating to amounts
owed by related parties (2017: Nil). General provisions have been raised as applicable.
						
2018
USD

2017
USD

266,009,640

321,797,391

(c) Borrowings from members
Outstanding borrowings at 1 January
Borrowings received during the year

8,513,580

122,903,638

Borrowings repaid during the year

(115,776,956)

(178,691,389)

Outstanding balances at 31 December

158,746,264

266,009,640

			
Borrowings from related parties are subject to commercial negotiations on the terms and conditions. The outstanding balances as at
year-end are unsecured and there has been no guarantee provided by the Bank for any borrowings from members. The borrowings
are for an average period of ten years.
2018
USD

2017
USD

180,127,858

124,347,488

(9,367,901)

(8,275,603)

20,406,465

43,171,393

(d) Income and expenses
Interest income from loans to Member States earned during the year
Interest expense on borrowings from Member States incurred during the year
Fees and commission earned from Member States during the year
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36.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)
(e) Other related parties 							
							
The remuneration of members of key management staff during the year was as follows:

Salaries and other short-term benefits

2018
USD

2017
USD

4,520,153

2,854,882

Post employment benefits: Defined contribution: Provident Fund

705,313

636,269

Board of Directors and Board of Governors allowances

258,775

345,600

Other long-term employee benefits

279,153

183,911

5,763,394

4,020,662

(f) Share capital
During the year, Class ‘B’ shares with a value of USD 2,212,308 (2017: USD 4,338,484) were issued to the TDB Staff Provident
Fund and to TDB Directors and Select Stakeholder Provident Fund.

37.

CURRENCY							
								
The financial statements are presented in United States Dollars (USD). At the reporting date, the conversion rates between one USD
and certain other currencies were as analysed below:
2018
USD
British Pound

0.7885

0.7411

Euro

0.8745

0.8318

United Arab Emirates Dirham

3.6729

3.6730

Zambian Kwacha

11.9500

9.9500

Sudanese Pound

28.8370

19.7015

South Africa Rand
Ethiopian Birr
Mauritian Rupee
Kenya Shilling
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2017
USD

14.3717

12.3075

28.3273

27.3345

34.1500

33.5095

101.8000

103.3000

Japanese Yen

110.4350

112.5400

Malawi Kwacha

728.7700

726.0702

Burundi Franc

1756.0000

1757.6050

Tanzania Shilling

2281.6000

2246.0000

Uganda Shilling

3726.2500

3635.7500
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38.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING DATE				
				

Notes to the
Finaancial Statements
For the year ended
31 December 2018

There are no material events after the reporting date that would require disclosure in or adjustment to, these financial statements.
				

39.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

			

				
The financial risk management objectives and policies are as outlined below:		
				

(a)

INTRODUCTION					

				
Risk is inherent in the Bank’s activities, but is managed through a process of ongoing identification, measurement monitoring and
reporting, subject to risk limits and other governance controls. This process of risk management is critical to the Bank’s continuing
profitability and each individual within the Bank is accountable for the risk exposures relating to his or her responsibilities. The Bank
is exposed to credit risk, liquidity risk and market risk (non–trading risks). It is also subject to country risk.
				

Risk management structure						
				
The Board of Directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Bank’s risk appetite statement and risk
management framework. As part of its governance structure, the Board of Directors has embedded a comprehensive appetite statement
and risk management framework for measuring, monitoring, controlling and mitigation of the Bank’s risks. The policies are integrated
in the overall management information systems of the Bank and supplemented by a management reporting structure.
Risk management policies and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions, products and services offered.
The Bank, through its training and management standards and procedures, aims to develop a disciplined and constructive control
environment, in which all employees and other stakeholders understand their roles and obligations.
The Bank-Wide Integrated Risk Management Committee (BIRMC) is responsible for monitoring compliance with the Bank’s risk
management policies and procedures and review of the adequacy of the risk management framework in relation to the risks faced
by the Bank. BIRMC undertakes both regular and ad-hoc reviews of risk management controls and procedures, the results of which
are reported to the Board.

Risk measurement and reporting systems
The Bank’s risks are measured using a method that reflects both the expected loss likely to arise in normal circumstances and unexpected
losses, which are an estimate of the ultimate actual loss based on statistical models. The models make use of probabilities derived
from historical experience, adjusted to reflect the economic environment. The Bank also runs worst-case scenarios that would arise if
extreme events which are unlikely to occur do, in fact, occur.
Monitoring and controlling risks is primarily performed based on prudential limits established by the Bank. These limits reflect the business
strategy and market environment of the Bank as well as the level of risk that the Bank is willing to accept. In addition, the Bank’s policy
is to measure and monitor the overall risk bearing capacity in relation to the aggregate risk exposure across all risk types and activities.
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39.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
(a)

INTRODUCTION (Continued)

Risk management structure (Continued)
The notes below provide detailed information on each of the above risks and the Bank’s objectives, policies and processes for
measuring and managing risk, and the Bank’s management of capital.

(b)

CREDIT RISK 						

The Bank defines credit risk as the risk that adverse changes in the credit quality of borrowers will negatively affect the Bank’s financial
performance and financial condition. Credit risk arises from both client-specific risk and country risk. The Bank, through its lending
operations to private sector and public sector entities in its Member Countries, and to a lesser extent, treasury operations, is exposed
to credit risk.

Credit Risk Appetite
The Bank adheres to a defined credit risk appetite which considers the maximum credit losses the Bank is prepared to absorb from
its lending activities in pursuit of corporate objectives.
The credit risk appetite statement further defines risk-based lending mandates and limits to manage credit risk concentrations at single/
group borrower, country and sector levels within expectations to minimise unexpected credit losses.
All limits were within approved risk appetite thresholds as at 31 December 2018
									

Risk Management Policies and Processes				
							
The Bank manages credit risk through an integrated risk management policy framework and processes which place great emphasis
on rigorous screening of borrowers at loan origination.
						
The risk management policies and processes are designed to identify, measure, manage and control credit risk throughout the whole
project cycle. The lending process follows a formalised system of strict procedures and processes and committee-based decisionmaking processes.

Client-Specific Risk
The Bank uses credit assessment and risk profiling systems, including borrower risk rating models to evaluate the credit risk of the
investment proposals both at loan origination and during the life of the loan.
The Bank seeks to mitigate credit risk in its lending operations and calls for risk mitigating measures such as security in the form of real
estate collateral, personal and corporate guarantees. Such collateral is re-valued every three years or earlier should there be any
evidence of diminution in value.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
(a)

INTRODUCTION (Continued)

Notes to the
Finaancial Statements
For the year ended
31 December 2018

Country risk
The Bank considers country-specific political, social and economic events which may have an adverse impact on the credit quality of
its borrowers. To mitigate such risks, the Bank uses prudent country exposure management policies. In addition, the Bank considers
the economic, social and political profile of the country in which the investment project is domiciled before approval is granted. The
investment proposal is also loaded with the risk premium that reflects the risk rating of the host country.
			
Notes 42 and 43 of the Financial Statements contain further country exposure analysis as at 31 December 2018 and 31 December 2017.
				

Credit-related commitment risks
				
The Bank makes available to its customers guarantees that may require that the Bank makes payments on their behalf and enters into
commitments to extend credit lines to secure their liquidity needs. Letters of credit and guarantees (including standby letters of credit)
commit the Bank to make payments on behalf of customers in the event of a specific act, generally related to the import or export of
goods. Such commitments expose the Bank to similar risks to loans and are mitigated by the same control processes and policies.
These are further disclosed under Note 35(b).

Credit quality
The following tables sets out information about the credit quality and credit risk exposure of financial assets measured at amortised
cost (31 December 2018) and loans and receivables (31 December 2017). Unless specifically indicated, the amounts in the table
represent gross carrying amounts. For loan commitments the amounts in the table represent the undrawn portion of amounts committed.
Loan commitments are undisbursed facilities including letters of credit. Explanation of the terms ‘Stage 1’, ‘Stage 2’, ‘Stage 3’ and
purchased originated credit impaired (POCI) assets is included in Note 2 (b) and 3 (j).
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39.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
(b)

CREDIT RISK (Continued)

Credit quality (Continued)
31 December 2018

31 December 2017

Stage 1
USD

Stage 2
USD

Stage 3
USD

Total
USD

Total
USD

1,254,771,124

-

-

1,254,771,124

1,094,560,380

Special mention

-

180,999,353

-

180,999,353

151,239,295

Substandard, Doubtful & Loss

-

-

24,147,841

24,147,841

21,485,839

1,254,771,124

180,999,353

24,147,841

1,459,918,318

1,267,285,514

(1,584,648)

(4,627,035)

(24,147,841)

(30,359,524)

(32,165,365)

1,253,186,476

176,372,318

-

1,429,558,794

1,235,120,149

2,527,025,580

-

-

2,527,025,580

2,383,278,832

-

211,163,777

-

211,163,777

191,252,509

-

-

75,208,489

75,208,489

72,098,214

2,527,025,580

211,163,777

75,208,489

2,813,397,846

2,646,629,555

Project finance loans:
Pass/Acceptable

Loss Allowance
Carrying Amount
Trade finance loans:
Pass/ acceptable
Special mention
Substandard, Doubtful & Loss
Loss Allowance
Carrying Amount

(2,470,667)

(2,273,805)

(75,208,489)

(79,952,961)

(75,381,275)

2,524,554,913

208,889,972

-

2,733,444,885

2,571,248,280

566,479,040

-

-

566,479,040

396,963,457

-

2,457,056

-

2,457,056

15,411,903

566,479,040

2,457,056

-

568,936,096

412,375,360

Undisbursed commitments:
Pass/ Acceptable
Special mention
Loss Allowance
Carrying Amount

(1,517,384)

(27,252)

-

(1,544,636)

-

564,961,656

2,429,804

-

567,391,460

412,375,360

Letters of Credit:
Pass/acceptable
Special mention

Loss Allowance
Carrying Amount

19,121,521

-

-

19,121,521

47,948,322

-

-

-

-

22,682,974

19,121,521

-

-

19,121,521

70,631,296

(62,614)

-

-

(62,614)

-

19,058,907

-

-

19,058,907

70,631,296

585,600,561

-

-

585,600,561

444,911,779

-

2,457,056

-

2,457,056

38,094,877

585,600,561

2,457,056

-

588,057,617

483,006,656

(1,579,998)

(27,252)

-

(1,607,250)

-

584,020,563

2,429,804

-

586,450,367

483,006,656

Total off-balance sheet items
Pass/ Acceptable
Special mention
Loss Allowance
Carrying Amount
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CREDIT RISK (Continued)

Maximum Exposure to Credit Risk before Collateral Held:		
								
2018
USD

%

2017
USD

%

1,145,918,378

21

1,232,980,427

23

On - statement of financial position Items
Cash and Balances held with other banks
Investment in Government securities
Other receivables
Derivative financial instruments

-

-

57,275,058

1

72,249,608

1

76,648,950

1

54,042,940

1

-

-

Loans and advances

4,273,316,164

77

3,913,915,069

75

-Project loans

1,459,918,318

1,267,285,514

-Trade finance loans

2,813,397,846

2,646,629,555

Sub Total

5,545,527,090

100

5,280,819,504

100

Letters of Credit

161,673,239

23

475,127,528

41

Loan Commitments not disbursed

529,015,362

75

694,930,407

59

17,000,000

2

-

-

707,688,601

100

1,170,057,935

100

Off - statement of financial position Items

Guarantees and Performance Bonds
Sub Total
Total Credit Exposure

6,253,215,691

6,450,877,439

				
The above figures represent the worst case scenario of credit exposure for the two years without taking into account any collateral
held or other credit enhancements. Loan and advances and off-statement of financial position items took up 79.66% in 2018 (2017
– 78.8%) of the total maximum credit exposure.
Other than cash and bank balances amounting to USD 1,145,918,378 (2017 -USD 1,232,980,427) and Investment in government
securities of USD NIL (2017-USD 57,275,058) all other credit risk exposures are secured by collateral in the form of cash liens,
mortgages on land and buildings, securities charged over plant and machinery and third party guarantees.
As at 31 December 2018, the fair value of collateral held for impaired loans and advances was USD 251,217,197 (2017 – USD
256,464,924) and provided sufficient cover over the gross exposure of USD 100,614,870 (2017-USD 93,584,053) and over the
net exposure of USD NIL (2017-USD 21,277,021) after deducting the impairment allowances.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
(b)

CREDIT RISK (Continued)

Classification of Loans and advances
		
Gross
amount
USD

Impairment
allowance
USD

Net
amount
USD

%

4,043,912,116

(10,956,156)

4,032,955,960

97

Past due but not impaired

128,789,178

-

128,789,178

3

Impaired

100,614,870

(99,356,329)

1,258,541

0

4,273,316,164

(110,312,485)

4,163,003,679

100

Gross
amount
USD

Impairment
allowance
USD

Net
amount
USD

%

3,640,648,029

(35,239,608)

3,605,408,421

95

179,682,987

-

179,682,987

4

93,584,053

(72,307,032)

21,277,021

1

3,913,915,069

(107,546,640)

3,806,368,429

100

For year ended 31 December 2018
Category
Neither past due nor impaired

Total

						
For year ended 31 December 2017
Category
Neither past due nor impaired*
Past due but not impaired
Impaired
Total

The amounts which are past due but not impaired are secured by collaterals in the form of cash liens, mortgages on land and buildings,
securities charged over plant and machinery and third party guarantees.
*The impairment allowance on neither past due nor impaired amounts relate to general provisions.
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CREDIT RISK (Continued)

Classification of Loans and advances (Continued)
Ageing of arrears for past due loans and advances not impaired

2018
USD

2017
USD

Below 30 Days

49,728,080

26,100,797

31 to 90 Days

4,326,490

31,394,293

91-180 Days

4,153,855

23,155,054

181-360 Days

40,221,656

58,044,357

Over 360 Days

30,359,097

40,988,486

128,789,178

179,682,987

195,265

1,214,342

Total arrears

Ageing of arrears for impaired loans and advances
Below 30 Days
31-90 Days

301,917

-

91-180 Days

739,049

12,287,561

181-360 Days

2,989,861

11,574,262

Over 360 Days

74,751,873

54,684,000

Total arrears

78,977,965

79,760,165

Amounts not in arrears

21,636,905

13,823,888

100,614,870

93,584,053

Total

Loans and advances that are neither past due nor impaired			
The Bank classifies loans and advances under this category for borrowers that are up to date with their principal and interest payments
and conforming to all the agreed terms and conditions. Such borrowers are financially sound and demonstrate capacity to continue
to service their debts in the future. The Bank classifies such loans as ‘Low Risk-PTAR 1 and Satisfactory Risk-PTAR 2’ in line with its
Loan Classification Policy.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
(b)

CREDIT RISK (Continued)

Past due but not impaired						
							
Loans under this category are performing well but exhibit potential weaknesses which may, if not corrected in good time, weaken
the borrower’s capacity to repay. These weaknesses may also result in the Bank’s interest not being adequately protected. Such
weaknesses include temporary cash flow constraints and deteriorating economic conditions. The Bank classifies such loans as ‘Fair
Risk-PTAR 3 and Watch Risk- PTAR 4’ in line with its Loan Classification Policy. Sovereign loans that are past due are not considered
impaired unless otherwise approved by the Bank’s Board of Directors.
							

Impaired loans and advances						
							
The Bank, depending on the severity of default and deterioration of borrower’s financial condition and collateral, classifies impaired
loans into three categories ‘Substandard-PTAR 5’, ‘Doubtful-PTAR 6’ and ‘Loss-PTAR 7’. Thus, impaired loans range from those that are
not adequately protected by their current sound worth and paying capacity of the obligor to those that are considered uncollectible
or of such little value that their continuance as bankable assets is not warranted.

Collateral Held					
						
In addition to its rigorous credit risk assessments, the Bank seeks to protect its interests in the event of unpredictable and extreme factors
that negatively affect the borrower’s capacity to service the Bank’s loan by calling for credit enhancement arrangements in need. In
this regard, the Bank calls for security such as mortgage interest on property, registered securities over financed or third-party assets
and guarantees. The security cover required is, at least, one and a third times the loan amount that is disbursed. Such security is
subject to regular reviews and, if necessary, revaluation every three years.
The Bank does not hold security over deposits placed with other banks or financial institutions and government securities. However,
the Bank places deposits with well vetted and financially sound counter-parties. In addition, the Bank places limits on counter-party
exposures which are set, monitored and reviewed by the Bank-Wide Integrated Risk Management Committee.
For both periods ended 31 December 2018 and 31 December 2017, the Bank’s collateral exceeded the outstanding gross portfolio.
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(b) CREDIT RISK (Continued)
Collateral held for loan portfolio

(i)

2018
USD

2017
USD

587,971,517

695,558,779

Total portfolio:

Mortgages on properties
Fixed charge on plant and equipment

786,375,582

816,158,207

1,087,466,651

740,061,620

381,906,582

912,363,601

2,979,738,078

2,082,965,110

63,678,563

45,878,563

5,887,136,973

5,292,985,880

Gross portfolio

(4,273,316,164)

(3,913,915,069)

Net cover

1,613,820,809

1,379,070,811

493,631,052

591,884,789

661,389,974

709,434,599

1,087,466,651

740,061,620

Cash security deposits
Sovereign undertakings
Insurance and Guarantees
Other floating all asset debenture
Total security cover

(ii)

Loans not impaired:

Mortgages on properties
Fixed charge on plant and equipment
Cash security deposits
Sovereign undertakings

381,906,582

912,363,601

2,947,846,954

2,036,897,784

63,678,563

45,878,563

5,635,919,776

5,036,520,956

Gross portfolio

(4,172,701,294)

(3,820,331,016)

Net cover

1,463,218,482

1,216,189,940

Insurance and Guarantees
Other floating all asset debenture
Total security cover

		

(iii)

Impaired loans:

Mortgages on properties

94,340,465

103,673,990

124,985,608

106,723,608

31,891,124

46,067,326

251,217,197

256,464,924

Gross portfolio

(100,614,870)

(93,584,053)

Net cover

150,602,327

162,880,871

Fixed charge on plant and equipment
Insurance and Guarantees
Total security cover
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
(b)

CREDIT RISK (Continued)

Inputs, assumptions and techniques used for estimating impairment
Significant Increase in Credit Risk
When determining whether the credit risk (i.e. risk of default) on a financial instrument has increased significantly since initial recognition,
the bank considers reasonable and supportable information that is relevant and available without undue cost or effort. This includes
both quantitative and qualitative information and analysis based on the Bank’s historical experience, expert credit assessment and
forward-looking information.
The Bank uses the following criteria for determining whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk:
•

Qualitative indicators;

•

Project finance and Trade Finance loans rated PTAR 3 and 4; and

•

a backstop of 30 days past due

Credit Risk Classification
The Bank allocates each exposure to a credit risk classification using its Credit Risk Assessment System based on the exposures’
risk attributes and their fair values accurately determined and reflected in the Bank’s books as well as applying experienced credit
judgement. The Bank uses these classifications in identifying significant increases in credit risk under IFRS 9. The risk classifications
are defined using days past due, qualitative and quantitative factors that are indicative of the risk of default. These factors may vary
depending on the nature of the exposure and the type of borrower. The Bank goes through a credit appraisal process and determines
the credit quality of each exposure on initial recognition based on available information about the borrower. Exposures are subject
to on-going monitoring, which may result in an exposure being moved to a different credit risk classification.
The table below provides an indicative mapping of how the Group’s internal credit grades relate to PD.
Trade Finance loans
Grading:
Very Low risk
Low risk
Moderate risk
High risk
Substandard
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CREDIT RISK (Continued)

Project Finance loans
Grading:

12-month weighted average PD

Very Low risk

0.54%

Low risk
Moderate risk
High risk

10.90%

High risk
Substandard
Bad & Doubtful

100%

Loss

Determining Whether Credit Risk Has Increased Significantly
The Bank assesses whether credit risk has increased significantly since initial recognition at each reporting date. The Bank has
established a framework that incorporates both quantitative and qualitative information to determine whether the credit risk on a
particular financial instrument has increased significantly since initial recognition. The framework aligns with the Bank’s internal credit
risk management process. The criteria for determining whether credit risk has increased significantly varies by product and includes
a backstop based on delinquency.
Currently, the Bank will deem the credit risk of a particular exposure to have increased significantly since initial recognition based
on a loan being rated as PTAR 3 and PTAR 4 or being in arrears for a period of 30 to 89 days. The Bank will develop an internal
rating model going forward and movement in the probability of default (PD) between the reporting period and initial recognition
date/ the date of initial application of IFRS 9 of the loan will form the basis of significant increase in credit risk. In certain instances,
using its expert credit judgement and, where possible, relevant historical experience, the Bank may determine that an exposure has
undergone a significant increase in credit risk if particular qualitative factors linked to the Bank’s risk management processes indicate
so and those indicators may not be fully captured by its quantitative analysis on a timely basis. As a backstop, and as required by
IFRS 9, the Bank presumptively considers that a significant increase in credit risk occurs no later than when an asset is more than 30
days past due. The Bank determines days past-due by counting the number of days since the earliest elapsed due date in respect
of which full payment has not been received.
Definition of Default
The Bank will consider a financial asset to be in default when:
•

the borrower is unlikely to pay its credit obligations to the Bank in full, without recourse by the Bank to actions such as realising
security (if any is held);

•

the borrower has a risk classification of PTAR 5,6 and 7;or

•

the borrower is more than 90 days past due on any material credit obligation to the Bank.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
(b)

CREDIT RISK (Continued)

Definition of Default (Continued)
In assessing whether a borrower is in default, the Bank will consider indicators that are:
•

qualitative: e.g. breaches of covenant;

•

quantitative: e.g. overdue status and non-payment of another obligation of the same issuer to the Bank; and

•

based on data developed internally and obtained from external sources.

Inputs into the assessment of whether a financial instrument is in default and their significance may vary over time to reflect changes
in circumstances. The Bank has not rebutted the 90 days past due buck stop.
Incorporation of forward-looking Information
The Bank incorporates forward-looking information in its measurement of ECLs. The Bank formulates three economic scenarios: a
base case, which is the median scenario assigned a 50% probability of occurring, and two less likely scenarios, one upside and
one downside, assigned a 20% and 30% probability of occurring respectively. The base case represents a most-likely outcome and
is aligned with information used by the Bank for determining country lending limits as well as strategic planning. External information
includes economic data and forecasts published by governmental bodies and monetary authorities in the various jurisdictions in which
the Bank operates, supranational organisations such as the World Bank and the International Monetary Fund and selected private
sector and academic forecasters.
The Bank formulates a ‘base case’ view of the future direction of relevant economic variables in the various jurisdictions in which
it operates, and a representative range of other possible forecast scenarios based on advice from the Bank’s Risk Management
Committee and economic experts and consideration of a variety of external actual and forecast information.
The macroeconomic variables applied are those used as part of determining the country risk ratings for different jurisdictions in which
the bank lends. Using forecasted macroeconomic information, the country risk ratings are forecasted for a period of three (3) years
and the aggregated changes in country risk ratings, year-on-year, starting with the base year (financial reporting year-end) are
applied as the forward looking information.
The Bank has identified and documented key drivers of credit risk and credit losses for each portfolio of financial instruments and,
using an analysis of historical data, has estimated relationships between macro-economic variables and credit risk and credit losses.
These key drivers include Political risk, Economic strength and performance, Transfer and currency risk, Governance, Debt sustainability
vs Fiscal strength and Bank experience. Country risk ratings have been developed based on analysing these factors and the aggregate
predicted changes in these ratings considered as the predictor of the future default rate. The economic scenarios used are approved
by the Bank’s Credit Committee.
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Modified Financial Assets (Restructured Assets)
The contractual terms of a loan may be modified for a number of reasons, including changing market conditions, customer retention
and other factors not related to a current or potential credit deterioration of the customer. An existing loan whose terms have been
modified may be derecognised and the renegotiated loan recognised as a new loan at fair value. When the terms of a financial asset
are modified, and the modification does not result in derecognition, the determination of whether the asset’s credit risk has increased
significantly reflects comparison of the borrower’s initial credit risk assessment and the current assessment at the point of modification.
When modification results in derecognition, a new loan is recognised and allocated to Stage 1 (assuming it is not credit-impaired
at that time).
The Bank renegotiates loans to customers in financial difficulties (referred to as ‘restructuring’) to maximise collection opportunities
and minimise the risk of default. Under the Bank’s restructuring policy, loan restructuring is granted on a selective basis if the debtor
is currently in default on its debt or if there is a high risk of default, there is evidence that the debtor made all reasonable efforts to
pay under the original contractual terms and the debtor is expected to be able to meet the revised terms. The revised terms usually
include extending the maturity, changing the timing of interest payments and amending the terms of loan covenants. The Bank Credit
Committee regularly reviews reports on restructuring activities.
For financial assets modified as part of the Bank’s forbearance policy, the estimate of PD reflects whether the modification has improved
or restored the Bank’s ability to collect interest and principal and the Bank’s previous experience of similar forbearance action. As
part of this process, the Bank evaluates the borrower’s payment performance against the modified contractual terms and considers
various behavioural indicators.
Generally, restructuring is a qualitative indicator of default and credit impairment and expectations of restructuring are relevant to
assessing whether there is a significant increase in credit risk. Following restructuring, a customer needs to demonstrate consistently
good payment behaviour over a period of time before the exposure is no longer considered to be in default/credit-impaired or the
PD is considered to have decreased such that the loss allowance reverts to being measured at an amount equal to 12-month ECLs.
Inputs into Measurement of ECLs
The key inputs into the measurement of ECLs are the term structures of the following variables:
•

Probability of Default (PD);

•

loss given default (LGD); and

•

exposure at default (EAD).

These parameters are derived from internally developed statistical models and other historical data that leverage regulatory models.
They are adjusted to reflect forward-looking information as described above.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
(b)

CREDIT RISK (Continued)

Inputs into Measurement of ECLs (Continued)
PD estimates for loans and advances are estimates at a certain date, which are calculated based on statistical migration matrices
that model the chance of an exposure transitioning to default over time and are assessed at portfolio level for portfolios of assets
that have similar characteristics. These statistical models are based on internally compiled data comprising both quantitative and
qualitative factors. Where it is available, external market data may also be used to derive the PD for large corporate counterparties. If
a counterparty or exposure migrates between ratings classes, then this leads to a change in the estimate of the associated PD. Lifetime
PDs are estimated considering the contractual maturities of exposures and estimated prepayment rates. The Bank PD estimates for
other exposures are estimates at a certain date, which are estimated based on external credit rating information and assessed using
rating tools tailored to the various categories of counterparties and exposures.
LGD is the magnitude of the likely loss if there is a default. The Bank estimates LGD parameters based on collateral available against
exposures and the history of recovery rates of claims against defaulted counterparties. The LGD models consider the structure, collateral
quality, seniority of the claim, counterparty industry and recovery costs of any collateral that is integral to the financial asset. LGD
estimates are calibrated for different collateral types by applying haircuts to adjust the market value of collateral to best reflect the
amounts recoverable. The collateral values to consider are calculated on a discounted cash flow basis using the effective interest.
EAD represents the expected exposure in the event of a default. The Bank derives the EAD from the current exposure to the counterparty
and potential changes to the current amount allowed under the contract, including amortisation, and prepayments. The EAD of a
financial asset is the gross carrying amount at default. For lending commitments and non-financial guarantees, the EAD considers
the amount drawn, as well as potential future amounts that may be drawn or repaid under the contract, which is estimated based on
historical observations and forward-looking forecasts.
As described above, and subject to using a maximum of a 12-month PD for financial assets for which credit risk has not significantly
increased, the Bank measures ECLs considering the risk of default over the maximum contractual period (including any borrower’s
extension options) over which it is exposed to credit risk, even if, for risk management purposes, the Bank considers a longer period.
The maximum contractual period extends to the date at which the Bank has the right to require repayment of an advance or terminate
a loan commitment or guarantee. For overdrafts, guarantee facilities and other revolving facilities that include both a loan and an
undrawn commitment component, the Bank measures ECLs over a period of one year unless the expected life of the exposure can
be reasonably determined.
Where modelling of a parameter is carried out on a collective basis, the financial instruments are grouped on the basis of shared
risk characteristics that include:
•

Product type; and

•

Industry.

The groupings are subject to regular review to ensure that exposures within a particular group remain appropriately homogeneous.
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CREDIT RISK (Continued)

Amount arising from ECL
Loss allowance
The following tables show reconciliations from the opening to the closing balance of the loss allowance by Segment. Comparative
amounts for 2017 are shown in Note 17, and they represent the allowance account for credit losses and reflect the measurement
basis under IAS 39
As at 31 December 2018
Stage 1
USD

Stage 2
USD

Stage 3
USD

Total
USD

Project finance loans:
Balance at 1 January
Transfer to 12 months ECL
Transfer to Lifetime ECL not credit impaired

1,964,474

6,539,709

21,485,839

29,990,022

773,111

(773,111)

-

-

(65,570)

65,570

-

-

Transfer to Lifetime ECL credit impaired

-

(47,915)

47,915

-

Net re-measurement of Loss allowance

(958,225)

(1,071,756)

4,051,643

2,021,662

Financial assets derecognised

(129,142)

(85,462)

-

(214,604)

Financial assets written off

-

-

(1,437,556)

(1,437,556)

Balance at 31 December

1,584,648

4,627,035

24,147,841

30,359,524

Balance at 1 January

3,756,909

3,039,495

50,821,193

57,617,597

Transfer to 12 months ECL

1,055,331

(1,055,331)

-

-

(65,989)

65,989

-

-

-

(569,898)

569,898

-

(1,899,056)

(464,885)

25,075,938

22,711,997

2,470,575

1,015,357

76,467,029

79,952,961

1,670,699

89,134

-

1,759,833

(177,385)

-

-

(177,385)

Trade finance loans:

Transfer to Lifetime ECL not credit impaired
Transfer to Lifetime ECL credit impaired
Net of financial assets originated and
remeasurement of Loss allowance
Balance at 31 December
Undisbursed commitments:
Balance at 1 January
Net remeasurement of Loss allowance
Net financial assets originated or purchased
Financial assets derecognised
Balance at 31 December

1,265,725

27,252

-

1,292,977

(1,241,655)

(89,134)

-

(1,330,789)

1,517,384

27,252

-

1,544,636

333,710

131,186

-

464,896

Letters of credit:
Balance at 1 January
Net remeasurement of Loss allowance
Net financial assets originated or purchased
Financial assets derecognized
Balance at 31 December

5,287

-

-

5,287

34,641

-

-

34,641

(311,025)

(131,186)

-

(442,211)

62,613

-

-

62,613
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
(b)

CREDIT RISK (Continued)

Loss allowance (Continued)
The ECL on cash and balances with other banks, Trade and Project finance loans and loan commitments are presented in cash and
balances with other banks, Trade and Project finance loans and other liabilities respectively in the statement of financial position.
Gross Loans and advances
The following tables show reconciliations from the opening to the closing balance of the loss allowance by Segment. Comparative
amounts for 2017 represent the allowance account for credit losses and reflect the measurement basis under IAS 39.
As at 31 December 2018
Stage 1
USD

Stage 2
USD

As at 31 December 2018
Stage 3
USD

Total
USD

USD

Project finance loans;
Balance at 1 January

1,076,907,090

151,239,295

21,485,839

1,249,632,224

846,886,728

Transfer to 12 months ECL

34,455,556

Transfer to Lifetime ECL not credit impaired

(61,713,993)

(34,455,556)

-

-

-

61,713,993

-

-

Transfer to Lifetime ECL credit impaired

-

(3,823,196)

3,823,196

-

-

Net re-measurement of Loss allowance
Financial assets derecognised

226,550,837

13,209,361

276,362

240,036,560

435,777,316

(21,428,366)

(6,884,544)

-

(28,312,910)

-

Financial assets written off

-

-

(1,437,556)

(1,437,556)

(15,378,530)

Balance at 31 December

1,254,771,124

180,999,353

24,147,841

1,459,918,318

1,267,285,514

2,417,929,845

191,252,509

72,098,214

2,681,280,568

2,441,543,542
-

Trade finance loans:
Balance at 1 January

75,155,108

(75,155,108)

-

-

Transfer to Lifetime ECL not credit impaired

Transfer to 12 months ECL

(32,424,801)

32,424,801

-

-

Net remeasurement

224,260,830

72,971,480

(7,215,825)

290,016,485

Financial assets derecognised

205,086,013

(157,895,402)

(3,805)

-

(157,899,207)

-

2,527,025,580

211,163,777

75,208,489

2,813,397,846

2,646,629,555

396,963,457

15,411,903

-

412,375,360

-

424,761,405

2,457,056

-

427,218,461

-

Financial assets derecognised

(255,245,822)

15,411,903

-

270,657,725

-

Balance at 31 December

566,479,040

2,457,056

-

568,936,096

-

47,948,322

22,682,974

-

70,631,296

-

4,797,522

-

-

4,797,522

-

Financial assets derecognized

(4,254,323)

(22,682,974)

-

(66,937,297)

-

Balance at 31 December

19,121,521

-

-

19,121,521

-

Balance at 31 December
Undisbursed commitments:
Balance at 1 January
Net financial assets originated or purchased

Letters of credit:
Balance at 1 January
Net financial assets originated or purchased
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(b)

CREDIT RISK (Continued)

5
33
1

192,794,558
1,412,473,215
38,024,424

Energy

Oil & Gas

14

3
100

589,779,418
259,221,780
91,986,022
130,926,331
4,273,316,164

Infrastructure

Transport and Logistics

Wholesale Commodities

ICT

707,688,601

-

-

1,658,201

83,300,000

6,663,365

-

33,422,949

145,128,143

15,000,000

388,775

3,763,300

15,000,000

-

204,013,500

199,350,368

100

-

-

-

12

1

-

5

20

2

-

1

2

-

29

28

%

(850,423,501)

-

-

-

-

-

-

(709,659,400)

-

-

(204,720)

-

-

-

(149)

(140,559,232)

USD

Cash collateral/
In transit

(1,451,059,486)

-

(19,000,000)

(61,200,000)

(314,011,050)

(4,047,378)

-

(496,091,494)

(19,179,459)

-

-

-

-

-

(61,391,880)

(476,138,225)

USD

Insurance

2,679,521,778

130,926,331

72,986,022

199,679,981

359,068,368

7,236,061

38,024,424

240,145,270

318,743,242

26,985,131

7,826,383

227,434,118

49,547,045

2,308,796

341,539,235

657,071,371

USD

Net Exposure

**Off–statement of financial position items include loans approved but not disbursed, outstanding letters of credit and guarantees and performance bonds where applicable.

2

6

-

4,620,074

Telecommunications

Real Estate

-

11,985,131

Health Services

-

5

7,642,328

223,670,818

Other

Manufacturing and Heavy Industries

1

-

2,308,796
34,547,045

Education

5

198,917,764

25

USD

USD
1,074,418,460

Off-statement
Of financial
Position

Gross Exposure
On-statement
Of financial
Position

Hospitality

Banking and Financial Services

Agribusiness

			

As at 31 December 2018

Concentration of Risk by Sector

%

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 			
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100

5

3

7

13

-

1

9

13

1

-

8

2

-
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%
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(b)

CREDIT RISK (Continued)

-

6

7
100

273,670,379
3,913,915,069

Transport and Logistics

2
10

91,667,804
385,195,515

Telecommunications

1

36

4

-

2

Infrastructure

1,396,665,838
42,416,192

Petrochemicals

Real Estate

15,020,366
156,085,001

Health Services

Energy

240,465,941
73,715,613

Manufacturing and Heavy Industries

Other

1

-

4,037,391
37,182,259

Education

Hospitality

23
7

910,940,603
278,284,537

Agribusiness

Banking and Financial Services

1,170,057,935

36,534,089

9,523,432

2,115,912

-

264,028,147

117,959,009

1,342,852

185,841,241

48,677,060

15,244,864

-

292,026,009

196,765,320

USD

-

USD
8,567,631

Off-statement
Of financial
Position

Gross Exposure
On-statement
Of financial
Position
%

100

3

1

-

-

23

10

-

16

4

1

-

25

17

-

(980,537,689)

-

-

-

(720,675,589)

-

-

(180,983,268)

-

-

-

2,000,000

(80,878,832)

-

USD

Cash collateral/
In transit

USD

(1,650,908,431)

(61,200,000)

(280,000,000)

(5,059,926)

-

(691,975,775)

(24,589,200)

-

(18,000,000)

-

-

-

(170,427,487)

(399,656,043)

-

Insurance

2,452,526,884

249,004,468

114,718,947

88,723,790

42,416,192

248,042,621

249,454,810

16,363,218

60,573,586

289,143,001

52,427,123

4,037,391

401,883,059

627,171,048

8,567,631

USD

Net Exposure
%

100

10

5

4

2

10

10

1

2

12

2

-

16

26

-

Notes to the
Finaancial Statements
For the year ended
31 December 2018

Mining and Quarrying

			

As at 31 December 2017

Concentration of Risk by Sector (continued)

Concentration of risk

%
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CREDIT RISK (Continued)

3

439,317,346
138,937,939

14
100

554,677,983
4,273,316,164

Zimbabwe

4

-

-

707,688,601

84,200,000

60,500,000

118,147,070

48,911,673

-

-

28,466,575

48,133,750

78,725,000

125,364,368

6,663,365

108,576,800

-

-

-

100

12

9

17

7

-

-

3

7

11

18

1

15

-

-

(850,423,501)

(400,000,000)

(955,062)

-

382,512

(214,546,597)

(880)

(150,000,000)

-

-

(85,303,325)

-

(149)

-

-

-

-

(1,451,059,486)

(80,571,339)

(496,091,494)

(34,011,050)

-

(228,138,225)

-

(61,200,000)

-

-

(248,000,000)

(280,000,000)

-

(19,000,000)

-

-

(4,047,378)

USD

Insurance

2,679,521,778

158,306,644

250,277,824

251,077,135

271,971,723

205,507,055

4,317,522

277,579,151

52,870,619

217,662,939

231,378,389

384,289,043

292,761,132

10,529,122

48,980,244

12,958,133

9,055,103

USD

Net Exposure

**Off–statement of financial position items include loans approved but not disbursed, outstanding letters of credit and guarantees and performance bonds where applicable.

16

166,941,115
686,824,380

Uganda

Zambia

5

15

648,191,877
222,677,538

Sudan

-

11

-

4,318,402

460,312,576

Tanzania

Seychelles

Rwanda

Mozambique

4,736,869

15
10

657,625,678

Kenya

Malawi

Mauritius

1
4

29,529,122
184,184,481

Egypt

Ethiopia

2

12,958,133
48,980,244

Congo DRC

Djibouti

-

USD

USD
-

USD

Position

Position

Cash Collateral/
In transit

Off-statement
-f Financial

%

of Financial

On-statement

Gross Exposure

13,102,481

As at 31 December 2018

Concentration of Risk by Country

(b)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
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CREDIT RISK (Continued)

-

1
3
11

28,168,977
123,554,893
438,090,767
248,075,222
128,562,888
432,130,450
5,698,688

Egypt

Ethiopia

Kenya

Malawi

Mauritius

Rwanda

Seychelles

18
16
100

209,885,358
257,938,242
700,420,807
594,676,424
3,913,915,069

Tanzania

Uganda

Zambia

Zimbabwe

1,342,852

1,170,057,935

179,223,386

49,733,898

18,702,239

73,952,121

-

-

29,458,931

286,087,668

251,900,000

38,149,999

224,006,841

-

17,500,000

-

100

15

4

2

7

-

-

3

24

22

3

19

-

1

-

(980,537,689)

(350,000,000)

(368,650)

-

(3,939,083)

(263,299,240)

(900)

(140,000,000)

(180,617,792)

(44,311,024)

(1,000)

2,000,000

-

-

(1,650,908,431)

(131,023,855)

(550,000,000)

(100,000,000)

-

(239,848,875)

-

(61,200,000)

(37,500,000)

(228,275,775)

(280,000,000)

-

(18,000,000)

-

-

(5,059,926)

USD

Insurance

2,452,526,884

292,875,955

199,786,055

176,640,481

279,898,396

177,982,379

5,697,788

260,389,381

196,532,764

227,388,423

196,239,766

349,561,734

10,168,977

63,512,291

7,847,993

8,004,501

USD

Net Exposure

**Off–statement of financial position items include loans approved but not disbursed, outstanding letters of credit and guarantees and performance bonds where applicable.

5
7

681,130,494

Sudan

17

11

3

6

2

6,505,141
46,012,291

Djibouti

DR Congo

-

USD

USD
-

USD

-

In transit

Position

Cash Collateral/

-f Financial

Off-statement

Position

%

of Financial

On-statement

Gross Exposure

13,064,427

As at 31 December 2017

Concentration of Risk by Country

(b)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

100

12

9

7

11

7

-

11

8
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8
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-

3

-

-

%
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(b)

CREDIT RISK (Continued)						

Notes to the
Finaancial Statements
For the year ended
31 December 2018

Restructured loans							
During the course of the Bank’s normal course of business and lending activities, financial assets may be restructured or modified.
The following tables refer to restructured financial assets where the restructuring does not result in de-recognition
2018
USD

2017
USD

Gross carrying amount before restructuring

56,600,390

20,220,515

Loss allowance before restructuring

(1,525,044)

-

Net amortised cost before restructuring

55,075,336

20,220,515

Financial assets restructured during the year*

Net restructuring loss
Net amortised cost after restructuring

(209,376)

-

54,865,960

20,220,515

Financial assets restructured since initial recognition at a time when loss allowance was based on lifetime ECL.
Gross carrying amount of financial assets for which loss allowance has changed in the period from lifetime to 12-month ECL cost
after restructuring.
*2018 loss allowance is based on lifetime Expected Credit Loss (ECL) under IFRS 9 while 2017 loss allowance is based on IAS 39
Incurred Loss.
									

(c)

LIQUIDITY RISK							

								
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Bank will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations from financial liabilities. The Bank’s liquidity policy
ensures that it has resources to meet its net disbursement and debt service obligations and allows it flexibility in deciding the appropriate
time to access capital markets.
							
The Bank holds sufficient liquid assets to enable it to continue normal operations even in the unlikely event that it is unable to obtain
fresh resources from its lending partners and the capital markets for an extended period of time. To achieve this objective, the Bank
operates on a prudential minimum level of liquidity, which is based on projected net cash requirements.
							
The prudential minimum level of liquidity is updated quarterly.
							
The liquidity position statement is presented under the most prudent consideration of maturity dates. Liabilities are classified according
to the earliest possible repayment date, while assets are classified according to the latest possible repayment date.
							
The Bank-wide Integrated Risk Management Committee (BIRMC) is tasked with the responsibility of ensuring that all foreseeable
funding commitments can be met when due, and that the Bank will not encounter difficulty in meeting obligations from its financial
liabilities as they occur.
BIRMC relies substantially on the Treasury Department to coordinate and ensure discipline, certify adequacy of liquidity under normal
and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Bank’s reputation.
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878,789,834
878,789,834

Net liquidity gap

Cumulative gap

-

864,154,309

(14,635,525)

163,409,782

226,454

-

53,351,287

109,832,041

148,774,257

-

-

59,790,767

88,866,009

-

117,481

919,509,134

55,354,825

530,817,793

333,016

-

33,689,541

496,795,236

586,172,618

-

-

58,900,733

344,140,366

-

164,047

182,967,472

USD

804,533,652

(114,975,482)

784,552,679

664,306

-

138,683,519

645,204,854

669,577,197

-

-

169,856,644

494,825,692

-

269,642

4,625,219

USD

6 to 12 months

1,943,525,233

1,138,991,581

2,450,383,172

4,750,909

-

1,552,411,862

893,220,401

3,589,374,753

386,994

51,521,730

1,359,940,100

2,177,224,269

-

301,660

-

USD

1 to 5 years

2,264,043,371

320,518,138

363,280,820

5,520,749

-

357,760,071

-

683,798,958

-

-

642,159,604

41,639,354

-

-

-

USD

Over 5 years

2,264,043,371

2,264,043,371

4,742,538,313

75,807,343

119,576,580

2,149,456,614

2,397,697,776

7,006,581,684

386,994

51,521,730

2,345,747,453

3,336,714,581

54,042,940

72,249,608

1,145,918,378

USD

Total

maturity date.

The above table analyses financial assets and financial liabilities of the Bank into relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining period at the reporting date to the contractual

450,094,067

Total liabilities

Collection Accounts
64,311,909

13,560,334
119,576,580

Long term borrowings

Other payables

252,645,244

Short term borrowings

LIABILITIES

1,328,883,901

-

Investment in joint venture

Total assets

-

55,099,605

Project loans

Equity investment at fair value through other
comprehensive income

54,042,940
190,018,891

Derivative financial instruments

Trade finance loans

71,396,778

958,325,687

USD

USD

Other receivables

Cash and balances with other banks

2 to 3 months

Up to 1 month

Notes to the
Finaancial Statements
For the year ended
31 December 2018

ASSETS

At 31 December 2018

Maturities of financial assets and financial liabilities are as follows:

4 to 6 months
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-

73,424,114
485,220,015
993,078,488
993,078,488

Other payables

Total liabilities

Net liquidity gap

Cumulative gap

4,797,549

Derivative financial instruments
127,796,131

25,215,078

Long term borrowings

Collection Account

253,987,143

Short term borrowings

LIABILITIES

1,478,298,503

Investment in joint venture

Total assets

-

11,584,658

Project loans

Equity investment at cost

75,847,285
100,611,075

Trade finance loans

57,275,058

Other receivables

1,232,980,427

1,027,357,944

34,279,456

401,977,632

304,117

-

-

43,933,835

357,739,680

436,257,088

-

-

210,502,557

225,648,773

105,758

-

-

USD

USD

Investment in Government securities

2 to 3 months

Up to 1 month

Cash and balances with other banks

ASSETS

At 31 December 2017

Maturities of financial assets and financial liabilities are as follows:

1,395,621,704

368,263,760

93,112,433

452,983

-

-

24,606,962

68,052,488

461,376,193

-

-

124,885,693

336,334,051

156,449

-

-

USD

4 to 6 months

LIQUIDITY RISK (Continued)						

							

(c)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)					

2,091,975,133

696,353,429

998,714,339

828,345

-

-

326,842,575

671,043,419

1,695,067,768

-

-

128,870,005

1,565,962,488

235,275

-

-

USD

6 to 12 months

1,399,858,751

(692,116,382)

2,367,163,640

4,438,719

-

-

1,364,120,384

998,604,537

1,675,047,258

369,493

40,257,957

785,529,011

848,586,613

304,184

-

-

USD

1 to 5 years

1,523,608,027

123,749,276

253,692,466

2,158,568

-

-

251,533,898

-

377,441,742

-

-

375,621,242

1,820,500

-

-

-

USD

Over 5 years

1,523,608,027

1,523,608,027

4,599,880,525

81,606,846

127,796,131

4,797,549

2,036,252,732

2,349,427,267

6,123,488,552

369,493

40,257,957

1,636,993,166

3,078,963,500

76,648,951

57,275,058

1,232,980,427

USD

Total
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102,299,180
166,482,695

Total

172,281,800

-

172,281,800

USD

64,183,515

2 to 3 months

USD

221,670,184

105,803,072

Up to 1 month

109,848,059

Loan commitments

Letters of credit

At 31 December 2017

Total

52,901,536

Loan commitments

98,867,112

17,000,000

56,946,523

USD

USD

Letters of credit

2 to 3 months

Up to 1 month

497,331,984

411,124,982

86,207,002

USD

4 to 6 months

164,564,213

158,704,609

5,859,604

-

USD

315,068,594

181,506,245

133,562,349

USD

6 to 12 months

211,606,145

211,606,145

-

-

USD

6 to 12 months

18,892,862

-

18,892,862

USD

1 to 5 years

-

-

-

-

USD

1 to 5 years

-

-

-

USD

Over 5 years

-

-

-

-

USD

Over 5 years

1,170,057,935

694,930,407

475,127,528

USD

Total

707,688,601

529,015,362

161,673,239

17,000,000

USD

Total

Notes to the
Finaancial Statements
For the year ended
31 December 2018

Guarantees

At 31 December 2018

Maturities of loan commitments and off-balance financial liabilities are as follows:

4 to 6 months
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 			
(c)

LIQUIDITY RISK (Continued)						

(i)

Liquidity and funding management 				

Notes to the
Finaancial Statements
For the year ended
31 December 2018

							
The Bank’s liquidity and funding policies require:
•
Entering into lending contracts subject to availability of funds,			
•
Projecting cash flows by major currency and considering the level of liquid assets necessary in relation thereto,
•
Maintaining a diverse range of funding sources with back–up facilities,
•
Investment in short term liquid instruments which can easily be sold in the market when the need arises,
•
Investments in property and equipment are properly budgeted for and done when the Bank has sufficient cash flows,
•
Maintaining liquidity and funding contingency plans. These plans must identify early indicators of stress conditions and
describe actions to be taken in the event of difficulties arising from systemic or other crises while minimising adverse long-term
implications.
						

(ii)

Contingency Plans 					

							
The Bank carries out contingency funding planning at the beginning of the year. This details measures to combat liquidity crises:
•
•
•
•
•

Unutilised lines of credit, including standby facilities, from different counter-parties.
Term deposits with counter-parties and prospects of withdrawal and rollovers.
Investment portfolio and its defeasance period. -			
-		
Amount of short-term resources with a time period, required to raise such resources.
Amount which can be raised from other counter parties based on the Bank’s past relationships.

							

(d)

MARKET RISK					

						
The objective of the Bank’s market risk management process is to manage and control market risk exposures in order to optimise
return on risk. Market risk is the risk that movement in market factors, including interest rates and foreign currency exchange rates,
will reduce income or value of portfolio.
									
Overall responsibility for management of market risk rests with BIRMC. The Treasury Department is responsible for the development
of detailed market risk management policies and for the day-to-day implementation of those policies.
The management of market risk is supplemented by the monitoring of sensitivity analysis of the key market risk variables. The Bank
normally uses simulation models to measure the impact of changes in interest rates on net interest income. The key assumptions used
in these models include loan volumes and pricing and changes in market conditions. Those assumptions are based on the best
estimates of actual positions. The models cannot precisely predict the actual impact of changes in interest rates on income because
these assumptions are highly uncertain. 				

(i)

Interest rate risk					

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate due to changes in market interest
rates. The extent of exposure to interest rate risk is largely determined by the length of time for which the rate of interest is fixed for a
financial instrument. The Bank’s principal interest rate risk management objective is to generate a suitable overall net interest margin
by matching the interest rate characteristic and re-pricing profile of assets with those of the underlying borrowings and equity sources
respectively.
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Interest rate risk (Continued)

460,410,682
460,410,682

Net interest rate exposure

Cumulative interest rate exposure

242,007,272

(218,403,410)

2,430,224,092

-

-

801,334,166

1,628,889,926

2,211,820,682

409,591,268

167,583,996

315,290,536

-

-

-

315,290,536

482,874,532

-

-

-

478,249,313

-

-

4,625,219

USD

409,591,268

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

USD

6 to 12 months

1,079,596,207

670,004,939

711,194,084

8,660,284

-

700,000,000

2,533,800

1,381,199,023

-

51,521,730

109,732,871

1,270,551,813

914,339

-

USD

1 to 5 years

* Fixed interest and non-interest-bearing items are stated at amortised costs or their carrying amounts which approximate their fair values

717,235,241

-

Other payables

Total financial liabilities

-

280,695,902

Long term borrowings

Collection Accounts

436,539,339

Short term borrowings

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

Total financial assets

1,177,645,923

-

Investment in Joint Venture

-

-

-

comprehensive income

1,247,295,494

72,530,429

781,557,716

-

-

182,967,472

Equity Investments at fair value through other

Project finance loans

203,086,043

Derivative financial instruments

Trade finance loans

-

902,029,451

USD

USD

Other receivables

Cash and balances with other banks

2 to 3 months

Up to 1 month

1,129,455,737

49,859,530

183,723,639

64,147,059

119,576,580

-

-

233,583,169

386,994

-

-

-

54,042,940

71,335,269

56,296,236

USD

Over 5 years

1,129,455,737

1,129,455,737

4,357,667,592

72,807,343

119,576,580

1,782,030,068

2,383,253,601

5,487,123,329

386,994

51,521,730

1,429,558,794

2,733,444,885

54,042,940

72,249,608

1,145,918,378

USD

Total

Notes to the
Finaancial Statements
For the year ended
31 December 2018

FINANCIAL ASSETS

At 31 December 2018

The table below summarises the Bank’s exposure to interest rate risk

(i)

4 to 6 months

MARKET RISK (Continued)						

							

(d)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)					
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Interest rate risk (Continued)

515,388,536
1,399,820,242
1,399,820,242

Total financial liabilities

Net interest rate exposure

Cumulative interest rate exposure

Other payables

-

13,433,428

Long term borrowings

Collection Accounts

501,955,108

Short term borrowings

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

Total financial assets

1,915,208,778

-

Investment in Joint Venture

(904,926,184)

(494,894,058)

2,000,225,773

-

774,045,655

1,226,180,118

1,505,331,715

-

-

-

comprehensive income

775,878,035

345,717,665

Project finance loans

729,453,680

418,911,241

Equity Investments at fair value through other

Trade finance loans

-

-

Other receivables

Derivative financial instruments

USD

USD

-

2 to 3 months

Up to 1 month

1,150,579,872

Cash and balances with other banks

FINANCIAL ASSETS

At 31 December 2017

The table below summarises the Bank’s exposure to interest rate risk

(i)

765,389,214

(139,536,970)

352,940,970

-

-

352,940,970

213,404,000

-

-

-

213,404,000

-

-

-

USD

4 to 6 months

MARKET RISK (Continued)						

							

(d)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)					

(784,871,768)

19,482,554

-

-

-

-

19,482,554

-

-

-

19,482,554

-

-

-

USD

6 to 12 months

968,729,418

183,857,650

1,161,828,735

-

920,810,465

233,486,087

1,345,686,385

-

-

97,559,575

976,847,958

8,118,540

206,668,343

4,797,549

127,796,131

-

-

214,786,883

369,493

40,257,957

15,964,874

-

854,947
1,189,996,805

75,794,004

82,400,555

USD

Over 5 years

57,275,058

-

USD

1 to 5 years

976,847,958

976,847,958

4,237,052,357

4,797,549

127,796,131

1,708,289,548

2,314,562,283

5,213,900,315

369,493

40,257,957

1,235,120,149

2,571,248,280

76,648,951

57,275,058

1,232,980,427

USD

Total
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39.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 			
(d)

MARKET RISK (Continued)						

(i)

Interest rate risk (Continued)			

				
Interest rate risk - Sensitivity analysis			
							
The Bank monitors the impact that an immediate hypothetical increase or decrease in interest rates of 100 basis points applied at the
beginning of the year would have on net interest income.
		
The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based on the exposure to interest rates for non-derivative instruments at year end.
The analysis was prepared using the following assumptions:
•

Interest-bearing assets and liabilities outstanding as at 31 December 2018 were outstanding at those levels for the whole
year,

•

Interest-bearing assets and liabilities denominated in currencies other than USD experienced similar movements in interest
rates, and

•

All other variables are held constant.

									
If interest rates had been 100 basis points higher or lower with the above assumptions applying, the Bank’s net profit for the year
ended 31 December 2018 of USD 129,325,392 (2017: USD 111,864,421) would increase or decrease by USD 4,098,006 (2017
- USD 7,848,718) as follows:
									
Effect on the Bank’s Net Profit:
The profit for the year ended 31 December 2018 would increase to USD 133,423,398 (2017: USD 119,713,139) or decrease to
USD 125,227,386 (2017: USD 104,015,703).
The potential change is 3.2% (2017 – 7%) of the year’s profit.
									

(ii)

Currency risk							

								
Currency risk is defined as the potential loss that could result from adverse changes in foreign exchange rates. Currency risks are
minimised and, where possible, eliminated by requiring assets to be funded by liabilities that have matching currency characteristics.
Foreign currency positions are monitored on a quarterly basis. The single currency exposure, irrespective of short or long positions
should not exceed the limit of 10% of the Bank’s net worth.
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Currency rate risk (Continued)

NET POSITION

Total financial liabilities
977,071,873

4,135,656,334

-

72,649,235

Other payables

205,749.05

Other payables

1,777,327,209

Collection account

2,285,474,141

Short term borrowings

5,112,728,207

386,994

51,521,730

Long term borrowings

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

Total financial assets

Investment in joint Venture

Equity Investments at fair value
through other comprehensive
income

17,258

-

-

-

-

17,258

-

-

118,290,716

97,779,460

-

-

-

97,779,460

216,070,176

-

-

20,336,543

1,141,708,833

-

1,591,736,052
1,402,654,661

Trade finance loans

70,000,000

Project finance loans

-

2,249,608

18,937,550

EURO

(1,034,912,750)

17,258

975,223,472

GBP

1,088,955,690

Derivative Financial Investment

Other receivables

Cash and balances with other
banks

FINANCIAL ASSETS

USD

The Bank’s currency position as at 31 December 2018 was as follows:

The Bank’s financial assets and financial liabilities are reported in USD.

(ii)

(147,735)

152,773

151,023

152,773

-

-

5,038

-

-

-

-

-

-

5,038

KES

630,004

33,461,879

-

-

33,461,879

-

-

34,091,883

-

-

-

-

-

-

34,091,883

SDG

MARKET RISK (Continued)						

							

(d)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 					

4,632,245

-

-

-

-

-

4,632,245

-

-

-

-

-

-

4,632,245

UGX

18,456,873

-

-

-

-

-

18,456,873

-

-

-

-

-

-

18,456,873

AED

-

-

-

-

111,563

85,519,973

85,519,973

85,631,536

-

-

-

-

-

85,631,536

MWK

5,257,315

4,115,627

-

-

(587,232)

4,702,859

-

9,372,942

-

6,567,590

-

-

-

2,805,352

TZSH

5,135,625

981,546

6,350

5,335

976,211

-

-

6,117,171

-

-

-

-

-

6,117,171

OTHER

1,129,455,737

4,357,667,592

81,606,846

72,807,343

119,576,580

1,782,030,068

2,383,253,601

5,487,123,329

386,994

51,521,730

1,429,558,794

2,733,444,885

54,042,940

72,249,608

1,145,918,378

TOTAL
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Currency rate risk (Continued)

NET POSITION

Total financial liabilities
910,103,970

2,876,727,486

81,449,473

Derivative financial
instruments

Other payables

(1,632,500)

(1,087,446,834)

Collection account

2,183,627,303

1,700,730,044

Short term borrowings

Long term borrowings

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

3,786,831,456

369,493

Investment in joint venture

Total financial assets

40,257,957

1,202,942,585

Equity Investments at cost

Project finance loans

76,648,951

1,394,732,339

Other receivables

Trade finance loans

57,275,058

1,014,605,073

Investment in Government
securities

Cash and balances with
other banks

FINANCIAL ASSETS

USD

425

-

-

-

-

-

-

425

-

-

-

-

-

-

425

GBP

53,832,569

1,223,179,363

-

1,092,244,383

-

-

130,934,980

1,277,011,932

-

-

23,423,835

1,176,515,941

-

-

77,072,156

EURO

(134,048)

151,023

151,023

-

-

-

-

16,975

-

-

-

-

-

-

16,975

KES

The Bank’s currency position as at 31 December 2017 was as follows:

The Bank’s financial assets and financial liabilities are reported in USD.

(ii)

1,522,433

80,877,832

-

-

80,877,832

-

-

82,400,265

-

-

-

-

-

-

82,400,265

SDG

4,401,265

-

-

-

-

-

-

4,401,265

-

-

-

-

-

-

4,401,265

UGX

MARKET RISK (Continued)						

							

(d)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)					

4,888,870

-

-

-

-

-

4,888,870

-

-

-

-

-

-

4,888,870

AED

-

-

-

-

-

109,963

44,311,024

44,311,024

44,420,987

-

-

-

-

-

44,420,987

MWK

1,574,542

11,133,112

-

-

3,573,608

7,559,504

-

12,707,654

-

-

8,753,729

-

-

-

3,953,925

TZSH

547,679

672,517

6,350

-

666,167

-

-

1,220,486

-

-

-

-

-

-

1,220,486

OTHER

976,847,958

4,237,052,357

81,606,846

4,797,549

127,796,131

1,708,289,548

2,314,562,283

5,213,900,315

369,493

40,257,957

1,235,120,149

2,571,248,280

76,648,951

57,275,058

1,232,980,427

TOTAL

Annual Report & Financial Statements 2018

TRADE & DEVELOPMENT BANK (TDB)

To Our
Shareholders

Notes to the
Finaancial Statements
For the year ended
31 December 2018

TRADE & DEVELOPMENT BANK (TDB)
Annual Report & Financial Statements 2018
To Our
Shareholders

39.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
(d)

Notes to the
Finaancial Statements
For the year ended
31 December 2018

			

MARKET RISK (Continued)

(ii)
Currency Risk (Continued)					
								
Currency risk - Sensitivity Analysis						
										
The Bank is mainly exposed to Euros, Pound Sterling, Kenya Shillings, Tanzania Shillings, Sudanese Pounds, and Uganda Shilling. The
following analysis details the Bank’s sensitivity to a 10% increase and decrease in the value of the USD against the other currencies. 10%
is the sensitivity rate used when reporting foreign currency risk internally and represents management’s assessment of the reasonably
possible change in foreign exchange rates. The sensitivity analysis includes cash and term deposits, securities, loans and borrowings
in currencies other than United States Dollars. A positive number below indicates a decrease in profit and reserves when the USD
strengthens by 10% against the other currencies in which the Bank has a net asset position. For a 10% weakening of the USD against
the relevant currencies, there would be an equal opposite impact on the net profit.
The Bank has operations in and lends to customers in Zimbabwe but all the transactions are made in USD
GBP

EURO

KES

TSH

AED

SDG

UGX

2018

2,291

10,778,941

(1,110)

230

502,451

2,135

(11,150)

2017

287

6,913,644

(143)

72

124,440

15,708

(33,941)

40.

CAPITAL MANAGEMENT						

								
The Bank, being a supranational financial institution, is not subject to any regulatory supervision by a national body. The conduct of
operations is vested with the Board of Directors which closely monitors directly or through its Audit Committee the Bank’s performance,
risk profile and capital adequacy.
Based on the need to protect against increased credit risks associated with projects and infrastructure financing in developing African
economies, the Bank’s capital management policy aims to maintain a capital adequacy ratio of at least 30 per cent. This ratio is
computed in line with recommendations of the paper prepared by the Basel Committee on Banking Supervision entitled “International
Convergence of Capital Measurement and Capital Standards” dated July 1988 as amended from time to time (Basel I paper) and
the paper prepared by the Basel Committee entitled “International Convergence of Capital Measurement and Standards: A Revised
Framework” dated June 2004 as amended from time to time (Basel II Paper).
The Bank’s objectives when managing capital, which is a broader concept than the ‘equity’ on the face of the statement of financial
position, are:
•

To have sufficient capital to support its development mandate;

•

To safeguard the Bank’s ability to continue as a going concern so that it can continue to provide returns to shareholders and
benefits to Member States and other stakeholders; and

•
To maintain a strong capital base to support the development of its business.
								
Capital adequacy is monitored monthly by the Bank’s management, employing techniques based on the guidelines developed by
the Basel Committee. Currently, the Bank’s capital is entirely Tier 1 capital which is: Paid-up share capital, retained earnings and
other reserves.
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40.

CAPITAL MANAGEMENT (Continued)		
Risk-weighted assets are measured by means of a hierarchy of seven risk weights classified to reflect an estimate of credit,
market and other risks associated with each asset and counterparty, taking into account any eligible collateral or guarantees.
A similar treatment is adopted for off-statement of financial position exposure, with some adjustments to reflect the more
contingent nature of the potential losses.

			
A summary of the Bank’s capital adequacy computations is provided below.
2017

2018
USD

USD

RISK WEIGHTED ASSETS
On-Statement of financial position assets

3,336,944,081

2,657,945,022

Off- Statement of financial position assets

32,334,648

95,025,505

3,369,278,729

2,752,970,527

Paid up capital

461,742,558

431,225,426

Retained earnings and reserves

730,283,193

589,810,739

1,192,025,751

1,021,036,165

35.4%

37.1%

Total risk weighted assets

CAPITAL

Total capital
CAPITAL ADEQUACY RATIO

In addition to its paid-up capital, the Bank has access to additional capital in the form of callable capital. During the years,
the Bank complied with its capital adequacy requirements. There were no events after the reporting date.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS CATEGORIES			
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The table below sets out the Bank’s analysis of financial instrument categories.

As at 31 December 2018:
Amortised Cost

At fair value through

At fair value through

Total carrying

profit or loss

other comprehensive

amount

income
USD

USD

USD

USD

Financial assets
Cash and balances held with banks
Other receivables

1,145,918,378

-

-

1,145,918,378

72,249,608

-

-

72,249,608

Trade finance loans

2,733,444,885

-

-

2,733,444,885

Project finance loans

1,429,558,794

-

-

1,429,558,794

-

-

51,521,730

51,521,730

386,994

-

-

386,994

-

54,042,940

-

54,042,940

5,381,558,659

54,042,940

51,521,730

5,487,123,329

Equity investments at fair value through
other comprehensive income
Investment in joint ventures
Derivative financial instruments
Total financial assets

Financial liabilities
119,576,580

-

-

119,576,580

Short term borrowings

Collection account deposits

2,383,253,601

-

-

2,383,253,601

Long term borrowings

1,782,030,068

-

-

1,782,030,068

72,807,343

-

-

72,807,343

4,357,667,592

-

-

4,357,667,592

Other payables
Total financial liabilities

Note: The classification as at 31 December 2018 is based on IFRS 9.
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41.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS CATEGORIES (Continued)
As at 31 December 2017:
Loans and

At fair value

Available for

Hedging

Held to

Total carrying

receivables

through profit

sale

instruments

Maturity

amount

or loss
USD

USD

USD

USD

USD

USD

1,232,980,427

-

-

-

-

1,232,980,427

-

-

-

-

57,275,058

57,275,058

Financial assets
Cash and balances held with
banks
Investment in Government
securities
Other receivables

76,648,951

-

-

-

-

76,648,951

Trade finance loans

2,571,248,280

-

-

-

-

2,571,248,280

Project finance loans

1,235,120,149

-

-

-

-

1,235,120,149

Equity investments at cost

-

-

40,257,957

-

-

40,257,957

Investment in joint ventures

-

-

369,493

-

-

369,493

5,115,997,807

-

40,427,450

-

57,275,058

5,213,900,315

127,796,131

-

-

-

-

127,796,131

-

4,797,549

-

-

-

4,797,549

Short term borrowings

2,314,562,283

-

-

-

-

2,314,562,283

Long term borrowings

1,708,289,548

-

-

-

-

1,708,289,548

Total financial assets

Financial liabilities
Collection account deposits
Derivative financial
instruments

Other payables
Total financial liabilities

81,606,846

-

-

-

-

81,606,846

4,232,254,808

4,797,549

-

-

-

4,237,052,357

Note: The classification as at 31 December 2017 is based on IAS 39.
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113,323,337
37,321,450

2,813,397,846

Gross Loans

NET LOANS

finance loans (Note 17)
2,733,444,885

(79,952,961)

428,159,271

Zimbabwe

Less: Impairment on trade

441,435,129
679,696,821

Uganda

Zambia

78,938,128

138,770,894

611,176,960
179,263,850

Rwanda

Seychelles
670,633,392

1,309,241

Sudan

10,852,025

10,852,025
196,309,241

Malawi

Mauritius

Tanzania

173,701,598

30,493,663
439,317,346

Ethiopia

Kenya

684,279,055

-

684,279,055

26,239,089

41,501,167

12,430,788

134,633,392

980,363

31,343,679

110,056,653

Egypt

29,529,122

29,200

53,966

29,529,122

5,338,371

10,053,966

USD

USD

Djibouti

Congo DRC

Burundi

six months

2,049,165,830

(79,952,961)

2,129,118,791

401,920,182

638,195,654

429,004,341

536,000,000

41,616,678

65,940,513

472,406,066

195,000,000

-

265,615,748

29,513,300

78,712,974

-

5,309,171

10,000,000

USD

six months

due after

Balance

2,571,248,280

(75,381,275)

2,646,629,555

102,204,004

677,441,537

428,159,271

679,696,821

177,230,606

169,760,948

646,441,078

140,150,914

43,647,842

241,879,726

25,708,146

58,307,075

28,168,977

4,948,151

2,530,000

USD

outstanding

566,072,066

-

566,072,066

20,473,387

231,158,838

26,239,089

41,501,167

69,237,311

100,417,163

122,706,295

-

43,647,842

118,177,171

4,591,646

8,306,721

28,168,977

548,684

2,530,000

USD

six months

due within

Amounts

due within

As at 31 December 2017

Amounts

Amounts

As at 31 December 2018

outstanding

Balance

TRADE FINANCE LOAN PORTFOLIO		

Country

42.

2,005,176,214

(75,381,275)

2,080,557,489

81,730,617

446,282,699

401,920,182

638,195,654

107,993,295

69,343,785

523,734,783

140,150,914

-

123,702,555

21,116,500

50,000,354

-

4,399,467

-

USD

six months

due after

Amounts

TRADE & DEVELOPMENT BANK (TDB)
Annual Report & Financial Statements 2018
To Our
Shareholders

Notes to the
Finaancial Statements
For the year ended
31 December 2018

PAGE 167

PAGE 168

60,793,337

138,914,516

Malawi

Mauritius

232,819,778

131,225,914

Uganda

Zambia

NET LOANS

Less: Impairment
on project loans
(note 17)

2,720,138,793

204,861,005

Tanzania

Gross loans

45,106,624

Sudan

324,592,236

41,364,276

Seychelles

Zimbabwe

375,079,500

Rwanda

4,666,250

968,413,563

Kenya

Mozambique

118,686,267

403,652

Eritrea

Ethiopia

44,200,000

2,835,000

Congo DRC

Djibouti

26,176,875

56,582,529

709,656

25,086,069

6,103,522

682,910

17,056,064

-

3,612,691

-

-

2,920

1,532,900

603,611

-

-

-

1,192,186

USD

USD

Burundi

Interest
Capitalized

Amounts
Disbursed

PROJECT LOAN PORTFOLIO

(1,350,947,319)

(216,245,308)

(140,120,995)

(156,882,191)

(163,634,208)

(25,392,904)

(37,046,094)

(118,071,523)

-

(11,566,112)

(60,796,257)

(354,048,895)

(48,551,941)

(403,652)

(2,946,666)

-

(15,240,573)

USD

Amounts
Repaid

34,144,315

4,186,270

-

5,961,877

1,503,981

245,132

220

3,382,667

70,619

737,511

-

11,234,446

3,389,890

-

2,388,540

69,168

973,994

USD

Interest
Receivable

1,429,558,794

(30,359,524)

1,459,918,318

113,242,854

16,190,988

88,002,986

43,413,688

37,014,916

4,318,402

264,003,335

4,736,869

128,085,915

-

627,132,014

74,127,827

-

43,641,874

2,904,168

13,102,482

USD

Balance
Outstanding

221,675,395

-

221,675,395

42,434,812

7,601,691

23,749,363

11,762,367

245,132

1,363,856

33,772,051

70,619

19,892,107

-

67,539,019

5,466,504

-

600,730

2,388,540

4,788,604

USD

Due within
One year

As at 31 December 2018

1,207,883,399

(30,359,524)

1,238,242,923

70,808,042

8,589,297

64,253,623

31,651,321

36,769,784

2,954,546

230,231,284

4,666,250

108,193,808

-

559,592,995

68,661,323

-

2,303,438

43,041,144

8,313,878

USD

Due after
One year

1,235,120,149

-

1,267,285,514

166,517,152

20,723,986

80,707,638

40,124,412

34,689,416

5,698,687

291,979,537

-

84,915,046

6,195,495

412,382,620

65,247,817

-

1,556,990

43,482,291

13,064,427

USD

385,586,099

-

385,586,099

42,665,433

8,574,675

29,104,023

15,513,281

20,549,806

1,380,506

189,653,714

-

2,981,158

6,195,497

51,480,420

12,514,129

-

64,843

2,228,958

2,679,656

USD

Due Within
One year

As at 31 December 2017
Balance
Outstanding

849,534,050

(32,165,365)

881,699,415

123,851,719

12,149,311

51,603,615

24,611,131

14,139,610

4,318,181

102,325,823

-

81,933,888

(2)

360,902,200

52,733,688

-

1,492,147

41,253,333

10,384,771

USD

Due after
One year
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Finaancial Statements
For the year ended
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8.61
8.61

6,962
6,962

Ethiopia

0.43

7.40
7.83
4.83
100

5,129
5,989
6,337
3,911
80,891

Uganda

Zambia

Zimbabwe

African Development Bank

6.34

8.33

0.55

444
6,735

6.52

2.73

0.39

Tanzania

5,277

2.78
2.42

eSwatini

2,209

318

Somalia

South Sudan

351

Seychelles

Sudan

2,252
1,957

Mozambique

Rwanda

4.07

2.13

1,721
3,293

Malawi

0.55

442

Mauritius

Madagascar

Kenya

8.61

240

0.30

6,962

Egypt

Eritrea

0.47
6.93

5,607

Djibouti

Congo DRC

380

4,433

Comoros

0.21

5.48

1,602
173

1.49
1.98

1,205

Belarus

Burundi

China

of total

Percentage

Subscribed

Shares
USD

Value

1,833,556,297

88,650,637

143,640,779

135,752,663

116,259,043

152,662,245

10,064,148

119,613,759

50,071,403

7,208,106

7,956,117

44,359,319

51,046,084

74,642,431

39,009,907

10,018,814

157,807,654

157,807,654

5,440,080

157,807,654

127,093,869

8,613,460

3,921,391

100,482,811

36,312,534

27,313,735

As at 31 December 2018:						

STATEMENT OF SUBSCRIPTIONS TO THE CAPITAL STOCK

CLASS ‘A’ shares

44.

1,466,845,038

70,920,510

114,912,623

108,602,130

93,007,234

122,129,796

8,051,318

95,691,007

40,057,122

5,766,485

6,364,894

35,487,455

40,836,869

59,713,945

31,207,926

8,015,051

126,246,123

126,246,123

4,352,064

126,246,123

101,675,095

6,890,768

3,137,113

80,386,249

29,050,027

21,850,988

USD

capital

Callable

366,711,259

17,730,127

28,728,156

27,150,533

23,251,809

30,532,449

2,012,830

23,922,752

10,014,281

1,441,621

1,591,223

8,871,864

10,209,215

14,928,486

7,801,981

2,003,763

31,561,531

31,561,531

1,088,016

31,561,531

25,418,774

1,722,692

784,278

20,096,562

7,262,507

5,462,747

USD

Capital

Payable

360,306,472

17,730,127

28,728,156

27,150,533

23,251,809

30,532,449

1,211,324

23,922,752

10,014,281

1,441,621

1,591,223

8,871,864

6,208,944

14,928,486

7,801,981

400,753

31,561,531

31,561,531

1,088,016

31,561,531

25,418,774

1,722,692

784,278

20,096,562

7,262,507

5,462,747

USD

31.12.2018

due as at

Instalments

357,025,081

17,730,127

28,728,156

27,150,533

23,251,809

30,532,449

810,572

23,922,752

10,014,281

939,830

1,591,223

8,871,864

4,208,806

14,928,486

7,801,981

400,753

31,561,531

31,561,531

709,306

31,561,531

25,418,774

1,722,692

784,278

20,096,562

7,262,507

5,462,747

USD

31.12.2018

paid as at

Instalments
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Rwanda Social Security Board

3.61
100

23,099

5.92

3.61

0.38

4.45

834

1,368

834

87

1,029

0.52

13.27

15.39

8.89

12.84

7.74

1.17

3.84

4.16

3.38

14.43

100%

of total

Percentage

104,717,477

3,780,873

6,201,717

3,780,873

394,408

4,664,890

548,544

13,899,467

16,120,843

9,311,645

13,446,125

8,101,222

1,224,024

4,025,677

4,352,084

3,536,068

15,109,890

104,717,477

3,780,873

6,201,717

3,780,873

394,408

4,664,890

548,544

13,899,467

16,120,843

9,311,645

13,446,125

8,101,222

1,224,024

4,025,677

4,352,084

3,536,068

15,109,890

USD

USD

1,000,000,000

as at year end

Instalments due

capital

Payable

104,717,477

3,780,873

6,201,717

3,780,873

394,408

4,664,890

548,544

13,899,467

16,120,843

9,311,645

13,446,125

8,101,222

1,224,024

4,025,677

4,352,084

3,536,068

15,109,890

USD

capital

Paid up

Share

60,500,611

1,223,127

2,164,875

1,223,127

145,292

2,343,654

454,304

7,893,485

5,976,999

10,688,153

12,381,427

2,973,564

395,976

1,488,038

5,649,196

1,832,411

4,890,110

USD

premium

165,218,088

5,004,000

8,366,592

5,004,000

539,700

7,008,544

1,002,848

21,792,952

22,097,842

19,999,798

25,827,552

11,074,786

1,620,000

5,513,715

10,001,280

5,368,479

20,000,000

USD

paid

Total

increase was achieved through the creation of new class ‘B’ shares of par value of USD 4,533.420375 each. Class ‘B’ shares do not have a callable portion and are payable at once.

Class‘B’ shares were first issued in 2013 following approval by the Board of Governors in December 2012 to increase the Banks’s authorized capital from USD 2.0 billion to USD 3.0 billion. This

ZEP-RE (PTA Reinsurance company)

TDB Staff Provident Fund

ZEP-RE (PTA Reinsurance company)

TDB Directors and Select Stakeholders Provident Fund

Seychelles Pension Fund

121

3,066

People's Republic of China

Sacos Group Limited

2,054
3,556

OPEC Fund for International Development (OFID)

1,787

270

Mauritian Eagle Insurance Company Limited

2,966

888

Banco Nacional de Investmento

National Social Security Fund Uganda

960

BADEA – Arab Bank for Economic Development in Africa

National Pension Fund–Mauritius

780

3,333

220,584

Africa Reinsurance Corporation

African Development Bank

Total Shares Issued

As at 31 December 2018:

of shares

Number

STATEMENT OF SUBSCRIPTIONS TO THE CAPITAL STOCK (Continued)
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5.42

4,150

240

4.03
2.90
2.40
0.43
0.42

3,083
2,220
1,838
329
318

Mauritius

Mozambique

Rwanda

Seychelles

6.31
7.33
4.79
100

442
6,306
4,830
5,607
6,337
3,662
76,526

eSwatini

Tanzania

Uganda

Zambia

Zimbabwe

African Development Bank

8.28

8.24

0.58

6.90

5,277

Sudan

2.88

2,206

South Sudan

Somalia

2.11

1,611

Malawi

8.52
8.52

6,518
6,518

Ethiopia

Kenya

0.31

8.52

6,518

Egypt

Eritrea

0.47
6.98

356
5,340

Djibouti

Congo DRC

164

Comoros

0.21

1.51
1.96

1,156
1,500

Belarus

Burundi

China

of total

Percentage

Subscribed

Shares

121,041,780

8,069,452

3,717,388

94,068,050

34,000,500

26,203,052

USD

Value

1,734,614,842

83,006,554

143,640,779

127,093,869

109,481,610

142,938,102

10,018,814

119,613,759

50,003,402

7,208,106

7,457,443

41,661,946

50,320,740

69,882,361

36,516,537

147,743,506

147,743,506

5,440,080

147,743,506

As at 31 December 2017:						

STATEMENT OF SUBSCRIPTIONS TO THE CAPITAL STOCK (Continued)

CLASS ‘A’ shares
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1,387,691,874

66,405,243

114,912,623

101,675,095

87,585,287

114,350,482

8,015,051

95,691,007

40,002,722

5,766,485

5,965,954

33,329,557

40,256,592

55,905,889

29,213,230

118,194,805

118,194,805

4,352,064

118,194,805

96,833,424

6,455,562

2,973,910

75,254,440

27,200,400

20,962,442

USD

capital

Callable

346,922,968

16,601,311

28,728,156

25,418,774

21,896,323

28,587,620

2,003,763

23,922,752

10,000,680

1,441,621

1,491,489

8,332,389

10,064,148

13,976,472

7,303,307

29,548,701

29,548,701

1,088,016

29,548,701

24,208,356

1,613,890

743,478

18,813,610

6,800,100

5,240,610

USD

Capital

Payable

337,555,149

16,601,311

28,728,156

25,418,774

20,731,238

28,587,620

801,505

23,922,752

10,000,680

1,441,621

1,491,489

8,332,389

4,063,740

13,976,472

7,303,307

29,548,701

29,548,701

1,088,016

29,548,701

24,208,356

1,613,890

743,478

18,813,610

6,800,100

4,240,542

USD

31.12.2017

due as at

Instalments

333,838,490

16,601,311

28,728,156

25,418,774

20,731,238

28,587,620

400,753

23,922,752

10,000,680

879,919

1,491,489

8,332,389

4,063,740

13,976,472

7,303,307

29,548,701

29,548,701

664,089

29,548,701

21,878,078

1,613,890

743,478

18,813,610

6,800,100

4,240,542

USD

31.12.2017

paid as at

Instalments
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100

21,482

0.22
3.88

47
834

TDB Directors and Select Stakeholders Provident Fund

4.28

0.56

4.79

13.89

ZEP-RE (PTA Reinsurance company)

920

1,029

Seychelles Pension Fund

TDB Staff Provident Fund

2,983
121

16.55

3,556

People's Republic of China

Rwanda Social Security Board

Sacos Group Limited

9.56

2,054

13.41

2,880

OPEC Fund for International Development (OFID)

1.26
8.32

National Social Security Fund Uganda

270
1,787

National Pension Fund–Mauritius

Mauritian Eagle Insurance Company Limited

4.13

15.52

3,333
888

3.63

of total

Percentage

780

Banco Nacional de Investmento

African Development Bank

Africa Reinsurance Corporation

As at 31 December 2017:

of shares

Number

STATEMENT OF SUBSCRIPTIONS TO THE CAPITAL STOCK (Continued)

97,386,936

3,780,873

213,071

4,170,747

548,544

4,664,890

13,523,193

16,120,843

9,311,645

13,056,251

8,101,222

1,224,024

4,025,677

15,109,890

97,386,936

3,780,873

213,071

4,170,747

548,544

4,664,890

13,523,193

16,120,843

9,311,645

13,056,251

8,101,222

1,224,024

4,025,677

15,109,890

3,536,068

USD

3,536,068

as at year end

USD

Instalments due

capital

Payable

97,386,936

3,780,873

213,071

4,170,747

548,544

4,664,890

13,523,193

16,120,843

9,311,645

13,056,251

8,101,222

1,224,024

4,025,677

15,109,890

3,536,068

USD

capital

Paid up

52,968,478

1,223,127

72,469

1,349,253

454,304

2,343,654

7,405,065

5,976,999

10,688,153

11,875,353

2,973,564

395,976

1,488,038

4,890,110

1,832,411

USD

premium

Share

150,355,414

5,004,000

285,540

5,520,000

1,002,848

7,008,544

20,928,258

22,097,842

19,999,798

24,931,604

11,074,786

1,620,000

5,513,715

20,000,000

5,368,479

USD

paid

Total
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